
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


 March 8, 2012
  7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, March 8, 2012, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________
Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda: Commissioner Brown made a motion to accept the Agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Public Comment:
Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield commented on the ongoing work around his property for the construction of the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  He expressed concern with the possibility of serious drainage problems as a result of the clearing
of the property and runoff going into the County’s water supply.  He recommended landscaping along this roadway and
remarked that this would add to the character and desired layout of Fayette County, and he asked for the Board’s
consideration of his request.  


Denise Ognio: Denise Ognio thanked Commissioner Horgan for attending a Republican event that was held earlier
today.  She said it was much appreciated when Commissioners attend these events and hear what the citizens have
to say.  She also commented that the Republican Party holds its meeting every year at the same time and this year was
no different from any other year.  She said the Republic Party meeting was well advertised and also brought to the
Board’s attention by at least one of the Commissioners that the Commissioners’ Retreat Meeting schedule was a direct



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 2


conflict with the Republic Party meeting.  She said this was very disappointing that this Board still voted to have the
Commissioners’ Retreat on the same day as the Republican Party meeting.  She said this makes her question this
Board’s Party loyalties and this was just one more reason to sweep the shelves in 2012.  


Randy Ognio:  Randy Ognio commented on consent agenda item #2 and questioned the delay in the renewal of this
agreement.  He felt this put the County at risk with all of the storms that had recently come through Fayette County.  He
commented on consent agenda item #7 and questioned the funding for this project.  He also questioned item #1 under
Old Business and noted the request referred to six vendors responding to the bid but none of these were listed in the
backup information.  He commented on item #5 under New Business regarding amendments to Article VI regarding tree
retention, protection and replacement.  He said this was amazing to him since the County had destroyed a path through
the County land for the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He remarked on item #8 under New Business regarding illicit
discharge.  He felt the Board was trying to put this item on the fast track and place it on the consent agenda for the next
Board meeting.  He noted that this was the first meeting that this item has been discussed.  He said this was a very
involved issue that might affect property values.  He also expressed concern with the Commissioners’ Retreat being
scheduled on the same day as the Republican Party meeting.  In his final comment, he commented on the continued
construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass and the noise this has generated even until 9:00 p.m.  He said this Board
had no respect for the citizens of Fayette County.  


Consent Agenda: Commissioner Brown requested to remove item #7 and item #8 for discussion.  Commissioner
Horgan  made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1-9 with the exception of item #7 and item #8 as
presented.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Amendment to Service Agreement between Fayette County and the Town of Brooks:
1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve “Amendment to Service Agreements between Fayette County,


Georgia and the Town of Brooks, Georgia”, which makes all service agreements between the County and the
Town expire on December 31 in the years in each agreement, and provides consistent renewal terms and
conditions; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said Amendment pending review by the County
Attorney.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


Georgia Emergency Management-Homeland Security Agreement:  
2. Approval of staff’s request to continue the Agreement between Fayette County and Georgia Emergency


Management-Homeland Security as outlined in the Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement; and
authorization for the Chairman to execute the Agreement pending review by the County Attorney.  A copy of
the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


Fire and Emergency Services - Repair of Weather Warning Siren System in Landmark Mobile Home Community
and repair site on Ellis Road:
3. Approval of staff’s request for authorization for $2,085 for a Radio Transfer Unit (RTU) to repair the Weather


Warning Siren System in Landmark Mobile Home Community and $4,755 to repair the site on Ellis Road.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.  3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 3


Intergovernmental Agreement between Tyrone and Fayette County for the Valleywood Road Project:
4. Approval of staff’s request to accept the proposed amendment to extend the term of existing Intergovernmental


Agreement between the Town of Tyrone and Fayette County for the Valleywood Road Project from February
24, 2012 to February 23, 2013.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Purchasing Department - District Attorney to acquire a Ford Crown Victoria by trading a Ford Taurus:  
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to receive a 1999 Ford Taurus from the Prosecuting Attorney’s Council of


Georgia, and in trade, transfer to the Council a 2007 Ford Crown Victoria.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Water Committee Recommendation - Bid Award to Mid-South Builders for Hwy 85/Bernhard Road Water Line
Relocation:
6. Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation to award the bid for Highway 85/Bernhard Road Water Line


Relocation to the low bidder, Mid-South Builders, in the amount of $233,680; and authorization for the Chairman
to execute the contract pending review by the County Attorney.  A copy of the request, backup and contract,
identified as “Attachment No.  6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Water Committee Recommendation - Bid Award to Headley Construction for the Lake McIntosh Park and Boat
Ramp:
7. Approval of Water Committee’s  recommendation to award the Lake McIntosh Park and Boat Ramp to the low


bidder Headley Construction, in the amount of $894,980; and authorization for the Chairman to execute the
contract pending review by the County Attorney.  A copy of the request, backup and contract, identified as
“Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Brown said he had nothing against this project and felt it was a worthwhile project.  He questioned  if this
project could wait until the financial status of the Water System was discussed during budget review.   Water System
Director Tony Parrott replied that this project was included in the funds that were borrowed with a bond issue.  He said
they were the same amenities that were included in the Lake Horton project.  He said from a budget point of view, this
project was being done in the most economical way that an amenity could be put in.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett interjected that the bond issue specifically relates to this project.  


Commissioner Hearn asked if this project had come in under budget or was it what was expected.  Mr. Parrott replied
that overall the entire project was under budget.  Mr. Parrott said the dam and spillway construction was more than $1
million under budget.  He said everything was falling into place under budget including the wetlands projects.
Commissioner Hearn said with the lack of construction projects that are currently available, he felt there would not be
a better time for this contract work to be done.  Mr. Parrott remarked that the contractor who was the low bidder was
actually building the pump house and was already on the site.  


Commissioner Brown said it was his understanding of the situation that if these funds were restricted then there was
nothing that could be done.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that these funds could not even be transferred
into the general operating fund for the Water System.  He said these funds were restricted for the Lake McIntosh project
and that was what these bonds were issued for.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 4


Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve consent agenda item #7 for approval of the Water Committee’s
recommendation to award the Lake McIntosh Park and Boat Ramp to the low bidder Headley Construction, in the amount
of $894,980; and authorization for the Chairman to execute the contract pending review by the County Attorney.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


Human Resources Policy No. 404.07 - Code of Ethics for County Employees:   
8. Approval of County Human Resources Policy No. 404.07 which establishes a code of ethics for County


employees.   A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Brown questioned if there had been an ethics ordinance for employees previous to this agenda item, and
County Attorney Scott Bennett replied there had been a very sparse ethics policy and it was basic.  Attorney Bennett
said there were some Federal Grant requirements that have come up and the Purchasing Department brought this to
staff’s attention that the County needed to review the ethics policy.  He said staff had taken the Federal requirements
and implemented those into the same ethics policy that affects the Board of Commissioners and elected officials and
drafted this ethics policy pertaining just to employees.  He said it had also been changed as to the way it is structured.
He said with elected officials it goes to the Ethics Board for review and there was different punishment options.  He said
with employees this has been structured as such that it would go through the chain of command and an employee found
to be in violation of the ethics policy would be disciplined up to and including termination by their supervisor.  He said
the employee could then appeal this decision through the normal grievance process.  


Commissioner Brown clarified that currently the County was running two parallel ethics codes one for employees and
one for elected officials.  He asked if the definition of a county official also applied to commissioners, authority members
and board members.  Attorney Bennett responded that this would apply to anyone who is appointed or elected.  


Commissioner Brown also questioned the issue of employees being allowed to receive gifts up to $100.  Attorney
Bennett said this also applied to elected officials and Commissioner Brown said he understood.  Commissioner Brown
said he was questioning the necessity of that and if this was on a per occurrence basis.  


Attorney Bennett replied that he was almost certain that this would be on an annual basis.  He said this would typically
relate to employees attending seminars and gift that are given out and not related to work.  He said this was the
recommended threshold made by the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia.  


Commissioner Brown expressed concern with vendors who might be bidding on County contracts and services taking
employees out to lunch and so forth.  He said the vendors do this sort of thing for a reason.  He said he would like to see
this threshold lowered.  


Attorney Bennett said this would be up to the Board and he would have no problem with whatever the Board wanted to
do.  He said if this amount was lowered it would be the Board’s decision.


Commissioner Brown said he would be in favor of $50.


Chairman Frady asked if any of the Board members would be in favor of changing the amount from $100 and there were
no comments by the other Board members.  Chairman Frady asked for the pleasure of the Board in this matter.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 5


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda item #8 regarding  County Human Resources Policy
No. 404.07 which establishes a code of ethics for County employees.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion,
discussion followed.  Commissioner Brown said he would vote in favor of this with reservations regarding the $100
amount.  The motion carried 5-0. 


Minutes:
9. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on February 9, 2012 and Board of


Commissioners’ Special Called Meeting held on February 14, 2012. 
 
Old Business:
1. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to renew Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.


to conduct post-closure environmental monitoring and compliance activities at the two closed Fayette
County solid waste facilities on First Manassas Mile Road for a 12-month period, in an amount not to
exceed $80,270:


Director of Stormwater Vanessa Birrell remarked that staff was still performing tasks under the current contract that was
approved by the Board late in 2010.  She said the Northside permit boundary modification had not been done under this
contract and staff was waiting on some of the outcome of the groundwater methane results before this process is
initiated. She remarked that Jacobs Engineering Group was the lowest respondent out of the six bids that were received
in late 2010.


Commissioner Brown remarked that this indicates that this is a renewal of a contract but he felt it appeared to be more
of an extension because they were not able to complete everything in the previous agreement.  


Ms. Birrell remarked that the tasks included in the contract were for yearly methane monitoring and groundwater
monitoring.  She noted that in regard to the Northside boundary permit modification they have already accomplished the
greenhouse gas report.  She felt this contract was both an extension and a renewal.  


Commissioner Horgan questioned what the County could expect after the 12-month period.  He asked if there would still
be $80,000 monitoring bills or would this be reduced.  Mr. Birrell replied that this amount could go down and she noted
that the County was currently in negotiations with the E.P.D. to remove some of the methane monitoring points on the
Southside.  She said this was in regard to some of the research that Jacobs Engineering had done to determine if all
of the monitoring points that the previous report indicated were needed were actually required.  


Commissioner Brown questioned  if there would be any type of rebates on previous fees since everything in the previous
contract with Jacobs was not fulfilled.  Ms. Birrell replied that in the previous contract the County was paying per task.


Chairman Frady asked when this contract before the Board would become effective and Ms. Birrell said it would become
effective on the date that the Board approves it.  Chairman Frady asked when the previous contract would expire and
Ms. Birrell replied that the last addendum to this contract expires on September 28, 2012.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel clarified that one of the tasks under the previous contract was to develop a permit
boundary modification report for E.P.D.  He said in order to develop that report there are a number of readings that have
to be taken and are required because the modification permit was based on those readings.  He said they have not been
able to obtain all of those readings consistently that they need to apply for that modification permit.  He said the company
needs a longer time period to obtain those readings otherwise the modification permit could be more stringent without
getting all of the values.  He said this was the task that Jacobs is continuing to work on which was part of the prior







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 6


contract.  He pointed out that the new contract was for continuous monitoring and reporting requirements to E.P.D. and
was not paying for the testing twice.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to renew Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc. to conduct post-closure environmental monitoring and compliance activities at the two closed
Fayette County solid waste facilities on First Manassas Mile Road for a 12-month period, in an amount not to exceed
$80,270.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


2. Consideration of the Memorandum of Understanding with Jefferson Woods Subdivision and a request
for $8,000 from the County’s General Fund to cover the cost of the path repairs; and authorization for
the Chairman to execute the Memorandum of Understanding pending review by the County Attorney:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina remarked that the Board had discussed this item in June of 2011.  He
said this item was regarding the Safe Routes to School path that was now under construction along Redwine Road which
ties into a Peachtree City path in the area of Preserve Place.  He said staff was trying to facilitate the passage through
the Peachtree City system through two small segments of a pathway in the Jefferson Woods subdivision.  He said by
using those two paths the connection can be completed down to Foreston Place South.  He said staff had estimated
repairs at $8,000.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve this Memorandum of Understanding with Jefferson
Woods subdivision.   


Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Jefferson Woods Subdivision
and a request for $8,000 from the County’s General Fund to cover the cost of the path repairs; and authorization for the
Chairman to execute the Memorandum of Understanding pending review by the County Attorney.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Commissioner Horgan said anytime that half miles of path can be added in the County he was in total agreement.
Commissioner Hearn commended staff for bringing this issue before the Board and remarked this was the kind of thing
that makes the community a better place to live and adds value to our quality of life.  


Mr. Frisina said he would also like to thank Public Works and Stormwater Departments’ staff who have been working
on this project as well as the officers for the Jefferson Woods subdivision Homeowners Association.  


The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, backup and Memorandum of Understanding, identified as “Attachment
No. 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


3. Consideration of proposed changes to Fayette County’s Development Regulations, Article III, Street
Design Standards and Specifications:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon remarked that this item was discussed at the Board’s last workshop meeting and he
had heard and responded to five main comments from the Board including (1) providing a remedy if coring of the asphalt
samples showed deficiency; (2) the issue of applying building line setbacks from future right-of-way; (3) the issue of
sidewalks and the County’s responsibility if it accepts responsibility for major repairs for safety type issues; (4) the issue
of traffic calming; and (5) the issue of landscape islands and making certain that they do not impede sight distance.  He
pointed out that he had referenced valuable input from Billy Brundage who does a lot of work in Fayette County.  He said
Mr. Brundage had identified areas that he felt were vague and also areas where there was too much blind reliance on
The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO).  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 7


Mr. Mallon commented further on right turn deceleration lanes into subdivisions.  He said he was in favor of these and
noted that the current County code requires the deceleration lane for subdivisions as small as six lots.  He said after
discussing this with Mr. Brundage and looking at some examples, a twenty lot threshold was suggested.  He said he
would be glad to answer any questions that the Board might have.


Commissioner Brown suggested looking at the methodology that Peachtree City had started to employ when there was
a development taking place on a route with multi-use infrastructure and requiring that developer to link in to the multi-use
paths.  He said this would save the County a lot of expense from having to retrofit all of the path infrastructure when the
citizens begin using it.  


Mr. Mallon felt it would be helpful for staff to work with Planning and Zoning in order to identify a map of the County in
order to highlight areas having the highest potential for multi-use paths.   


Commissioner Hearn commented on issues regarding turn lanes into subdivisions as well as width of road pavement.
Mr. Mallon interjected that he was recommending a change in the reduction of minimum pavement width on County and
local roads.  Commissioner Hearn said he would recommend 22 feet for minimum pavement width.  


Commissioner Brown commented there were currently a couple of subdivisions in the County that use the narrow width
and this was actually looked upon as being a safety mechanism because it actually causes drivers to slow down.  He
said the wider pavement allows for drivers to gain speed.  He felt there were some safety possibilities by narrowing the
roads causing drivers to slow down and be more cognizant of what was going on around them. He said a good example
of narrow pavement width was in North Cove Subdivision in Peachtree City on Peachtree Parkway near Kedron
Shopping Center.  


After some further discussion, there was a consensus by the Board that this item would be on the April 12  agenda forth


further discussion.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to work with planners at the Georgia Department of
Transportation (GDOT), the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC), and neighboring jurisdictions to
identify and program regionally-significant transportation improvements along I-85 in the vicinity of
Bohannon Road, SR 74, SR 92, Fayetteville Road and SR 138:


Director of Public Works Phil Mallon remarked that the Board had discussed this item at the Board’s January Workshop
meeting.  He felt there was a general consensus among people in Fairburn, Peachtree City as well as individuals at the
D.O.T. that the solutions being proposed at the interchange of SR 74 and I-85 both provide good improvements to the
level of service both immediate and long term.  He said these improvements do not address all of the regional issues
associated with the truck traffic and vehicle traffic in that area.  He said of particular concern to Fayette County was
access from SR 92 to the Interstate as well as the truck traffic at Oakley Industrial Boulevard and what would happen
as the economy continues to improve resulting in some real growth.  He stated that he had talked informally with Todd
Long of G.D.O.T. and Matthew Fowler, who is Fayette County’s Planner in that area and the Project Manager for this
interchange project, both felt strongly that the best path would be to pursue a new project number.  He said he was
looking for a consensus from the Board for staff direction.  He presented the Board with a draft resolution for
consideration by the Board.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 8


Commissioner Brown remarked that it was important to note that even if all of the components that were being
considered were implemented, the model would run into a standstill.  He said we would have to make sure that we are
trying to employ as many of those components as possible because the forecast was not all that good.  He said it would
be even worse if these components were not included.  He also felt it important to note that the property located across
the street from where most of the warehousing districts are now on the Fayette County side was zoned for warehouse
distribution as well.  He said there were currently huge for sale signs on those properties and things could turn really bad
if those properties sell and are used for additional warehouse and distribution space.


Commissioner Horgan said he had attended the transportation meeting held at the Bedford School a few days ago and
spoken with one of the designers of this project.  He said he had discussed the diamond interchange and SR 92 and
it was her opinion presented to him that this project would never happen.  He said we have been discussing this project
for years and trying to make it happen, but she indicated the way in which the rules and regulations are with that project,
they did not see this as a viable choice anymore.  


Mr. Mallon remarked that the D.O.T. Manager had commented on what was being done in Henry County was for
managed lanes such as the H.O.V. lanes by allowing the equivalent of a half diamond by putting the on ramp and exit
ramp between the North and Southbound lanes in that open median.  He said this was suggested as an example if the
County works with the D.O.T. to start getting managed lanes down I-85.  He said there was a lot of emphasis on freight
traffic as well and there might be some options there as well.  


Commissioner Horgan questioned what the County’s next step would be to make this happen and Mr. Mallon replied
we would need a lot more information and this was just laying the foundation to start the process.  


Commissioner Brown remarked that it was important to note that with the Federal Highway Administration there was a
liaison who attends the D.O.T. meetings regarding this interchange.  He said the Federal Highway Administration has
really never been consulted on the half diamond.  He said he was concerned with the amount of tractor trailer traffic in
that area.  


Commissioner Hearn remarked on the issue as he understands it was the distance between SR 74 interchange and
where SR 92 crosses and under the Federal guidelines the distance between thee is too close together to warrant a half
diamond at that location and Mr. Mallon agreed.


Commissioner Brown commented on a project in Augusta that was very similar to what Phil Mallon was talking about
where D.O.T. did have a serious problem and they had made some modifications and received approval from the
Federal Highway Administration.  He said this was a process that would have to be looked at and hopefully it will prevail
and the tractor trailer traffic be taken out.


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s pleasure on Resolution No. 2012-06 before the Board and he asked County
Attorney Scott Bennett if he had reviewed this and he replied yes.  


Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2012-06 by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia in Support of Expanding the Scope or Creating the Next Phase of the I-85 and SR 74 Interchange to
Promote Lasting Congestion Relief.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of
the request, backup and Resolution No. 2012-06, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 9


New Business:
1. Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and Clayton County for


repairs to the bridge on McDonough Road over the Flint River; and authorization for the Chairman to
execute the Agreement pending review by the County Attorney:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon presented this item for discussion.  He said the funds being used for these repairs
were included in the fiscal year 2012 budget.  He said  the Road Department had identified exactly what was needed
and verbally has a commitment from Clayton County staff that they would agree to share the costs.  He asked for the
Board’s consideration to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and Clayton County for
repairs to the bridge on McDonough Road over the Flint River.  


Commissioner Hearn said the County had worked with Clayton County in the past on other bridge projects and they have
been good neighbors in terms of sharing and being reasonable.  He said he was in full support of this project.  


Chairman Frady said the total cost of the project was $17,000 and Fayette County would pay half that amount.  He asked
for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County and
Clayton County for repairs to the bridge on McDonough Road over the Flint River; and authorization for the Chairman
to execute the Agreement pending review by the County Attorney.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, backup and Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


2. Consideration of staff’s request to award Bid #820 to Atlanta Paving & Concrete Construction, Inc. for
an annual contract for asphalt milling services to be used on various projects throughout calendar year
2012 in an amount not to exceed $125,000:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon presented this item to the Board for discussion.  He said this was one of many
contracts that the Road Department puts together each year.  He said his department has started to do a lot more milling
work and he said they have found it works well in terms of the quality.  He said this was mostly being used on gravel
roads and staff has received very positive comments back from citizens.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s request to award Bid #820 to Atlanta Paving & Concrete
Construction, Inc. for an annual contract for asphalt milling services to be used on various projects throughout calendar
year 2012 in an amount not to exceed $125,000.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Mr. Mallon said he wanted to clarify that this milling would be used on some SPLOST projects which would include areas
along Sandy Creek Road and Veterans Parkway that will require milling before the overlay is put down.  Commissioner
McCarty said since this involved work for the Bypass, he would withdraw his second.  Commissioner Brown said he
would be consistent in voting in opposition for any work being done on the West Fayetteville Bypass.  


Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion. The motion carried 3-2 with Commissioner Brown and Commissioner
McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 10


3. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 13.
Pawnbrokers, Dealers in Precious Metals and Gems, and Flea Market Operators:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina presented this item to the Board for discussion.  He said this was an
old ordinance and needed to be reviewed.  He said the newer trends that staff was seeing in some of the thrift stores
and consignment shops fall under the definition of flea market and have not been treated as such.  He said staff has
reviewed this ordinance and felt it was somewhat burdensome and needed review.   He said staff was just asking to
proceed with this and would bring it back to the Board at a future meeting for further discussion.  A copy of the request
and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


4. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8.
Development Regulations, Article II. Nonresidential Construction Permit and Compliance Procedures:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina presented this item to the Board for discussion.  He said this was
mainly a housekeeping item and staff would present this at the  March 22, 2012 Commission meeting  for consideration.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


5. Discussion of the proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,
Articles VI. Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement:


Engineer Bryan Keller remarked that staff has made some minor housekeeping changes and nothing major was done.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof. 


Commissioner Brown asked Mr. Keller if the Stormwater Department was assuming responsibility for the tree section
of the ordinance.   


Mr. Keller replied yes the Stormwater Management Department would assume responsibility for this and pointed out that
they have an arborist available to review plans.  He said staff would bring this back to the Board for consideration at the
March 22, 2012 meeting.  


6. Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,
by amending Article X. Dam and Impoundment Design Specifications and Permit Requirements:


Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell discussed this item with the Board.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.   She said these
changes were mostly housekeeping but she had found two errors in the document and discussed these with the Board.
She said staff was incorporating all of the requirements of the Safe Dams Act.  She remarked that there was one major







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 11


amendment in Section 8-305 which would require any proposed dam that was going to be built needs to meet category
I safety and program standards and requirements regardless of how it would be classified by the Safe Dams Programs.
She said this would protect the owner of any potential category II dam owner because at some point there would be
development downstream of the category II requiring it to meet category I standards and those requirements could be
financially burdening.  She said staff would  bring this back to the Board for consideration at the March 22, 2012 meeting.
 
7. Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,


by amending Article XI. Groundwater Recharge Area Protection:


Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell discussed this item with the Board.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof. She remarked that
the County was required by the Department of Community Affairs to have this ordinance in place.  She said this was
basically a housekeeping item in order to conform with the other development regulations and had changed the name
of the department from Engineering to Stormwater Management.  She said staff would present this to the Board at the
March 22, 2012 meeting for consideration.  
  
8. Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations,


by amending Article XIII. Illicit Discharge and Illegal Connections:


Engineer Bryan Keller discussed this item with the Board.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment
No. 20", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.   He remarked that this was a model ordinance
passed down by the North Metropolitan Watershed District.  He said all of the engineerings have been changed over
to Stormwater and also made it more compatible for Fayette County.  He said staff would bring this back to the Board
at the March 22, 2012 meeting for consideration.  


9. Consideration of the appointment of Mr. Gary North to the Region 4 EMS Council for a two year term
commencing on July 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2014:


Executive Assistant Carol Chandler discussed this item with the Board.  A copy of the request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 21", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  She remarked that the individual for
this council is nominated by the Peachtree City Fire Department and not by the County Commission.  She said there
are three seats on that council and this is the third seat.  She noted that the incumbent was retiring after 10 years as part
of this group. 


Commissioner Brown asked if this was a professional appointment from Peachtree City Fire and EMS and County
Administrator Jack Krakeel replied yes.   


Commissioner Brown made a motion to appoint Mr. Gary North to the Region 4 EMS Council for a two year term
commencing on July 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2014.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 5-0. 


Administrator’s Reports:
None.


Commissioners’ Reports:
Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown said he wanted to reiterate that the Board of Commissioners’ Retreat
would be held on Saturday, March 10  beginning at 8:30 a.m.  He encouraged anyone interested to attend the meeting.th







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 8, 2012


Page 12


He said he would be leaving the Commissioners’ Retreat meeting for a brief period in order to attend the Republican
Party meeting but would return to the Retreat meeting afterward.  


Chairman Frady: Chairman Frady remarked that this Board had set the date for the Commissioners’ Retreat a while
back.  He said it was hard to find a time when all of the Board members could attend the Retreat, but noted that this
particular date was voted on by this Board.  He said the date of the Retreat was not meant to conflict with the Republican
Party meeting.  


Executive Session: County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss litigation.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss litigation.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Chairman Frady reconvened the meeting back to open session.  He stated that the Board had authorized him to execute
the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that litigation was discussed. A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment No. 22", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.   He said the Board advised
the County Attorney how to proceed in the matter.  


Adjournment: Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Brown made a motion
to adjourn the meeting at 8:45 p.m.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                                   Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12  day of April, 2012.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


March 22, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on March 22, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the March 22, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Chairman Frady asked to amend the Agenda by moving New Business Item 18 to the first topic of consideration in Old
Business, and then to swap the order of Old Business Items 13 and 14.  Commissioner Hearn moved to accept the
agenda with the requested changes.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-07 pertaining to the “Fayette County 2011
Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates
to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2012 - FY2016)”, and
authorization to transmit said document to the Atlanta Regional Commission.







Minutes
March 22, 2011
Page Number 2


Community Development Director Pete Frisina informed the Board that the Annual Report for Fire Services
Impact Fees was due, and that what was before the Board was the County’s submittal and it’s Transmittal
Resolution that needs to be sent to Atlanta for review by both the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and
Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA).  He stated that once ARC and DCA have completed their
reviews, the final document would once again be brought to the Board for adoption in June.  He said the report
includes information obtained from the County’s municipalities since this is an intergovernmental program, and
he spoke briefly about the money collected from those municipalities and the unincorporated county for Fire
Services Impact Fees.  Mr. Frisina then informed the Board of two minor changes to the report located on
pages 11 and 13.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-07 pertaining to the Fayette
County 2011 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for
Updates to the Capital Improvements Elements and Short-Term Work Program (FY2012 - FY2016) including
the required changes, and to authorize the transmission of the said document to the Atlanta Regional
Commission for coordination of Regional and State review prior to adoption.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Resolution
2012-07, identified at “Attachment 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


David Rice Hall: Mr. Hall proposed that Fayette County should return to its priorities by funding the East Fayetteville
Bypass.  He suggested that if his proposition were enacted there would be less traffic and less debt while the best
interests of Fayette County would have been served.  He noted that those who represent the County are less likely to
lose elections that those who do not.  He closed saying the people do not want the West Fayetteville Bypass, that the
Board should stop its construction, and that the bypass should even be destroyed.


Dennis Chase: Mr. Chase spoke about New Business Item 15, and he said he had heard comments that abandoning
Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass and constructing the East Fayetteville Bypass would “pass more traffic.”  He
stated that he was “mystified about where that logic comes from” because there was no source in the County that could
demonstrate how much traffic would be relieved in the City of Fayetteville by either the East or West Fayetteville
Bypasses.  He continued that the Board would be spending massive amounts of the people’s money on projects nobody
knows about.  After emphasizing these points, Mr. Chase then stated that constructing the East Fayetteville Bypass
would be even worse since the Board would be violating its own Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.  He explained
that the West Fayetteville Bypass already violates twelve “sections” of the Comprehensive Plan, and that the East
Fayetteville Bypass would violate at least eleven of them.  He asked why the Comprehensive Plan is applied to Fayette’s
citizens but not to the Fayette County government.  Mr. Chase provided additional examples of what to expect with
construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass and then closed his remarks saying the construction made no sense and
“that it is not a funny joke, but it was ironic.”


Randy Ognio: Mr. Ognio informed the Board that when he received the Agenda he first questioned the Public Hearing
section, since it had not been announced.  He asked how the Board expected people to comment during Public Hearing
when so little information was presented pertaining to issues the people knew very little about.  He said the citizens
wanted their government to be transparent and “up front” with them.  Mr. Ognio then spoke about the various ordinances
on the agenda saying he was concerned that nobody was questioning them, and he was concerned that the
Commissioners had not even read the ordinances.  He told the Board that there were “issues” in all of the ordinances







Minutes
March 22, 2011
Page Number 3


that the citizens would have to live with once they are passed.  As an example, he noted that one ordinance changed
the word “improper” to “illegal”, and no one said anything about it.  Next, Mr. Ognio spoke about the “West Fayetteville
neighborhood” issue that was recently discussed in the Board’s Retreat held in March 2012.  He said that during that
discussion, a bothersome comment was made that the neighborhood could move forward with “public-private
participation.”  He suggested that if private citizens could not build the neighborhood that it should not be built, and that
no public funds should go to the proposal since it would only give the Board another reason to begin “raising my taxes
again.”


Chairman Frady asked if the information related to the Public Hearing had been made available to the public.
Community Development Director Pete Frisina replied that the information was available and that no one had come to
him to look at the information.  Commissioner Frady replied that he wanted to ensure that the information was available
for anyone who wanted to see it.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 2-12.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


2. Approval of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-05 for the purpose of discontinuing Fayette
County’s role in receiving customer complaints from subscribers of Comcast Cable.  A copy of the
request and Resolution 2012-05, identified as “Attachment 2", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s request to adopt policies and procedures for purchases that use federal grant funds.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-01 approving proposed amendments to
the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8. Development Regulations, by amending Article II.
Nonresidential Construction Permit and Compliance Procedures.  A copy of  this request and Ordinance
2012-01, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-02 approving proposed amendments to
Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article VI, Tree Retention,
Protection and Replacement.  A copy of the request and Ordinance 2012-02, identified as “Attachment
5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-03, approving proposed amendments to
Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article X, Dam and
Impoundment Design Specifications and Permit Requirements.  A copy of the request and Ordinance
2012-03, identified as “Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-04 approving proposed amendments to
Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article XI, Groundwater
Recharge Area Protection.  A copy of the request and Ordinance 2012-04, identified as “Attachment 7",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 22, 2011
Page Number 4


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-05 approving proposed amendments to
Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article XIII, Illicit Discharge
and Illegal Connections.  A copy of the request and Ordinance 2012-05, identified as “Attachment 8",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessors’ Office.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations
Division by $11,783.60 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


11. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Gasoline Vendor Budgeting Category for the
Criminal Investigations Division by $950.00 for reimbursement received from the US Marshals Service
for gasoline incurred for the vehicle which was purchased for Fayette County.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of the February 23, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of staff’s request for authorization to engage the Benefits Law Group for legal work
requirements associated with the implementation of the Early Retirement Plan, and to authorize the
Chairman to sign the Engagement Letter.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board that the amount of work required for the Early
Retirement Plan included complex legal work for crafting plan amendments to the County’s current retirement
plan.  He explained that this complex work included Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA)
requirements and a “hose of others issues that have to be addressed from a legal perspective.”  He informed
the Board that Benefits Law Group specializes in this type of work, that they did the legal work for Fayette
County’s current benefits administrator- GebCorp, and that they have come highly recommended.  He
continued that after having conversations with the group that he was requested the Board’s authorization to
engage Benefit Law Group to conduct the legal work.  He added that the estimated cost for the work would be
between $10,000 to $12,000, but he emphasized that the estimated cost was difficult to finalize since the work
is billed on an hourly rate and the amount of time needed was dependent upon the number of employees who
chose to take advantage of the early retirement plan.  He also asked that the Board authorize the Chairman
to sign any of the appropriate documents that may be necessary.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the County Administrator to engage the Benefits Law Group for legal
work requirements associated with the implementation of the Early Retirement Plan, and to authorize the
Chairman to sign all appropriate and necessary documents associated with this effort.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and
Engagement Letter, identified as “Attachment 12", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 5


14. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County’s Defined Benefit
Retirement Plan to accommodate the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program; and authorization
for the Chairman to sign any associated agreements contingent upon review by the County Attorney.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel reminded the Board that it directed staff at its recent Retreat to pursue the
Early Retirement option as one of the strategies for helping to balance the County’s Fiscal Year 2013 budget.
He explained that in order for staff to move forward and present information to the eligible participants, staff
would need the Board to formally adopt a Resolution to allow staff to work further in that direction and to hold
formal meeting with affected parties.  


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County’s
Defined Benefit Retirement Plan to accommodate the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program, and to
authorize the Chairman to sign any associated agreements contingent upon review of the County Attorney.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion. 


Commissioner Brown commented that he had nothing against the Early Retirement option or in initiating it, but
he would have “loved to have had a little more discussion earlier on about the components of the plan and
maybe see if there were some options that were available that could increase the efficiency” by reducing the
county’s cost.  He understood why this issue was put on the fast-burner, but said he would have liked to have
more discussion about it.  Commissioner Horgan replied that this issue was “vetted pretty well [at the Retreat]
and the information that was provided was enough for me to have the decision.”  He thought it was a good
strategy that would help save the County money.


Commissioner Hearn asked Mr. Krakeel if, should all 44 employees retire, the net savings to Fayette County
on an annual basis would be about $1.6 million.  Mr. Krakeel replied that the $1.6 million savings would only
be realized in the General Fund since 33 of the 44 eligible employees are budgeted in that fund.  Commissioner
Hearn noted that if half of the General Fund employees took the option, there would be a potential savings of
about $800,000 to Fayette County on an annual basis.  Mr. Krakeel agreed that was correct.  Commissioner
Hearn explained that this effort could save Fayette County a substantial amount of money, and thanked staff
for their work in the matter.  Mr. Krakeel clarified that the potential savings are generated in two ways: through
a reduction in salaries for those who retire early and a reduction in salaries for employees who replace critical
positions.  He explained that it was recognized that not all of the affected positions could be eliminated, but
those individuals who take fill critical positions will be starting at a lower salary.  He emphasized, however, that
incumbent with the Board’s decision; some of the positions currently held by eligible employees would be
eliminated.  He then summarized that with a combination of eliminations of positions and the salary differentials
of replacement employees, Fayette County would realize savings, however, the actual savings are unknown
since it is based on the number of individuals who chose to take advantage of the program.


The motion to approve staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2012-08 modifying the County’s Defined Benefit
Retirement Plan to accommodate the proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program, and to authorize the
Chairman to sign any associated agreements contingent upon review of the County Attorney passed
unanimously.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2012-08, identified as “Attachment 13", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 6


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of Connie Biemiller Thomas’ request that Fayette County transmit a letter to the Fulton
County Board of Commissioners urging Fulton County to take every measure possible to not renew
Philip Service Corporation’s permit that would allow use of Futon County’s sewer system for
discharged wastewater.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board that Board and the audience that he information had
come to staff earlier in the afternoon and that he had provided that information to the Board and to Mrs.
Thomas.


Mrs. Thomas reminded the Board that Fayette County had a “major atrocity in the summer of 2006 that affected
both south Fulton County and Fayette County because a wastewater treatment plant took in a toxic substance
that poisoned many, many residents.”  She informed the Board that due to this problem Philip Services
Corporation (PSC) decided to pull their permit in 2006 with an agreement that they could not reapply for that
permit for another six years.  She told the Board that PSC would be able to reapply for the permit very soon
since the six years were about to expire, and that was the reason she was appearing before the Board in order
to ensure that both Fayette County and Fulton County would be on the same page and not allow PSC to
reapply for a permit because of the harm they brought upon the citizens, because of the subsequent lawsuit,
and because of other ongoing issues.  Mrs. Thomas found it “very interesting” that Mr. Azose of PSC called
Chief Deputy Clerk Floyd Jones saying he did not believe there was a need for public discussion since the plan
was closed; however, she mentioned that she had driven by the plant on the way to the meeting and found
tanker trucks coming to the plant with unknown chemicals.  She agreed that PSC has been in the process of
closing down their solid waste site, and a “plug” was installed preventing the plant from dumping its waste into
the Fulton County sewer system, but she repeated that the plant was, to some extent, still in operation.  She
stressed that the members of the South Fulton / Fayette County Community Task Force will not be satisfied
until PSC is completely closed down.  After Mrs. Thomas described the events of 2006, she referred to a letter
from Fulton County’s Department of Environment & Community Development to PSC, written during October
2011 that indicated ongoing concerns with groundwater contamination.  She informed the Board that this was
new information and that it should be a “huge concern” to the Board since a stream runs by the plant and into
Fayette County.  She understood that the Board was unaware of this issue as well, and asked about what have
the citizens been exposed to since 2006.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel said it was important to understand that the Georgia Environmental
Protection Division (EPD) is the agency in charge of the closure process, and that PSC had to satisfy all the
requirements imposed by the EPD– including groundwater issues.  He explained that Fayette County does not
have any authority to require any type of action with regard to the plant, so all it could really do is stay engaged
in the discussion and make sure it could do everything that could be done in order to protect its citizens.  He
added that the fundamental legal authority to deal with the issues resided with both Fulton County and the EPD.
He clarified that the letter from Fulton County indicated that PSC had complied with all of the closure
requirements from Fulton County’s perspective, but that their approval of the closure process did not negate
the authority of the EPD or that agency’s requirements associated with groundwater.  


Emergency Management Coordinator, Captain Pete Nelms, recalled that this issue was a very “emotionally
charged incident” that affected the quality of life for Fayette County’s citizens.  He added that this incident
provided “some very unique challenges for Fayette County and Public Safety because the plant is literally a







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 7


stone’s throw away from the county line and not in the County’s jurisdiction.”  He closed saying this issue
needed to be handled correctly and that Fayette County’s Public Safety would be glad to work with the EPD
to prevent similar type incidents from occurring.


Chairman Frady reminded everyone that Fayette County was limited with what it could do, but that the County
could write a letter and take other appropriate steps to encourage the proper authorities to continue monitoring
the plant in order to ensure that this issue will not occur again.


Commissioner Brown moved that Fayette County transmits a letter to the Fulton County Board of
Commissioners and Georgia Environmental Protection Division urging that they take every measure necessary
not to renew Philip Service Corporation’s permit that would allow the use of Fulton County’s sewer system for
discharge of their wastewater, and to request full disclosure in regard to the groundwater contamination which
would affect the citizens of Fayette County who are downstream.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.


Chairman Frady suggested that the letter should be written by the County Administrator and reviewed by the
County Attorney before the Commissioners would sign it.


The motion that Fayette County transmits a letter to the Fulton County Board of Commissioners and Georgia
Environmental Protection Division urging that they take every measure necessary not to renew Philip Service
Corporation’s permit that would allow the use of Fulton County’s sewer system for discharge of their
wastewater, and to request full disclosure in regard to the groundwater contamination which would affect the
citizens of Fayette County who are downstream passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and the letter from
Fulton County, identified as “Attachment 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof. 


16. Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty’s request to halt plans for construction of Phase III of
the West Fayetteville Bypass and to begin construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Commissioner McCarty began his discussion by explaining that both the West Fayetteville Bypass and the East
Fayetteville Bypass have long been issues of contention in Fayette County.  He stated that, based on his
research, the number one priority of the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) referendum was
the East Fayetteville Bypass and that West Fayetteville Bypass was the third priority.  He proposed that Fayette
County should return to its original plans and use the SPLOST funds as the “citizens thought they were voting
for”.  He understood that this proposal involved “complications” and that it would “take time to do”, but in the
meantime he further proposed that Fayette County would no longer proceed constructing Phase III of the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  He mentioned that the East Fayetteville Bypass has already started, that so far up to
$600,000 had been spent on the project and that if the East Fayetteville Bypass were not completed then that
$600,000 would “be lost”.  He added that Fayette County could get assistance from other agencies for
completing the East Fayetteville Bypass while similar assistance is not obtainable for the West Fayetteville
Bypass.


Commissioner McCarty moved that Fayette County cease the third phase of the West Fayetteville Bypass and
make plans on starting the construction of the East Fayetteville Bypass.  Commissioner Brown seconded the
motion.


Commissioner Hearn stated that the most current traffic study available for Phase II of the West Fayetteville
indicated that around 8,000 vehicles a day would use the “northern segments” of the bypass.  He then asked
Public Works Director Phil Mallon if a similar traffic study had been conducted within the last three years, in







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 8


terms of estimates, on expected traffic use on Phase I of the East Fayetteville Bypass and Phase III of the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  Mr. Mallon replied that there was an updated traffic study that was designed and prepared
primarily for determining the appropriate intersection controls on the East Fayetteville Bypass, that it would
include information on expected traffic volumes, but that he did not have the study with him.  Commissioner
Hearn asked, should the Board chose to transfer monies that are currently allocated for Phase III of the West
Fayetteville Bypass to Phase I of the East Fayetteville Bypass, would Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass
be part of the upcoming Transportation Investment Act (TIA) referendum.  Mr. Mallon answered that Phase III
of the West Fayetteville Bypass was not part of the TIA referendum, but that it did have “long range federal
dollars programmed for it.”  Commissioner Hearn then informed the Board that he was not ready to vote on the
motion, and he asked if the Board would consider tabling the item until the May 2012 Board of Commissioners
Workshop meeting.  He noted that this motion was certainly due consideration, and that Commissioner McCarty
had a memo that he wrote in 2004 with a priority list of SPLOST projects.  He closed saying when that memo
was written the cost to construct the East Fayetteville Bypass was estimated to be $67 million, and that there
is not $67 million available in SPLOST funds today.   


Commissioner McCarty asked Mr. Mallon what was the estimated cost to construct Phase III of the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  Mr. Mallon replied that staff had identified several alignments of Phase III, but since those
alignments had not yet been decided upon, the estimated cost ranged from between $8 million to $12 million.
Commissioner McCarty then asked how much had been spent on Phases I and II of the West Fayetteville
Bypass.  Mr. Mallon answered that Phase I of the West Fayetteville Bypass had approximately $8.3 million
spent for it, and that Phase II had approximately $4 million spent on it for engineering, right-of-way, and
construction.  Commissioner Hearn noted that there are different options and different ways that the County
could approach as they relate to Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He then briefly spoke about some
options before repeating his request to table the issue until the May Workshop meeting.  Commissioner
McCarty noted that one option would be to delay the “whole process” so that even the East Fayetteville Bypass
would be voted down and cancelled so that the remaining SPLOST money could be used to repair all
necessary roads and bridges in the county.


Commissioner McCarty agreed to withdraw his motion and Commissioner Brown withdrew his second.  The
item was tabled until the May 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting.


Chairman Frady requested that staff prepare the figures on Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass, to look
at options similar to those that Commissioner Hearn spoke about, and to look at the possibility of roundabouts
with those options.


Commissioner Brown added that he and many of Fayette County’s citizens would be “exceptionally”
disappointed if the Board continued with the construction of Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass, since
those citizens are still looking for a decent explanation of both Phases I and II.  Chairman Frady replied that
constructing the East Fayetteville Bypass would not make people happy either.  Commissioner McCarty
responded that the Board should consider cancelling the East Fayetteville Bypass as well in order to avoid
unhappy people from all over the county.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 9


17. Consideration of reappointment of Darryl Hicks to Post 4 of the Fayette County Recreation Commission
to a four-year term that will commence on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016.


Commissioner McCarty moved to reappoint Darryl Hicks to Post 4 of the Fayette County Recreation
Commission for a four-year term that will commence on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016.
Chairman Frady seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown asked if this position was advertised.  Executive Assistant Carol Chandler replied it had
not been advertised.  


Commissioner Hearn pointed out that Mr. Hicks serves on the Elections Board as the Democratic Party’s
appointment.  Commissioner Horgan added that Mr. Hicks does a great job and that he was in favor of the
appointment.  Commissioner Brown said he would take his traditional approach and vote against the motion
because he needed to be consistent with his belief that the County needs to advertise public positions to the
public so that they could be able to apply for those positions.  He added that public positions should not be
called “public positions” if they are not made available to the public.  He then spoke about another concern that
people like Mr. Hicks hold several positions on boards or committees or other similar bodies, and that he
thought Fayette County was doing itself a “huge disservice” by ignoring its “human capital” by using the same
people to double up positions that are not advertised. 


The motion to reappoint Darryl Hicks to Post 4 of the Fayette County Recreation Commission for a four-year
term that will commence on April 1, 2012 and will expire on March 31, 2016 passed 4-1 with Commissioner
Brown voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, bond resolution, and other related documents, identified as
“Attachment 16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of a resolution to provide for the issuance of Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012A, and Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B, and
for other related purposes.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel introduced Attorney Ken Pollack, who has worked with Fayette County on
several prior accessions as the County’s legal counsel with respect to the issuance of both new bonds and the
refinancing of existing bonds. 


Mr. Pollack mentioned that Mr. Jamie Wilson of Merchant Capital was in the audience, and that Mr. Wilson had
worked throughout the day to get all of the County’s bonds priced and sold.  He further informed the Board that
he was bringing forward a bond resolution that covers two series of bonds that were being issues.  He
explained that the first series was Series A Water Revenue Bond, and that the Series A Water Revenue Bonds
had a principle amount of $8,000,070 whose proceeds would be applied to the improvements and upgrades
to two water treatment plants.  He informed the Board that the Series A bonds were sold in conjunction with
an engineering report produced by Mallett Consulting and the county’s engineers.  He also informed the Board
that the Series A bonds would be issued next month, specifically; they were scheduled for April 17, 2012.


Mr. Pollack continued that the second series of bonds, the Series 2012B bonds, have a principle amount of
$15,590,000, and that their proceeds would be applied to refinance the Series 2002 Bonds.  He explained that
in October 2012, there would be an effort to pay off all of the outstanding 2002 bonds, which are just over $17







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 10


million dollars.  Mr. Pollack continued that the 2012B Bonds were scheduled to be closed during July 2012
since there was a restriction on when the 2002 bonds can be paid off.  He stated that the new bonds that are
refunding the old bonds have to be issued within 90 days of October 1, 2012 payoff date.


Mr. Pollack  asked the Board to approve the Series 2012 Bond Resolution that authorizes the issuance of both
of those Series A and B bonds, and he stated that the Resolution also authorizes the Chairman to execute the
bond purchase agreement for the sale of the bonds to the underwriter, Merchant Capital.


Commissioner Hearn asked Mr. Krakeel if this resolution was an effort designed to save the county money, or
if it was only a “housekeeping item.”  Mr. Krakeel replied that the Board had previously authorized the Magnetic
Ion Exchange (MIEX) project, which is an improvement in the County’s treatment capabilities at both of its water
treatment plants.  He stated that, in conjunction with issuing the new bonds for the MIEX expenditure, which
is approximately $9 million for that treatment upgrade, the County had the opportunity to refinance or refund
the Series 2002 bonds from the Water System that would result in savings due to lower interest rates.  He
added that the differential between the two rates and the savings they produced would be applied to the debt
structure of the new “money piece”.  He summarized that, for the citizens of Fayette County, this effort would
alleviate the anticipation of a water rate increase in order to fund the improvements at both of the treatment
plans based on the savings achieved by refunding of the 2002 Series bonds.  Commissioner Hearn asked if
he understood correctly that the estimated amount of the present value savings was about $1.5 million.  Mr.
Krakeel replied that Mr. Jamie Wilson would provide that answer.  


Mr. Wilson passed information to both the Board and to staff before giving a brief presentation.  He informed
the Board that the County’s gross savings because this work would be $2.86 million, and on a present value
basis, the savings were just over $2.3 million.


Chairman Frady moved to adopt a resolution to provide for the issuance of Fayette County, Georgia Water
Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A, and Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B,
and for other related purposes, and authorization for the Chairman to sign other related documents.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, Bond Purchase Agreement, Series 2012 Bond Resolution, Engineering Report on Water
System Improvements for Fayette County, Georgia, and Mr. Wilson’s presentation, identified as “Attachment
17", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report.


STAFF REPORT:


19. Public Works Director Phil Mallon will update the Board concerning Transportation SPLOST projects
in Fayette County.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon updated the Board concerning many of the Transportation SPLOST projects
in Fayette County. 







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 11


As part of his presentation, Mr. Mallon spoke about the McIntosh Road Bridge Project and he said it was a
“pretty significant issue” since Fayette County is still trying to get a formal written commitment from Spalding
County as it pertains to a cost-sharing formula, and that this issue may be coming to the Board at a future time.
After discussing issues concerning the bridge, the need for cost sharing with Spalding County, and existing
tangible problems with the bridge, Chairman Frady requested that County Administrator Jack Krakeel reach
out to Spalding County’s Manager in order to determine the status of the bridge project from that county’s
perspective.


Commissioner Hearn asked if this was a project on the Transportation Investment Act (TIA) referendum list,
should TIA be approved.  Mr. Mallon and Mr. Krakeel both answered that it was not on the list.  


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown first commented that at a previous time, he had raised the
possibility to use House Bill 240 (HB240) as a way to fund vital needs in Fayette County, and he suggested that the
Board still needed to look to that bill.  He explained that there is a “significant roof situation” in the Administrative
Complex that needed substantial repairs, that the old jail was in “severe disrepair”, and that a new EMS building needed
to be built in order to get public safety staff off some “two-story retail-class building with glass walls”. He worried that if
a natural disaster or some other disaster occurred in Fayette County, public safety staff could be “sucked out of the
building, and no one will be here to lead.”  Commissioner Brown expressed his disappointment that during the Board’s
Retreat, that the County decided to continue paving gravel roads when larger, pressing issues need to be addressed
such as providing equipment to the Public Works Department and the Fire Department.  He repeated that readdressing
HB240 could provide SPLOST funds to pay for some of these needs.  Secondly, Commissioner Brown also agreed with
Mr. Ognio’s position that if a Public Hearing is to be held that information needs to be provided to the public as soon as
possible, or at least up to 1 ½ weeks prior to the hearing.  As his last item, Commissioner Brown spoke about the “West
Fayetteville Bypass” neighborhoods by saying this issue had been brought to his attention several times already.  He
continued that the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce and the Development Authority are having discussions
pertaining to this issue, and that one person from one of those organizations had stated, “those neighborhoods are
inevitable.”  Commissioner Brown countered that nothing is inevitable in terms with what is going on with that situation.
He stated that the public should take a serious look at the issue and at what is “being sold behind the scenes.”  He
repeated that the issue needed to be “aired out in the public” and that the Fayette County Board of Commissioners
needed to stand with the type of land planning that has made Fayette County what it is today with lower density, slower
growth, and a quality lifestyle.  He felt that the West Fayetteville Bypass would do nothing but exacerbate the problem
since it opens up many of the parcels in question to “that type of development.”  He asked the Board to “be vigilant in
order to make sure that whatever happens there is in the best interest of Fayette County and not for those who may
make substantial profits off of the real estate or the building of homes.”







Minutes
March 22, 2012
Page Number 12


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the March 22, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned their March 22, 2012 meeting at 8:23 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
     Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk                        Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12th day of April 2012.


___________________________________
   Floyd L. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


April 12, 2012
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to issue a request for proposals for a
telecommunications consultant, and for the Chairman to sign and execute
three-year contracts for AT&T internet, Centrex, and MegaLink services, as
well as contracts for AT&T Metro Ethernet and Data Voice, Inc. support
services, pending review by the County Attorney.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #821 for the purchase,
rental, and cleaning of uniforms to Aramark Uniform Services, with a contract
renewable annually for a maximum of three years, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract and any related documents contingent upon the
County Attorney’s review.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #814 by
rescinding the award of six sizes of solid-sleeve fittings and re-awarding them
to other vendors, and authorization for the Chairman to sign any contracts or
related documentation contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


4. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid #827 to low bidder, Manatron Inc. &
Diversified Printing, in the amount of $23,459, for preparing and mailing
Personal Property Return Forms and Assessment Notices, and authorization
for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon
the County Attorney’s review.


5. Approval of staff’s request to award Proposal #P817 for Fire Station
Architectural Services to The Howell Group, in the amount of $98,000, and to
authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or any related documents
contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


6. Approval of staff’s request to purchase 35 laptop computers from CDW,
through a State contract, for Fire and Emergency Services’ Computer Aided
Dispatch (CAD) system in an amount not to exceed $49,875.00.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown


Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200


Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
April 12, 2012
Page Number 2


7. Approval of staff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign a six month “Agreement of Temporary Automatic
Aid for Fire and Emergency Medical Services” that will authorize the City of Peachtree City to provide
emergency assistance to a portion of Fayette County.


8. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division
by $6,634.60 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


9. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the alternate bid to low bidder East Electrical
Company, for electrical modifications to one raw water pump and one finished water pump at Crosstown Water
Treatment Plan, in the amount of $36,600, and to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or related
documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


10. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award a bid for the Lake McIntosh Park Water Line
Extension to the low bidder, Strack, Inc., in the amount of $39,778, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the
contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


11. Approval of the March 8, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes and the March 22, 2012 Board of
Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


12. Consideration of Ordinance No. 2012-06 which amends the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development
Regulations, Article III, Street Design Standards and Specifications.


13. Consideration of a request from the Sheriff’s Department Jail Division to award Jail mold remediation and
repairs in the inmate shower areas to MC’s Painting, to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. as the project
manager, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any contracts or related documents contingent upon the
County Attorney’s review.


NEW BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. to prepare a bid package with
the necessary specifications and technical drawings, to solicit bids, and to provide project management
services for the Strategic Technology Plan’s Fiber Optic Cabling Project at an estimated cost of $16,250.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Engineering Phil Mallon


Consideration of Ordinance No. 2012-06 which amends the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article III, Street 


Design Standards and Specifications.


Revisions to the Street Design Standards and Specifications were first discussed with the BOC at the February Workshop and again at 


the March 8, 2012 Public Meeting.  In addition to the BOC meetings, the Engineering Department has met with design professionals from 


the private sector and with staff from other County Departments. 


 


Changes to the document since the March 8th meeting include: 


1.  an increase to the minimum street width for County Internal Local roads from 20 to 22 feet, 


2.  removal of weight ticket requirement for proof rolls, 


3.  deletion of the "Sign Placement in Right-of-Way" (formerly 8-50.2) section since it was redundant with other existing county code, 


4.  introduction of a Concept-Level Traffic Impact Study for Rezoning Requests, and 


5.  several minor wording changes to improve clarity.   


Approval of Ordinance No. 2012-06 which amends the Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article III, Street 


Design Standards and Specifications.


No funding required


Yes Thursday, March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 12, 2012







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  1 of 24 


Article III 
Street Design Standards and Specifications 


 
8‐46  Definitions and Acronyms ........................................................................................ 1 
8‐47  Design Standards and Specifications ....................................................................... 4 
8‐48  Roadway Functional Classification ........................................................................... 5 
8‐49  Traffic Impact Studies .............................................................................................. 5 
8‐49.1  Exemptions ....................................................................................................... 6 


8‐50  Right‐of‐Way ............................................................................................................ 6 
8‐50.1  When Permits/Approvals are Required ........................................................... 6 
8‐50.2  Right‐of‐Way Minimum Widths ....................................................................... 7 
8‐50.3  Right‐of‐Way Donation and Acquisition ........................................................... 7 
8‐50.4  Building Line Setbacks for Future Right‐of‐Way ............................................... 8 


8‐51  Construction Requirements for Roads and Streets ................................................. 9 
8‐51.1  Road and Street Construction .......................................................................... 9 


8‐52  Design Standards ................................................................................................... 13 
8‐52.1  General Road Specifications ........................................................................... 13 
8‐52.2  Cul‐de‐sac Specifications ................................................................................ 14 
8‐52.3  Stormwater Management Plan ...................................................................... 14 


8‐53  Driveway and Encroachment Control .................................................................... 14 
8‐53.1  Residential Access........................................................................................... 15 
8‐53.2  Nonresidential Access .................................................................................... 16 
8‐53.3  Access for New Road Construction ................................................................ 17 
8‐53.4  Auxiliary Turn Lanes ........................................................................................ 18 


8‐54  Resurfacing of County Roads and Streets .............................................................. 18 
8‐55  Traffic Control Devices ........................................................................................... 19 
8‐55.1  Street Names and Property Address Numbers .............................................. 19 
8‐55.2  Street Signs and Traffic Control Signs ............................................................. 19 
8‐55.3  Pavement Markings ........................................................................................ 20 
8‐55.4  Traffic Signals .................................................................................................. 20 


8‐56  Utilities ................................................................................................................... 21 
8‐57  Sidewalks ................................................................................................................ 21 
8‐58  Roundabouts .......................................................................................................... 22 
8‐59  Traffic Calming ....................................................................................................... 22 
8‐60  Landscape Islands .................................................................................................. 23 
 
 


8‐46 Definitions and Acronyms 


For the purpose of this Article the following words, terms, acronyms, phrases and their 
derivations shall have the meaning provided in this section.  Words used in the present 
tense include the future tense.  Words used in the singular include the plural and vice‐
versa.  The word “shall” is mandatory while “may” is discretionary.   
 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  2 of 24 


Words and terms not explicitly defined in this Article or in one of the documents 
incorporated by reference shall have the meaning given by common and ordinary use as 
defined in Webster’s New Collegiate Dictionary.   
 
AASHTO – The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, 
which publishes documents referenced in this Article.   


Access – Entrance to or exit from land adjacent to a public road.   


ADT – Average Daily Traffic – the total volume (i.e., number of vehicles) during a given 
time period (in whole days), greater than one day and less than a year, divided by the 
number of days in that time period.   


Board of Commissioners – The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia. 


Construction Plans – Any plans required for the review, permitting and construction of a 
subdivision, including, but not limited to: Site; Grading; Street Profiles; Stormwater 
Management; Floodplain Management; Utility; Soil Erosion, Sediment, and Pollution 
Control; Soil Surveys; and Construction Details. 


County – The County of Fayette, Georgia. 


County Engineer – The official to whom the responsibilities normally associated with 
this title has been delegated.   


Cul‐de‐sac – A street, or segment of a street, with only one way in or out and which 
terminates at a turn‐around constructed in accordance with the Fayette County 
Development Regulations.   


Development – A man‐made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, 
but not limited to any activity, action, or alteration that fundamentally alters the current 
use and/or density on the property and/or construction of buildings or other structures. 


Developments of Regional Impact – Development projects that are likely to have an 
impact beyond the host local government’s jurisdiction and are subject to review and 
evaluation per the Georgia Planning Act.   


Easement – An interest in land granted by a land owner to another person, consisting of 
the right to use or control the land, or an area above or below it, for a specific limited 
purpose, such as to cross for access to a public road. 


Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan – The Thoroughfare Plan for the County of Fayette, 
Georgia, approved by the Board of Commissioners, indicating the designation of street 
type and is maintained by the Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department.   


FHWA – The Federal Highway Administration. 


GDOT – The Georgia Department of Transportation.  References to on‐line GDOT 
information is available at www.dot.ga.gov.   


Gravel Road – An unpaved public road maintained by Fayette County.  Gravel Roads 
may operate within public right‐of‐way or prescriptive easements.   







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  3 of 24 


ITE – The Institute of Transportation Engineers.  ITE publishes Trip Generation Rates that 
shall be used in estimating daily trips associated with a proposed development.   


Lot – A tract of land of varying sizes which is designated as a single unit of property.   


MUTCD – The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, current edition.   


Owner – The legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a 
mortgagee or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, 
firm or corporation in control of the site.   


Phase – A portion or section of a larger development delineated on an approved, 
recorded Final Plat.   


Plat, Final – All divisions of a tract of land into two or more lots where the lots are less 
than five acres in size and/or new streets are created.   


PROWAG – Proposed Right‐of‐Way Accessibility Guidelines developed by the Public 
Rights‐of‐Way Access Advisory Committee which provides technical assistance to 
transportation agencies and design professionals.   


Right‐of‐Way – A strip of land, often of uniform width, that is owned by Fayette County 
and used, or may be used for transportation, utilities, or similar purposes.   


Road – See “street”.  For purposes of this Article the term road and street are used 
interchangeably.   


Street – A public or private thoroughfare or road used for vehicular access to other 
streets and/or properties.  Streets may be 1) owned, operated and maintained by 
Fayette County (i.e., those within a Public Right‐of‐Way); 2) privately owned but open 
for public use and maintained by Fayette County (i.e., those within a prescriptive 
easement); or 3) privately owned and maintained (i.e., a private road).  Public streets 
are designated by type on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan. 


Subdivider – Any person, firm, corporation, association or partnership or any agent 
thereof who undertakes or proposes to undertake the subdivision of land so as to create 
a subdivision as defined herein.  


Subdivision(s) – All divisions of a tract of land into a minimum of two or more lots.  


Technical Review Committee – A committee of County staff that performs monthly 
reviews of Preliminary and Final Plats prior to submittal to the Planning Commission.   


Tract – A specified parcel of land.   


Utility – Any service available to the public by means of an overhead or underground 
distribution and/or collection systems such as electricity, telephone, water, wastewater, 
stormwater, cable, natural gas, etc. 


Zoning Administrator – The official to whom the responsibilities normally associated 
with this title have been delegated. 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  4 of 24 


Zoning Ordinance – The Zoning Ordinance enacted by the Board of Commissioners of 
Fayette County, Georgia, which is maintained and implemented by the Fayette County 
Planning and Zoning Department.   


8‐47 Design Standards and Specifications 


All roads and bridges constructed in unincorporated Fayette County shall conform to the 
standards and specifications set forth in this document as well as the following 
references: 
 


1 The GDOT Design Policy Manual, latest edition as maintained by the 
Division of Engineering Office of Design Policy & Support and available on 
the GDOT webpage; 


2 GDOT Bridge and Structures Design Manual, latest edition as maintained 
by the Office of Bridges and Structures and available on the GDOT 
webpage; 


3 GDOT Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control, latest edition 
as maintained by the Office of Traffic Safety and Design and available on 
the GDOT webpage; 


4 GDOT Standard Specifications, as applicable to the materials, methods of 
construction and workmanship used for street, drainage and bridge 
construction.  The standards and specifications are available on the GDOT 
webpage and the most recent edition shall apply;  


5 A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, latest edition, 
published by the American Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO);  


6 Guidelines for Geometric Design of Very Low‐Volume Local Roads (ADT <= 
400), latest edition, published by the American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO);  


7 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition, 
published by the Federal Highway Administration; and 


8 U.S. Traffic Calming Manual, latest edition, published by the American 
Planning Association.    


 
For all applicable sections of this Article, sight distances shall be determined using the 
methods provided in AASHTO’s Geometric Design of Highway and Streets, latest edition.   
 
In the event of a conflict between the design standards and specifications set forth in 
this Article and one of the above‐referenced documents, this code shall control.  
 
In the event of a conflict between two or more of the above‐referenced documents the 
County Engineer shall determine which controls. 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  5 of 24 


8‐48 Roadway Functional Classification 


For purposes of this Article, roadway classifications are established by the County’s 
Thoroughfare Plan.  The Thoroughfare Plan is maintained by the Fayette County 
Department of Planning and Zoning.  Any street not shown on the Thoroughfare Plan 
shall be classified by the County Engineer.   
 


1 Major Arterial – All State Routes within the County.  The primary purpose 
of these roads is to provide regional traffic movement.  Freight and truck 
traffic shall be directed to Major Arterials.   


2 Minor Arterial – Streets that provide traffic movement within the County 
and intersect one or more Major Arterials.   


3 Collector – Streets whose primary function is to collect traffic from lower 
functional roadways and provide connectivity to minor and major 
arterials.   


4 County Local – Streets that provide access to adjoining properties and 
traffic circulation within a limited area.  Freight and truck thru‐traffic is 
prohibited on County Local roads.   


5 Low‐Volume Local – A County Local road with an average daily traffic 
volume of 400 vehicles per day or less.  A road shall be designated as 
Low‐Volume Local if: 1) there is a specific request for such designation by 
County staff, property owners along an existing road, or the Owner of a 
proposed new road; 2) it meets the ADT criteria; and 3) the designation is 
approved by the Board of Commissioners.   


6 Internal Local – Streets that primarily serve an individual development 
and provides traffic circulation within that development.   


8‐49 Traffic Impact Studies 


Effective April 2, 2012, all subdivisions or site plans for proposed developments shall 
include an estimate of the average gross daily trips expected as a result of the project 
once fully developed and built‐out.  The number of trips shall be estimated using the 
ITE’s Trip Generation Rates.  A Traffic Impact Study shall be required for all 
developments estimated to generate a number of gross daily trips equal to or greater 
than threshold values established by the Engineering Department.  The ADT of existing 
roads shall be determined by the Engineering Department and the data and means used 
to do so shall be shared with the project’s Owner upon request.   
 
Traffic Impact Studies shall be prepared under the supervision of a Professional Engineer 
licensed in Georgia and with appropriate experience and knowledge of the subject 
matter.  The final report shall be stamped and signed by the Engineer.   
 
The studies shall include, at a minimum, an assessment of existing and proposed traffic 
volumes and Level of Service for all existing roads and intersections within a “zone of 
influence” proposed by the design Engineer and approved by the County’s Engineering 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  6 of 24 


Department.  Mitigation measures, to be agreed upon between the Owner and the 
Board of Commissioners, shall be required for developments causing a significant impact 
to the County’s Transportation System, as determined by the Engineering Department.  
This may include, but is not limited to, a drop in Level of Service of two letter grades 
(e.g., from LOS B to D) or any drop to a LOS of E or below that is not predicted without 
the proposed development.  LOS values shall be established for both roadway segments 
and intersections.   
 
Traffic Impact Studies shall provide options for mitigation that at least maintain the LOS 
that are predicted without the proposed subdivision or development in the year full 
build‐out is expected.  Concept‐level cost estimates for the mitigation measures shall be 
included in the report.   
 
Traffic Impact Studies, if applicable, shall be submittal with the preliminary plat for 
subdivisions or with the site plan for other types of developments.  Additional guidance 
on the development of Gross Daily Trips and Traffic Impact Studies is available through 
the County’s Engineering Department.   
 
Rezoning Applications – At the request of the Technical Review Committee, a concept‐
level Traffic Impact Study may be required by the applicant during the rezoning process.  
The purpose of the concept‐level study is to ensure the applicant and County have 1) a 
mutual understanding of the expected traffic impacts associated with the project; 2) 
agreement on the probable need for mitigation measures, and 3) similar expectations 
on the order‐of‐magnitude for the mitigation measures, if needed.  Development of a 
concept‐level Traffic Impact Study does not preclude the need for a full study at time of 
subdivision or site plan submittal nor in any way limit the ultimate findings and 
conclusions of the full study.   


8‐49.1 Exemptions 


At the discretion of the County Engineer, the following types of projects may be 
exempted from the Traffic Impact Study requirements: 


 Developments of Regional Impact (DRI); 


 Projects with one or more access point on a State Route; and 


 Projects initiated by, or partially funded by, Fayette County or one of the 
County’s incorporated areas. 


8‐50 Right‐of‐Way 


8‐50.1 When Permits/Approvals are Required 


Approval from the Fayette County Public Works Department is required prior to 
performing any construction work or non‐routine maintenance work within the County 
right‐of‐way.  This includes but is not limited to the following:  grading, landscaping, 
drainage work, and temporary access to land.  Approval may be provided in the form of 
a Driveway Application Permit, Utility Permit, Construction Plans, Land Disturbance 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  7 of 24 


Permit (issued by Stormwater Management Department) or written approval from the 
County Engineer for unique circumstances that are not covered by the aforementioned.   
 
Work performed within County right‐of‐way without proper permits/approvals is 
subject to a stop‐work order and/or barricade, displacement or closure by Public Works.  
Any costs incurred to correct work perform unlawfully shall be reimbursed to Fayette 
County by the adjacent property owner.   


8‐50.2 Right‐of‐Way Minimum Widths 


The following table serves a guide for planning, design and acquisition.   
 
  Functional Classification      Minimum Right‐of‐Way 
    Major Arterial         per GDOT 
    Minor Arterial         100 feet 
    Collector             80 feet 
    County Local             60 feet 
    Low‐Volume Local           60 feet 
    Internal Local             60 feet 
 
The above values are recommended minimum widths.  Additional right‐of‐way may be 
required based on a road’s characteristics.  In all cases the right‐of‐way shall extend at 
least 12 feet beyond the edge of pavement.   


8‐50.3 Right‐of‐Way Donation and Acquisition 


Owners shall donate right‐of‐way to Fayette County, as needed, when developing or 
improving a property in one of the manners identified below.  The amount of right‐of‐
way required for donation shall be determined by Public Works using the Functional 
Classification minimum standards prescribed above.   
 
No compensation shall be provided to the property owner for improvements (e.g., 
fences), landscaping, trees or other items located on the land to be donated, although 
Fayette County shall be responsible for removing such items, as needed, once the 
donation is made.   
 
Subdivisions – Right‐of‐way donation shall be provided, as needed, per Article XIV of 
Fayette County Development Regulations, Subdivision Regulations, for any subdivision 
that is creating one or more new lots.   
 
Non‐Residential Developments – Any non‐residential development requiring new or 
improved access to a public road and a site plan or Land Disturbance Permit from 
Fayette County shall donate right‐of‐way, as needed.  Developments that front both 
sides of a public road that does not have the minimum right‐of‐way width shall donate 
the necessary land along the development’s road frontage to meet the requirements.  
The donation shall be made equally on both sides of the road such that the road’s 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  8 of 24 


centerline is the center of the right‐of‐way.  Developments abutting only one side of 
such a road shall donate the necessary land to provide a minimum of one‐half the 
required right‐of‐way, as measured from the road’s centerline.   
 
Development Along Gravel Roads – Any development along a gravel road maintained by 
Fayette County and requiring new or improved access and a site plan or Land 
Disturbance Permit from Fayette County shall donate right‐of‐way, as needed.  
Developments along both sides of a gravel road shall donate the necessary land along 
the development’s road frontage to meet the requirements.  The donation shall be 
made equally on both sides of the road such that the road’s centerline is the center of 
the right‐of‐way.  Developments abutting only one side of such a road shall donate the 
necessary land to provide a minimum of one‐half the required right‐of‐way, as 
measured from the road’s centerline.   
 
This requirement applies to residential as well as non‐residential developments since 
any amount of development along a gravel road furthers the need for maintenance and 
increases the likelihood of paving the road in the future.   
 
Future Transportation Projects – The Public Works Department shall maintain a list of 
Transportation Projects supported by the Board of Commissioners and planned for 
implementation at some point in the future.  These projects may include, but are not 
limited to, new road construction, road widening, multi‐use path construction, and 
intersection improvement projects.  When a Future Transportation Project adjoins or 
traverses a proposed subdivision or development project, Fayette County may require 
the appropriate future right‐of‐way needed for the project to be platted as part of the 
subdivision or development project.  Unless the “future transportation project” is 
required to support the proposed subdivision or development, Fayette County shall 
purchase the property from the Owner following the County’s policy for right‐of‐way 
acquisition.  


8‐50.4 Building Line Setbacks for Future Right‐of‐Way 


The preceding section establishes requirements for right‐of‐way donation and 
acquisition associated with various land development and improvements projects.  The 
purpose of this section is to establish appropriate building line setbacks for 
developments located along roads with right‐of‐way needs, per the Thoroughfare Plan, 
but exempt from providing the required right‐of‐way at the time of development or 
subdivision.  Examples include residential building permit applications on paved roads 
and minor revisions to final plats.   
 
These developments shall establish building line setbacks from the required future right‐
of‐way line or existing right‐of‐way line, whichever is greater.  Doing so ensures the 
building or other improvement will be located a sufficient distance from the road once 
anticipated safety, operational, or capacity improvements are made to the road.  For 
example, a building application permit for construction of a new home on a paved road 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  9 of 24 


with 60 feet of right‐of‐way shall establish setbacks using a future right‐of‐way line 
measured 40‐ft from road centerline if the road is shown as a Collector per the County’s 
Thoroughfare Plan.   
 
For situations in which this requirement causes undo hardship, a variance may be 
sought through the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals per Article IX of the Fayette 
County Zoning Ordinance.   


8‐51 Construction Requirements for Roads and Streets 


8‐51.1  Road and Street Construction 


 
1. General Information – Placement of the base material and asphalt shall be 


inspected and approved by the Engineering Department as specified below.  The 
Owner of the project shall be responsible for requesting such inspections by the 
County.  A minimum advance notice of 24 hours shall be provided when 
scheduling inspections.  Placement of base and/or asphalt shall not be done until 
such inspections have been conducted.  Unless noted otherwise, all tests and 
data, as required per this section, shall be provided by the Owner at no cost to 
Fayette County.  All inspections shall be documented and include pertinent 
information such as date, time, inspector, weather, station numbers, results of 
inspection, required action, etc.   


 
2. Subgrade – Fill areas shall be constructed in 8 to 12‐inch lifts.  Individual lists 


shall be compacted using sheepsfoot rollers (or pneumatic tire rollers for 
cohesionless and low‐cohesion soils) or similar equipment capable of obtaining 
the required compaction.  The centerline profile shall conform to the established 
elevations within an acceptable tolerance of 0.1 ft (+/‐).  A surveyed as‐built 
centerline profile shall be provided to the County for all collectors and arterials, 
and for any segment of a local road identified by the Engineering Department as 
having potential safety or drainage concerns.   
 
Soil density tests shall be performed on roadway fills 4 feet in height or greater.  
Compaction tests shall be performed on every other lift (i.e., every 16 to 24 
inches) at 100‐foot intervals along the fill section.  Compaction tests shall be 
performed to within 12 inches of the final grade of the subgrade.  Fill areas shall 
be compacted to 95 percent maximum dry density per the standard proctor test 
(ASTM D‐698, AASHTO T99).  The locations of the density tests are subject to 
County approval and additional test locations may be required if there are areas 
of questionable compaction.   
 
The density testing shall be conducted by an independent third party selected by 
the Owner and approved by the Engineering Department.  If the subgrade 
compaction is less than the required percentage the Owner shall remove, 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  10 of 24 


replace, and/or re‐compact the area in question, or use other means approved 
by the Engineering Department, until the density meets the required standards.  
Signed copies of all test results shall be submitted to the Engineering 
Department. 
 
The compaction of the top 12 inches of subgrade shall be inspected by a proof 
roll inspection (see below).  The proof roll inspection of the subgrade shall not be 
conducted until all applicable density test results have been submitted to, and 
approved by, the Engineering Department.   


 
3. Lateral Subdrains – Lateral subdrains shall be installed at locations shown on the 


approved Construction Plans.  Unless approved otherwise, subdrains shall be 
placed at a minimum interval of every 500 feet for roads with a continuous grade 
of two percent or less and in all sag vertical curves and cul‐de‐sacs.  The top of 
the stone surrounding the subdrain shall be at the interface of the subgrade and 
base.  The subdrains shall extend from the road’s centerline to the nearest drop 
inlet or ditch on either side of the road.  In cul‐de‐sacs, the subdrain shall be 
designed to accommodate the location of the drop inlet and expected 
groundwater flow.   


 
Subdrains shall consist of a 6‐inch perforated plastic pipe placed near the bottom 
of a 2‐ft wide by 2‐ft deep ditch backfilled with clean No. 57 stone.  Filter fabric 
shall be placed around the perimeter of the ditch prior to backfilling and the 
fabric folded over the top prior to placement of base material.   
 
A Lateral Subdrain Detail is available from the Engineering Department to assist 
with design and installation.   


 
4. Base – Base thickness shall be verified by field measurement and shall not be 


deficient in any area by more than ½ inch from the specifications on the 
approved construction drawings.  Deficient areas shall be corrected by adding 
additional quantities of the same base material and rebuilt to the desired 
thickness.  The Owner, at his/her expense, shall prepare the holes for 
measurement.  Measuring holes shall be dug every 500 feet, or less, to confirm 
the required base thickness.  At least one additional measurement shall be taken 
for every measurement that is less than the minimum base thickness (excluding 
the ½‐inch tolerance).  A representative from the Fayette County Engineering or 
Road Department shall determine the measuring hole locations and confirm the 
depth of base.   


 
5. Proof‐Rolls – Proof‐Roll inspections shall be conducted on the subgrade prior to 


placing base and on the base prior to pacing asphalt.  The purpose of the Proof‐
Roll inspection is to ensure the subgrade and compacted based course have 
sufficient stability to support any and all types of heavy equipment used to build 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  11 of 24 


the road without pumping (i.e., vertical or horizontal displacement of the 
material due to a variety of factors, including too much water, not enough 
compaction, etc.).  Proof‐Roll compaction inspections of the subgrade and base 
(two independent inspections) shall be by a loaded tandem‐axle dump truck 
having a total weight of 56,000 pounds (28 tons).  Any area not passing the 
Proof‐Roll inspection shall be corrected by the Owner at no cost to Fayette 
County and then scheduled for re‐inspection.   


 
6. Asphaltic and Portland Cement Concrete Construction of Roads and Street – The 


following table indicates the minimum material type and thicknesses for various 
types of roads within Fayette County.  At the discretion of the Engineering 
Department, the pavement design may be dictated by the anticipated 
surrounding land use rather than functional classification.  Specifically, roads 
serving office‐institutional and commercial uses shall be built to “collector” 
standards; and roads serving manufacturing or industrial uses shall be built to 
“arterial” standards.   


 
Asphaltic Concrete Roads and Streets (minimum standards) 
Functional 
Classification 


Low‐Volume Local, 
County Local and 
Internal Local 


Collector Arterial* 


Top Course  1.5” 9.5 mm Type 2 1.5” 9.5 mm Type 2 1.5” 12.5 mm 


Binder  2.0” 19 mm 2.5” 19 mm 2.0” 19 mm 


Asphaltic Base  NA NA 3.0” 25 mm 


Base  6” Crusher Run or
GAB on roadway 


 
10” Crusher Run or 
GAB in cul‐de‐sacs 


 


8” GAB on roadway
 
 


10” GAB in cul‐de‐
sacs 
 


8” GAB on roadway 
 
 


10” GAB in cul‐de‐
sacs 
 


* The design for improvements to an arterial road or for the construction of a new 
arterial roadway shall include a pavement design that includes projected truck volumes.  
The pavement analysis shall follow current GDOT procedures and methods.  Up to a 10 
percent under‐design may be allowed if approved by the County Engineer.  In no case 
shall the pavement thickness be less than those shown in the table above.   


 
The materials, methods and quality control used for installation of asphaltic 
concrete shall meet all applicable GDOT standards and specifications including, 
but not limited to, Section 400 – Hot Mix Asphaltic Concrete Construction.   
 
Portland Cement Concrete Roads and Streets (minimum standards) 
Functional 
Classification 


County Local and
Internal Local 


Collector Arterials 


Pavement  6” concrete 
pavement 


7” concrete 
pavement 


8” concrete 
pavement 


Base  4” Crusher Run, GAB
or other material 


4” Crusher Run, GAB
or other material 


4” Crusher Run, GAB
or other material 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  12 of 24 


approved by 
Engineering 


approved by 
Engineering 


approved by 
Engineering 


 
The materials, methods and quality control used for installation of Portland 
cement concrete shall meet all applicable standards and specifications provided 
in the document titled Section 439 – Portland Cement Concrete pavement for 
Local Roads, Streets and Parking Lots, dated July 13, 2010.  A copy of these 
standards and specifications are available through the County’s Engineering 
Department.  Pavement and base thickness shall be established in the Concrete 
Design and Paving Plans prepared for each project and alternate designs (i.e., 
from those specified above) may be used if approved by the Engineering 
Department.   
 
Exceptions to applicable GDOT standards and specifications, for either asphaltic 
concrete or Portland cement concrete, may be provided, upon request, by the 
Engineering Department.  Exceptions shall only be valid if requested in writing 
and approved by the Engineering Department prior to start of paving operations.   
 


7. Core Samples – Pavement thickness shall be verified by core samples.  The 
pavement thickness shall be considered unacceptable if it is deficient in any 
sample by more than ¼ inch from the requirements on the approved 
construction drawings.  Samples shall be taken every 500 feet from the center of 
a travel lane, alternating lanes between samples.  A minimum of three samples 
shall be collected for every street (if less than 1,500 ft) with one of the three 
samples taken from the cul‐de‐sac, if present.  Additional samples may also be 
required at pavement joint lines (typically road centerline) if field observations 
indicate a concern about thickness in these locations.  At the discretion of the 
Engineering Department, additional samples may be required to isolate areas of 
concern around samples with asphalt thicknesses below the tolerance level.   
 
The remedy to correct areas with insufficient pavement shall vary depending on 
the road type.  For roads with no curb and gutter, the remedy shall include an 
overlay of an asphalt mix that matches the existing road surface and placed at a 
lift thickness within the accepted range for that mix type.  Joints shall be milled 
to allow for a smooth transition between existing and new asphalt.  The overlay 
shall extend to the nearest intersection if it is located within 100 ft of the 
problem area.   
 
For roads with curb and gutter, the asphalt, base and subgrade shall be removed, 
as needed, to allow room for placement of base and asphalt in accordance with 
the County standards and approved Construction Plans.  The finish elevation of 
the top course of asphalt shall be flush with the gutter.  Joints shall be milled to 
allow for a smooth transition between existing and new asphalt.  The overlay 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  13 of 24 


shall extend to the nearest intersection if it is located within 100 ft of the 
problem area.   


8‐52 Design Standards 


The latest edition of the AASHTO A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets 
is incorporated into this regulation by reference.  The rules and requirements contained 
within the AASHTO document shall apply to County roads and streets unless a 
regulation is in conflict or superseded by other text in this Article.  On County roads and 
streets, the Fayette County Engineering Department shall act as the implementing body 
in lieu of the Georgia Department of Transportation or AASHTO.   
 
Applicable design standards established in A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways 
and Streets include, but are not limited to, the following: 


 Sight Distance; 


 Horizontal Alignment; 


 Vertical Alignment; and 


 Other Elements Affecting Geometric Design. 
 
AASHTO’s Guidelines for Geometric Design of Very Low‐Volume Local Roads may be 
used to establish standards when the average daily traffic is expected to be less than 
400 vehicles per day.   


8‐52.1 General Road Specifications 


1. Centerline Crown – Except in areas of super elevation, all roads shall have a 
crown with a side slope of ¼ inch per foot (or approximately 2 percent).   


2. Tangents – Between reverse horizontal curves there shall be a minimum tangent 
of 50 feet for local roads and 100 feet for collectors and streets within business 
parks.  The minimum tangent for arterials shall be set by AASHTO.   


3. Superelevation – Superelevation is not required for Internal Local and Low‐
Volume Local roads. 


4. Sight Distance – Stopping Sight Distance shall be used for all applicable design 
criteria associated with Internal Local and Low‐Volume Local roads.   


5. Sag Vertical Curves – Minimum rates of vertical curvature (K values) less than 
those required by AASHTO may be approved by the Engineering Department for 
Internal Local and Low‐Volume Local roads if doing improves the overall 
drainage characteristics of that section of road and/or minimizes impacts to 
streams or wetlands without an unacceptable impact to sight distance. 


6. Horizontal Curves – The radius of horizontal curves on Internal Local streets shall 
be no less than 175 feet.  The minimum horizontal radius for all other functional 
classifications shall be set by applicable AASHTO standards.   


7. Intersections – The Minimum angle of intersection shall be set by applicable 
GDOT standards (see Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control).   


8. Design Speed, Grades and Pavement Width – See below table.   







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  14 of 24 


 
Functional 
Classification 


Design 
Speed 


Min. Grade Max. Grade Pavement 
Width 


Major Arterial  Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 


Minor Arterial  Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 Per AASHTO1 


Collector  45 mph 2% 10% 24 ft 


County Local 35 mph 2% 10% 22‐24 ft 


Low‐Volume Local  25 mph 2% 12% Per AASHTO2 


Internal Local  25 mph 2% 12% 22‐24 ft 
1 A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Street, latest edition 
2 Guidelines for Geometric Design of Very Low‐Volume Local Roads, latest edition 
 


Minimum grades as low as 1.5 percent and maximum grades as high as 15 
percent may be used for short segments if needed to accommodate site‐specific 
characteristics and the use is approved by the Engineering Department.  It is the 
responsibility of the Design Engineer to provide sufficient justification for the 
variance.   


8‐52.2 Cul‐de‐sac Specifications 


1. Dimensions – Cul‐de‐sacs shall have a minimum paved radius of 40 feet, 
excluding curb and gutter.  Larger minimum radii may be required for non‐
residential settings.   


2. Right‐of‐Way – The minimum right of way around a cul‐de‐sac shall be either 
based on a 60‐ft radius from the center of the cul‐de‐sac, or set such that the 
distance between edge of pavement and the right‐of‐way line along the roadway 
is maintained around the cul‐de‐sac, whichever is greater.   


3. Islands – Landscape islands in cul‐de‐sacs are allowed however they shall be 
considered “common space” to the development and the ownership and 
maintenance responsibilities shall be clearly defined on the final plat.  A 
minimum travel lane of 18 feet shall be provided around the island.  The 
Construction drawings shall verify appropriate turning areas for school buses, 
tractor‐trailers (53‐ft) and emergency response vehicles.   


4. Alternatives to cul‐de‐sacs – All streets shall terminate at an intersection, cul‐de‐
sac, or other County‐approved design that allows for safe and efficient turn 
around for emergency response vehicles, school buses, delivery vehicles, etc.    


8‐52.3 Stormwater Management Plan 


1. Stormwater management requirements applicable to road design and 
construction are codified in Article XIII of the Fayette County Development 
Regulations, Post‐Development Stormwater Management for New Development 
and Redevelopment.   


8‐53 Driveway and Encroachment Control 


The latest edition of the GDOT Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control is 
incorporated into this regulation by reference.  The rules and requirements contained 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  15 of 24 


within the GDOT document shall apply to County roads and streets unless a regulation is 
in conflict or superseded by other text in this Article.  On County roads and streets, the 
Fayette County Engineering Department shall act as the implementing body in lieu of 
the Georgia Department of Transportation.   
 
In situations where the following provisions (Residential Access, Nonresidential Access, 
Access for New Road Construction and Auxiliary Turn Lanes) cannot be satisfied due to 
unusual site characteristics, technical, or legal reasons, the number and location of curb 
cuts or turn lanes shall be approved by the County Engineer with input from the 
County’s Technical Review Committee.   


8‐53.1 Residential Access 


1. Zoning Ordinance Reference – Every residential lot shall meet the minimum 
requirements of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Street Frontage 
for Access. 


2. Driveway Application Permits – No new driveway to County Right‐of‐Way or 
prescriptive easement shall be made without an approved Driveway Application 
Permit from the Engineering Department.  Residential developments on Internal 
Local roads are exempt from the Driveway Application Permit requirement.   


3. Numbers of Driveways – Residential lots shall have at least one (unless a shared 
driveway is authorized) and no more than two driveway cuts.  Driveways to 
Agricultural‐Residential (A‐R) zoned properties for agricultural or other non‐
residential purposes are exempt from the two‐per‐lot limit but shall meet all 
other Residential Access standards.   


4. Location – Driveways shall be located at least two feet from any side or rear 
property line.   


5. Maximum Width – The maximum width of any driveway shall not exceed 24 feet 
at the right‐of‐way line.  For roads with prescriptive easement, the width 
measurement shall be made 18 feet back from the edge of existing road.   


6. Multiple Road Frontage – Residential lots with road frontage on multiple roads 
shall have the driveway(s) located on the street with the lowest functional 
classification unless authorized otherwise by the County Engineer.  Exceptions 
may be provided if doing so improves safety, minimizes environmental impacts, 
or is appropriate based on site‐specific physical characteristics of the property.   


7. Sight Distance – Minimum sight distances shall be satisfied for all new driveways.  
Properties on local roads, or any other County road with a posted speed limit of 
25 mph or less, shall have a minimum sight distance of 200 feet in either 
direction.  Sight distance requirements and measurements for all other roads 
shall be per GDOT’s Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.  
Fayette County shall be responsible for removing vegetation within the County 
right‐of‐way if the vegetation is restricting sight distance below the required 
amount.  The Owner shall be responsible for clearing vegetation or other 
obstructions, as needed, on private properties.   







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  16 of 24 


8. Shared Driveways – A maximum of two residential lots may share a single 
driveway if the following conditions are satisfied:   
A. The shared driveway is justified by either insufficient sight distance at one of 


the lots or otherwise authorized by the County Engineer because doing so 
improves safety, minimizes environmental impacts, or is appropriate based 
on site‐specific physical characteristics of the property;   


B. The width of the shared driveway shall be a minimum of 12 feet and 
constructed of an all‐weather surface approved by the Engineering 
Department;   


C. The driveway shall have a minimum clear zone of 20 feet that extends, 
continuous, from the right‐of‐way to both homes served by the driveway.  
The purpose of the clear zone is to ensure unobstructed emergency access to 
the homes;   


D. A permanent cross‐access easement shall be recorded and the easement 
reflected on the plat and deed of both properties; and  


E. The street address of each lot shall be clearly marked at the road and at all 
forks in the shared driveway. 


9. Circular Driveways – Each lot may have one circular (e.g., a horseshoe drive) if 
the sight distance requirements can be satisfied for both entrances.  Circular 
driveways may also connect multiple frontages if both streets have the same 
functional classification.  Circular driveways shall count as one driveway cut with 
respect to limits on the number of driveways per lot.   


10. Mailing Address – Mailing addresses are issued by the County’s Building Permits 
and Inspections Department.   


8‐53.2 Nonresidential Access 


1. Zoning Ordinance Reference – Every nonresidential lot shall meet the minimum 
requirements of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Street Frontage 
for Access. 


2. Driveway Application Permits – No new driveway to County Right‐of‐Way or 
prescriptive easement shall be made without an approved Site Plan and/or 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance from the Planning and Zoning Department.  
This requirement may be waived by the Engineering Department if the reason 
for the new driveway is a result of a County‐initiated project.   


3. Numbers of Driveways – The number of driveways for nonresidential lots shall be 
determined by the available road frontage and the minimum spacing criteria 
established in the GDOT’s Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.   


4. Multiple Road Frontage – Nonresidential lots with road frontage on multiple 
roads shall have the driveway(s) located in a manner consistent with GDOT’s 
Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.   


5. Sight Distance – Minimum sight distances shall be satisfied for all new driveways.  
Properties on local roads, or any other County road with a posted speed limit of 
25 mph or less, shall have a minimum sight distance of 200 feet in either 
direction.  Sight distance requirements and measurements for all other roads 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  17 of 24 


shall be per GDOT’s Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.  
Fayette County shall be responsible for removing vegetation within the County 
right‐of‐way if the vegetation is restricting sight distance below the required 
amount.  The Owner shall be responsible for clearing vegetation or other 
obstructions, as needed, on private properties.   


6. Design Criteria – All new or modified nonresidential driveways shall meet all 
applicable standards as established in the GDOT’s Regulations for Driveway and 
Encroachment Control.  Developments with Site Plans that requires changes to 
the parking area or internal drives shall improve existing driveways to meet 
current standards, including addition of left or right turn lanes, as applicable.   


7. Shared Driveways – Shared driveways for nonresidential lots are encouraged, 
although the following criteria shall be satisfied.   
A. The width of the shared driveway shall be a minimum of 24 feet (if two‐way) 


and paved with asphalt or concrete per the approved Site Plan;   
B. A permanent cross‐access easement shall be recorded and the easement 


reflected on the plat and deed of both properties;   
C. The street address of each lot shall be clearly marked at locations and with 


markers approved by the Fire & Emergency Services Department;  
D. Each lot shall have the minimum required road frontage; and 
E. Shared driveways are exempt from the 20‐min offset from property lines 


specified in Section 8‐217 of Article VIII.   
8. Interparcel Access – Interparcel access shall be provided between adjacent 


nonresidential properties.  If the neighboring property does not have an existing 
stub, parking lot or driveway feasible for tie‐in, then a stub shall be constructed 
to the side or rear property line.  Access easements shall be provided, as 
described above for shared driveways, to allow for thru traffic.  This requirement 
may be waived by the County Engineer if site circumstances make interparcel 
access impractical, such as natural grades in excess of 15 percent, sensitive 
environmental areas, incompatible uses, excessive distances, etc. 


9. Mailing Address – Mailing addresses are issued by the County’s Building Permits 
and Inspections Department.   


8‐53.3 Access for New Road Construction 


Listed below are the minimum distances to be provided between a new street/road and 
an existing street/road or nonresidential driveway.   
  Local    300 feet 
  Collector  400 feet 
  Arterial  500 feet 
Distances shall be measured along a right‐of‐way line from its point of intersection with 
the proposed road’s right‐of‐way line and the nearest edge of pavement of an existing 
road or nonresidential driveway.   
 
New roads shall be aligned directly across from existing streets/roads and nonresidential 
driveways or offset a distance equal to or greater than those listed above.  This 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  18 of 24 


requirement is not applicable if there is a median prohibiting left turns into and out of 
the proposed road.   


8‐53.4 Auxiliary Turn Lanes 


The need for and design criteria for auxiliary turn lanes shall be determined using the 
criteria set forth in the GDOT’s Regulations for Driveway and Encroachment Control.   
 
Furthermore, even if not warranted by the GDOT manual, any proposed road located on 
an existing County Local, Collector or Arterial and serving 20 or more single family 
houses shall have a deceleration lane.  This requirement may be waived by the 
Engineering Department if the ADT on the main road is less than 1,500 vehicles per day.  
Larger radii (beyond the 25‐ft typical) may be used for the right‐turn‐in to subdivisions 
with no deceleration lane with the goal of aiding that turning movement with minimum 
disruption to through traffic.   
 
The Engineering Department shall make recommendations to the GDOT District Traffic 
Engineer on the need for auxiliary turn lanes on state routes.   
 
A Subdivision Entrance Sign and Striping Detail is available from the Engineering 
Department to assist with design.   


8‐54 Resurfacing of County Roads and Streets 


The following requirements shall apply to resurfacing projects of County roads and 
streets by an Owner as a result of a related subdivision or development project.  Unless 
noted otherwise, all work shall be provided by the Owner at no cost to Fayette County.   


1. All work and material shall meet minimum GDOT Standard Specifications, as 
available on the GDOT web page.   


2. All weak areas, as identified by the Road Department, shall be removed and 
repaired with proper full depth patches.  All debris (e.g., soil, GAB, asphalt, etc.) 
shall be removed and disposed of properly.   


3. The surface to be overlaid shall be thoroughly cleaned and all debris removed.   
4. A tack coat of asphalt, meeting GDOT standards, shall be applied to the entire 


surface to be overlaid.   
5. Prior to placing the overlay, a County‐approved leveling course shall be used 


where necessary or as determined by the Engineering Department.   
6. The County Road Department will evaluate the existing pavement conditions and 


determine the overlay thickness using the methods in the Asphalt Institute’s 
manual, Asphalt Overlays for Highway and Street Rehabilitation.  For all streets 
other than residential, actual traffic counts will be obtained and coring (by 
Owner), or other acceptable methods of obtaining the actual existing pavement 
thickness, will be utilized.  In no case shall an overlay thickness be less than 1 
inch.   


7. For roads with curb and gutter, the top layer(s) of asphalt shall be removed by 
milling if the top elevation of the proposed overlay will be 1.5 inches or more 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  19 of 24 


above the top of gutter.  Fayette County may elect to share milling costs if it is 
desired to remove more than the minimum thickness required for the 
resurfacing.   


8‐55 Traffic Control Devices 


The fabrication and placement of all street names, signs, traffic control signs, posts, 
striping, pavement markings, raised pavement markers (RPMs), traffic signals and 
associated signage shall conform to the standards, materials, and requirements of the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition and the GDOT 
Standards and Specifications.   
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to alter, deface or take down any street name, 
property number, traffic control sign, or signal placed in accordance with this provision 
except for repair or replacement.   


8‐55.1 Street Names and Property Address Numbers 


Street names shall not duplicate or be similar in sound or spelling to the names of 
existing streets in the county.  Hyphenating, dividing one word into two words, affixing 
“Drive” for “Road”, etc., or other manipulations of an existing street name shall not 
constitute an acceptable street name.  Similar sounding names shall be unacceptable 
regardless of spelling.   


1. Continuity of Street Names – A continuous street, one proposed to be 
continuous, or one proposed to continue an existing street shall bear the same 
name throughout. 


2. Subdivision Street Address Numbering – The County’s established street address 
numbering system shall be utilized for all subdivisions in the county. 


3. Maximum Character Count – Street names shall be such that the maximum 
number of characters or spaces required on a sign is 20.  (For example, “Brooks 
Woolsey Road” has a character count of 19.) 


4. Address Numbers – Every building shall be assigned and display an address 
number.  The size and location of the address number shall meet the 
International Fire Code requirements.  If a mailbox is located at the street, such 
mailbox shall have the property number affixed thereto with numerals 
measuring at least three inches in height.   


See Fayette County’s Subdivision Regulations for additional information on Property 
Addresses and approval of Street Names and Subdivision Names. 


8‐55.2 Street Signs and Traffic Control Signs 


1. Installation Responsibility – Street name sign, traffic control signs, and posts shall 
be installed by the Owner at the Owner’s expense per a Sign and Marking Plan 
approved the Engineering Department.   


2. Decorative Posts and Frames – Ornamental posts and frames may be used within 
Developments, pending approval by the Engineering Department, however all 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  20 of 24 


signs shall conform to the MUTCD with respect to size, shape, color, material and 
reflectivity.  Fayette County will not maintain or provide material replacements 
to match decorative frames and posts.  If replacement of any ornamental traffic 
control sign within the right‐of‐way is required, Fayette County Road 
Department will provide a standard post, frame and sign.   


3. Field Approval – All traffic control devices shall be installed and functional prior 
to Final Plat approval unless written exception is provided by the County 
Engineer, in which case installation requirements shall be incorporated into a 
performance bond for the subdivision.   


4. Intersection Ahead Warning Sign – For each new subdivision entrance, the Sign 
and Marking Plan shall include two intersection warning signs (e.g., W2‐2L) with 
accompanying intersecting street name placards for placement on the main 
road.   


8‐55.3 Pavement Markings 


1. Specifications – Pavement markings shall be installed by the Owner at the 
Owner’s expense per a Sign and Marking Plan approved by the Engineering 
Department.  Striping and marking materials shall meet all applicable GDOT 
standards and specifications. 


2. Thermoplastic – Thermoplastic pavement markings are required for all striping 
work on State Routes, arterials, collectors and at subdivision entrances.   


3. Internal Local Roads – No pavement markings are required on internal local 
roads except for those indicated on the County’s Subdivision Entrance Sign and 
Striping Detail.   


8‐55.4 Traffic Signals 


1. Specifications – Traffic signal requirements vary dependent upon field conditions 
and proximity to other signals, however, GDOT and MUTCD standards shall be 
satisfied.   


2. Interconnectivity – When, in the opinion of the Road Department, it is necessary 
to provide traffic signal interconnectivity, coordination and/or signal timing 
optimization due to the close proximity of a proposed signal (required for an 
Owner’s project) with an existing signal, the Owner shall prepare and submit 
appropriate plans and traffic studies to the Road Department for review.  Once 
approved, the Owner shall perform the work per the plans and schedule agreed 
to by the County.  Performance bonds may be required for delayed work. 


3. Warrant Study – A warrant study satisfying MUTCD criteria may be required 
prior to approval for installation of a traffic signal on a County Road.  Signal 
installation on County Roads shall be permitted at the discretion of the Road 
Department.   







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  21 of 24 


8‐56 Utilities 


1. Locations – In order to promote uniformity in installation and more effective and 
less damaging maintenance, utilities shall be located per the locations specified 
in the Fayette County Typical Utility Locations detail, available from the 
Engineering Department.  Exceptions to the designated utility location shall be 
made, in writing, to the County Engineer for consideration.   


2. Utility Permits – No utility work shall be performed within County right‐of‐way 
without a Utility Permit approved by the Engineering or Road Department.  
Supporting information for the permit shall include a description of the proposed 
work, location (with starting and ending limits) and timeframe.  In addition, the 
utility shall agree to the following conditions: 


 Any damaged caused to the existing pavement or shoulders of road will 
be repaired and guaranteed, at no cost to the County, by the utility 
company; 


 Fayette County shall not be liable for any un‐willful damage to the 
utility by County maintenance forces in the future; and 


 The utility shall be relocated and/or adjusted by the utility company at 
no cost to Fayette County if it is ever necessary or desired to rebuild, 
widen or improve the road in a manner that conflicts with the utility.   


A fee may be required for the permit. 


8‐57 Sidewalks 


Sidewalks may be installed by an Owner within County right‐of‐way in accordance with 
the following specifications: 


1. Location – The location of proposed sidewalks shall be shown on the project’s 
construction plans and are subject to County approval.  Consideration should be 
given to utility placement and any proposed trees.  Water meters, valves and 
other access points shall be located outside the sidewalk.  Sidewalks shall be 
located a minimum of 4 feet from back of curb  to allow for sign placement and 
at least 8 feet from back of curb if street trees are proposed.   


2. Dimensions – Sidewalks shall be between 4 and 6 feet wide and a minimum 
thickness of 4 inches.  A standard width shall be maintained around all obstacles 
such as poles, utility boxes, etc.   


3. Material and Finish – Sidewalks shall be Portland cement concrete with a 
minimum 28‐day compressive strength of 3,000 psi.  The concrete shall be 
finished with tamps, floats and stiff‐bristle brooms.   


4. Cross‐Slope – The maximum allowable cross‐slope shall not exceed 2.0 percent 
(PROWAG R301.4.1) 


5. Longitudinal Slope – The longitudinal slope (grade) of a sidewalk shall not exceed 
the general grade established for the adjacent street (PROWAG R301.4.2).  In 
cases where the sidewalk alignment deviates from the adjacent roadway, the 
longitudinal slope shall not exceed 8.3 percent (PROWAG 303.2.1.1).   







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  22 of 24 


6. Curb Ramps – In accordance with the ADA, accessible curb ramps shall be 
included on pedestrian facilities.  The ramp profile shall have a running slope 
between 5.0 and 8.3 percent (PROWAG R406.2).  The ramp shall be placed in line 
with pedestrian flow and crosswalks, and the edges of a diagonal curb ramp shall 
be parallel to the direction of pedestrian flow.  Refer to GDOT Construction 
Standards and Details for additional information regarding the typical location, 
design and construction of sidewalks and curb ramps.   


7. Sidewalk Surface – The surface of the sidewalk shall be firm, stable and slip 
resistant.  Surface discontinuities shall not exceed ½ inch maximum vertical or 
horizontal (PROWAG R301.5.2). 


8. Expansion Joints – One‐half inch expansion joints shall be constructed with a pre‐
formed or pre‐molded elastic and resilient material.  Expansion joints shall be 
provided wherever a sidewalk abuts an existing structure, such as another 
sidewalk, curb, ramp or driveway, and at a maximum 60 feet interval along a 
sidewalk.   


9. Traverse Contraction Joints – Contraction joints, or false joints, shall be spaced 
every 5 to 6 feet along the sidewalk.  The joints shall be perpendicular to the 
edge and straight.  All edges shall be rounded to ¼‐inch radius.   


10. ADA Compliance – Sidewalks shall be designed in accordance with the Americans 
with Disability Act’s Title II requirements.   


11. Sidewalk Repair – Fayette County shall repair sidewalks that are damaged if 
located within the County right‐of‐way.  Repairs shall be made in a prioritized 
manner and as funds allow.  The responsibility and cost for repair may be 
deferred to the adjacent property owner if the damage was a result of 
negligence by the property owner.  Fayette County shall not be responsible for 
the maintenance of sidewalks, including work such as edging of vegetation, 
insect control, or cleaning.   


8‐58 Roundabouts 


The use of roundabouts for intersection control is encouraged.  Design criteria shall 
follow the most recent guidelines available from the Federal Highway Administration, 
however exceptions to standard design criteria shall be considered by the Engineering 
Department if they are not appropriate or applicable for Internal Local or Low‐Volume 
roads.  Conflicts among one or more sources shall be discussed with the Engineering 
Department during concept design (i.e., at the preliminary plat for subdivision projects).  
The project Owner shall provide a traffic study to help determine the functionality and 
required design characteristics of the proposed roundabout.  The study may be limited 
to demonstrating adequate turning radii for roundabouts within Internal Local or Low‐
Volume roads.   


8‐59 Traffic Calming  


The use of traffic calming measures on local roads, particularly internal locals, is 
encouraged.  The American Planning Association’s U.S. Traffic Calming Manual is one 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  23 of 24 


guideline for determining appropriate use of and design of traffic calming methods, 
although other sources of reference material will be considered when evaluating 
designs.  Physical traffic calming measures shall be provided within any section of new 
road having a tangent section of 750 feet or more and a functional classification of 
County Local or less.   
 
Additional information on the use of non‐physical and physical deterrents for traffic 
calming on County Roads is available through the Engineering Department.   


8‐60 Landscape Islands 


Landscape islands within a road may be installed by an Owner within County right‐of‐
way in accordance with the following specifications: 


1. Location – The landscape island shall not restrict sight distance for vehicles 
making turns onto or off the road with the landscape island.   


2. Right‐of‐Way – Right‐of‐way shall be increased to a minimum of 80 ft around the 
island and include appropriate transitions back to the standard right‐of‐way 
width.   


3. Curb and Gutter – Landscape islands shall be delineated with curb and gutter 
regardless of whether curb and gutter is required in the remainder of the 
subdivision.   


4. Drainage – the construction plans for the project shall provide positive drainage 
(2 percent minimum) away from the landscape island or provide catch basins on 
either side of the island.   


5. Island Width – Landscape islands shall have a maximum width of 18 feet, 
measured back of curb to back of curb.  Proposed green space wider than 18 feet 
shall be considered a median and addressed on a case‐by‐case basis by the 
Engineering Department.   


6. Travel Lanes – Single travel lanes adjacent to landscape islands at the entrance of 
a subdivision shall have a minimum width of 16 feet, although the pavement 
shall be striped to maintain a 12‐ft drive lane.  Two lanes or more in the same 
direction may have the standard lane width used throughout the subdivision.   


7. Ownership and Maintenance – Fayette County does not accept ownership of a 
landscape island within right‐of‐way as County property.  The County shall not be 
responsible for the maintenance or repair of the island or its vegetation.  
Instead, maintenance and repair of island are the responsibility of the property 
owner (typically a Homeowners Association).   


8. Easements – A permanent easement shall be provided from the owner of the 
landscape island to Fayette County.  The purpose of the easement shall be to 
provide Fayette County the right to clear vegetation and structures from 
landscape areas if needed to maintain appropriate sight distance around the 
island.  A minimum ten‐day notice shall be provided to the owner prior to 
Fayette County performing any clearing in a landscape island.  The easement 
shall also specify that Fayette County shall not be responsible for replacing or 







Draft – For BOC April 12th, 2012 meeting.   


3/30/2012  24 of 24 


compensating for any vegetation or structure(s) cleared or damage as a result of 
the effort to restore necessary sight distance.   


 





		Engineering- Street Design St...e III Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Street Design Standards Article III Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to award Proposal #P817 for Fire Station Architectural Services to The Howell Group, in the amount of 


$98,000, and to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or any related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The County is planning for the relocation of Fire Station Number 3.  Property has been acquired and preparation for construction is 


underway.  Staff has gone through a substantial process of seeking and reviewing firms suitable to design and engineer the new 


structure and to prepare requests for bids so that a contractor for the construction of the building can be sought. 


 


During the March 8th Workshop, Public Safety Director Allen McCullough and staff provided an overview of what the process has been 


for soliciting an engineering firm and how their recommendation was arrived at.  The Board agreed with staff's recommendation.


Approval of staff's request to award Proposal #P817 for Fire Station Architectural Services to The Howell Group, in the amount of 


$98,000, and to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or any related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding has been budgeted and available for construction of Fire Station Number 3.


Yes Wednesday, April 4, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012















 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  April 4, 2012 
 
Subject: Bid #817 – Replace Fire Station #3 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Request for Proposals #817 to acquire architectural, 
engineering, and interior design services for replacement of Fire Station #3 in Tyrone.  Invitations 
were direct-mailed to 36 firms.  In addition, invitations were extended via a local newspaper, the 
county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and television 
Channel 23 in the usual manner. 
 
Twenty four vendors responded to the Request for Proposals (please see attached tally sheet).  
A committee was convened to select the proposal that offered the best value.  The committee 
was represented by Fire and Emergency Services, Permits and Inspections, Building and 
Grounds Maintenance, and Purchasing.  Each committee member evaluated all 24 proposals 
based on criteria stated in the Request for Proposals: 
 


 Experience with construction projects for fire stations and public safety facilities. 
 Experience in designing projects of similar size and type. 
 Professional experience of proposed design staff and key consultants. 
 Evaluation of previous design work, project management, and feedback from references. 
 Proposed fee and hourly rates. 
 Location of the office and personnel that will perform the work. 


 
Committee members reached a consensus on the top four proposals.  These four were invited to 
make presentations to the committee.  Based on additional information gained from the 
presentations plus reference checks, The Howell Group, Inc. was the consensus of the 
committee as the best overall combination of relevant experience, professional approach, and 
other considerations, as compared to price quotes. 
 
The Howell Group’s initial quote had been $102,000.  The Purchasing Department negotiated a 
best and final offer of $98,000.  The committee recommends The Howell Group for the project, 
and the Purchasing Department agrees with the recommendation. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





COMPANY NAME
TOTAL PROPOSED 


AMOUNT
1. ACREAGE TO EDEN, INC. $48,000.00
2. K.A. OLDHAM DESIGN, INC. $81,650.00
3. 2WR IF GEORGIA, INC. $84,500.00
4. SMITH DESIGN GROUP, INC. $89,000.00
5. CLARK PATTERSON LEE $89,700.00
6. IPG, INCORPORATED $99,000.00
7. WILBY / WILSON $102,000.00
8. THE HOWELL GROUP, INC. $102,000.00
9. POPE/PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, INC. $103,000.00
10. HARRIS FRITZ & ASSOCIATES, INC. $110,600.00
11. TUNNELL-SPANGLER-WALSH & ASSOCIATES $118,000.00
12. LYMAN DAVIDSON DOOLEY, INC. $118,500.00
13. FACILITY DESIGN GROUP INC. $124,412.00
14. RUTLEDGE ALCOCK ARCHITECTS $126,000.00
15. AIM PARTNERS, PLC $133,442.00
16. PRECISION PLANNING, INC. $149,000.00
17. CAS ARCHITECTURE, P.C. $149,500.00
18. POND & COMPANY $159,300.00
19. BROWN DESIGN GROUP, INC. $184,500.00
20. STUDIO ALA, LLC $188,650.66
21. RICHARD W. SPEARS ARCHITECT, INC. - STEWART COOPER NEWELL ARCHITECTS $200,000.00
22. ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC. (ATKINS) $238,000.00
23. GARDNER SPENCER SMITH TENCH & JARBEAU, P.C. $245,000.00
24. WILLIAMS-RUSSELL AND JOHNSON, INC. $270,000.00


PROPOSAL NUMBER:                   #P817                                                            
PROPOSAL NAME:   FIRE STATION ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN             
OPENING DATE:          3:00PM,  TUESDAY, JANUARY 31, 2012            


4/5/2012 P:\Ted B\Fire EMS\817 Fire Stn\817 Tally ‐ Fire Stn Architect.xls





		Fire and EMS- Architectural D...ion 3 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Architectural Design Station 3 Backup

		Fire and EMS- Architectural Design Station 3 Backup

		Fire & EMS - Update on RFP Architectural Design Station 3 - AgendaRequestFile

		Fire & EMS - Update on RFP Architectural Design Station 3 - Backup



		Architectural Design Stn 3 - Purchasing Backup 1.pdf

		Architectural Design Stn 3 - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to purchase 35 laptop computers from CDW, through a State contract, for Fire and Emergency Services' 


Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system in an amount not to exceed $49,875.00.


Fire and Emergency Services' Fiscal Year 2012 CIP (Capital Improvements Project) budget has been approved for the purchase of 


laptop computers that are able to access the County's Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)  information while in the field.   


 


Staff is requesting the ability to purchase thirty-five (35) Lenovo ThinkPad X220 Tablet computers at a cost of $1,425.00 each.  These 


computers will be purchased from CDS through a State contract, at an aggregate cost of $49,875.00. 


 


Approval of staff's request to purchase 35 laptop computers from CDW, through a State contract, for Fire and Emergency Services' 


Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system in an amount not to exceed $49,875.00. 


Funding for this request will come three separate budgets:  Public Safety, Emergency Medical Services, and Fire.  The budget category 


is 542420 in projects 2270B, 2272A, and 2930B.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012





















		Fire and EMS- Laptop Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Laptop Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services Allen McCullough


Approval of staff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign a six month "Agreement of Temporary Automatic Aid for Fire and 


Emergency Medical Services" that will authorize the City of Peachtree City to provide emergency assistance to a portion of Fayette 


County.


The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) has contracted with E.R. Snell for road and intersection improvements for Georgia 


Highway 85 at Bernard Road.  In order to complete this work, a large portion of Bernard Road will be closed for six (6) months; however, 


construction estimates indicate that the closure time could be slightly less than that anticipated timeframe. Fayette County and the City of 


Peachtree City have determined that closing a large portion of Bernard Road will reduce emergency response to that part of the road as 


well as to Redwine Road and "associated subdivisions with access from these roads".   


 


The "Agreement of Temporary Automatic Aid for Fire and Emergency Medical Services" authorizes the City of Peachtree City's Fire and 


Rescue to "render supplemental fire prevention, fire suppression, emergency medical, hazardous material, technical rescue, and support 


assistance to the other party in the event of a fire, emergency medical, hazardous material, or technical rescue incident or other local 


emergency during the time of this road construction for a period not to exceed six (6) months from the time of agreement." 


 


A clause is included with the agreement to extend its timeframe, if needed. 


 


Approval of staff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign a six month "Agreement of Temporary Automatic Aid for Fire and 


Emergency Medical Services" that will authorize the City of Peachtree City to provide emergency assistance to a portion of Fayette 


County.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012







 1 


AGREEMENT OF TEMPORARY 


AUTOMATIC AID 


FOR FIRE & EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY / PEACHTREE CITY 


 
This agreement is made and entered into this _______ day of _______ 2012,  


 


by and between Fayette County, a political subdivision of the State of  


 


Georgia, acting by and through its duly elected Board of Commissioners, and the City of  


 


Peachtree City, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, acting by  


 


and through its duly elected Mayor and Council. 


 


WITNESSETH: 


 
 WHEREAS, Fayette County and Peachtree City, Georgia are contiguous; and 


 


 WHEREAS, Fayette County and Peachtree City, Georgia each maintain and staff  


 


a fire department for the purpose of fire prevention, fire suppression, emergency medical,  


 


hazardous material, technical rescue, and support services; and 


 


 WHEREAS, Fayette County and Peachtree City, Georgia have determined that  


 


due to the closing of a portion of Bernard Road that is critical to emergency response to a  


 


large portion of Bernard Road, Redwine Road and associated subdivisions with access  


 


from these roads, it is to the benefit of the citizens living and traveling in this area and  


 


each of the parties hereto that Peachtree City Fire & Rescue render supplemental fire  


 


prevention, fire suppression, emergency medical, hazardous material, technical rescue,  


 


and support assistance to the other party in the event of a fire, emergency medical,  


 


hazardous material, or technical rescue incident or other local emergency during the time  


 


of this road construction for a period not to exceed six (6) months from the time of  


 







 2 


agreement. 


 


WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties hereto to enter into this agreement for  


 


Automatic Aid (Mutual Response) pursuant to the 1983 Constitution of  


 


the State of Georgia, Article IX, Section 11, Paragraph 3 and the Official Code of  


 


Georgia Annotated O.C.G.A. 8 36- 69- I, ct. seq. – “The Georgia Mutual Aid Act.” 


 


 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration, of the mutual covenants contained  


 


herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereunto agree as  


 


follows: 


 


ARTICLE I- AUTOMATIC AID (MUTUAL RESPONSE) 
 


 Paragraph 1.0  The parties shall establish a response district  


 


which shall exist within and up to certain feasible boundary limits as designated and  


 


agreed upon by the Fayette County Fire Chief and the Peachtree City Fire Chief.  Said  


 


agreed upon streets will be recorded in a document written and signed by both the  


 


Fayette County Fire Chief and the Peachtree City Fire Chief.  Subsequently, that  


 


document shall be attached and incorporated into this agreement as Addendum A.  The  


 


area will hereinafter be referred to as “response district.”  This response district may be  


 


changed to reflect additions or deletions of response areas with the written approval of  


 


both Fire Chief’s. 


 


 Paragraph 1.1  In the event of any fire, emergency medical, hazardous material,  


 


or technical rescue incident, or other local emergency occurring in the response district,  


 


Fayette County and Peachtree City shall furnish such fire, emergency medical, hazardous  


 


material, technical rescue, or support services as may be reasonably required to cope with  


 


such emergency, in addition to the first response assignment, but subject to the  


 







 3 


limitations hereinafter set forth in this agreement. 


 


 Paragraph 1.2  The level of Automatic Aid (Mutual Response) shall exist at a  


 


level mutually agreed upon by the Fayette County Fire Chief and the Peachtree City Fire  


 


Chief.  Said Agreements shall be written and signed by the Fayette County Fire Chief and  


 


the Peachtree City Fire Chief.  Subsequently, the document shall be attached to this  


 


Agreement as Addendum B. 


 


ARTICLE 2- SUPERVISION 
 


 Paragraph 3.0  The jurisdiction furnishing Automatic Aid shall  


 


dispatch a Task Force/ Strike Team Leader.  This Task Force/ Strike Team Leader shall  


 


hold the rank of Chief Officer or the highest rank of Company Officer available and  


 


capable of serving as an Acting Chief Officer for the furnishing/ responding jurisdiction.   


 


The Task Force/ Strike Team Leader shall coordinate the resources of the furnishing/  


 


responding jurisdiction and shall report to the Incident Commander of the jurisdiction  


 


having authority over the incident. 


 


 Paragraph 3.1  When the furnishing/ responding jurisdiction’s Task Force/ Strike  


 


Team Leader arrives prior to the arrival of the unit(s) of the jurisdiction receiving  


 


Automatic Aid, then the Task Force/ Strike Team Leader of the  


 


furnishing/ responding jurisdiction shall assume the duties of the Incident Commander as  


 


if the incident had occurred in the furnishing/ responding jurisdiction’s own jurisdiction.   


 


This Task Force/ Strike Team Leader shall be the temporary Incident Commander until a  


 


transfer of command can occur between the temporary Incident Commander and the  


 


officer to be in command for the jurisdiction receiving Automatic Aid. 


 


 Paragraph 3.2  Personnel from the furnishing/ responding jurisdiction will take  


 







 4 


commands specific to their performance from the Incident Commander, or his designee;  


 


will work with their own equipment in all possible circumstances. 


 


 Paragraph 3.3  The commanding officers of the jurisdiction receiving the  


 


Automatic Aid except as provided in Paragraph 3.1 will give all general  


 


direction for handling the incident. 


 


 Paragraph 3.4  Any incidents occurring within the jurisdiction of Fayette County  


 


and Peachtree City will be managed utilizing the National Incident Management System. 


 


ARTICLE 4- LIABILITY 
 


 Paragraph 4.0  There shall be no liability imposed on any party or its personnel  


 


for failure to respond to an incident due to resource limitations. 


 


 Paragraph 4.1  Every employee shall be deemed to be the employee and agent of  


 


their regular employer, and under no circumstances shall any employee be deemed to be  


 


an employee or agent of any entity other than their regular employer. 


 


 Paragraph 4.2  All damages or repairs to any equipment or apparatus shall be the  


 


responsibility of the jurisdiction which owns said equipment or apparatus.  However, in  


 


cases where State or Federal assistance is made available, all responding jurisdictions  


 


shall be treated as if they were a part of the jurisdiction receiving Automatic Aid for the  


 


purpose of the distribution of resources or reimbursements.  Said  


 


disbursement shall be proportionate to the level of actual involvement in the incident that  


 


precipitated the receipt of Automatic Aid. 


 


Paragraph 4.3  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to be a  


 


waiver of either the County or the City sovereign immunity, any individual’s qualified  


 


immunity, official immunity, or any other immunity or exemption from liability provided  


 







 5 


for by law. 


ARTICLE 5- CONSIDERATIONS 
 


 Paragraph 5.0  No party under this Agreement will be required to pay any  


 


compensation to any other party under this Agreement for services rendered pursuant to  


 


this agreement. 


 


 Paragraph 5.1  It is expressly agreed that the mutual advantage and protection  


 


afforded by this Agreement is adequate consideration to both parties for services rendered  


 


pursuant to this Agreement. 


 


 Paragraph 5.2  Each party to this Agreement shall comply with the Workers  


 


Compensation laws of the State of Georgia at no cost to the other party. 


 


 Paragraph 5.3  Each party shall pay the salaries, benefits, and all other  


 


compensation of its own personnel at no cost to the other party. 


 


ARTICLE 6- RELEASE OF CLAIMS 


 


 Paragraph 6.0  Each party agrees to release the other party from any and all  


 


liabilities, claims, judgments, costs, or demands for damage to its own property whether  


 


directly or indirectly arising out of the use of any vehicle, equipment, or apparatus by the  


 


party to which said property does not belong during the provision of service pursuant to  


 


this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 7- INJURIES TO PERSONNEL 
 


 Paragraph 7.0  Any damage or other compensation which is required to be paid  


 


to any employee by reason of an injury occurring while their services are being utilized  


 


by the responding and/ or receiving jurisdictions pursuant to this Agreement shall be the  


 


sole liability and responsibility of the party regularly employing that employee. 


 







 6 


ARTICLE 8- NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 


 Paragraph 8.0  This Agreement shall not be construed as, or deemed to be, an  


 


agreement for the benefit of any third party or parties.  No third party or parties shall have  


 


any right of action hereunder for any cause whatsoever. 


 


ARTICLE 9- TERM 
 


 Paragraph 9.0  This Agreement shall commence and continue until  


 


completion of the road work and the road is opened for emergency response or for six (6)  


 


months whichever would occur first .  This Agreement shall automatically be renewed  


 


should the six (6) month time frame occur and the roadway not be finished. The renewal  


 


period would be for one (1) month increments as agreed upon by the Fire Chief’s. 


 


 Paragraph 9.1  Nothing in this Article shall preclude termination pursuant to  


 


Article 15. 


 


ARTICLE 10- DISPATCHING OF ALARM- AUTOMATIC AID 


 
 Paragraph 10.0  The dispatcher of the jurisdiction having command over the  


 


incident will dispatch his or her department’s pre- assigned apparatus first should mutual  


 


dispatch not be available through the Communications Center. 


 


Paragraph 10.1  The dispatcher of the jurisdiction having command over the  


 


incident will then contact the fire department to provide Automatic Aid to the incident,  


 


and advise that department of the need for Automatic Aid. 


 


Paragraph 10.2  When dispatching apparatus to a location involving the use of  


 


Automatic Aid, each party’s dispatcher will make the other party and responding  


 


personnel aware that Automatic Aid is responding.  This will enable the potential  


 


Incident Commander to know precisely what equipment he or she can expect to arrive on  







 7 


 


the scene. 


 


ARTICLE 11- INCIDENT SCENE COMMUNICATIONS 
 


 Paragraph 11.0  The officer in command of the jurisdiction having authority  


 


over the incident shall provide specific instructions to the officer in command of the  


 


jurisdiction responding to the incident with Automatic Aid services via radio or in person  


 


upon arrival on the scene. 


 


Paragraph 11.1  Upon arriving on the incident scene, the officer in command of  


 


the jurisdiction responding with Automatic Aid and the officer in command of the  


 


jurisdiction receiving Automatic Aid shall keep his or her respective department  


 


informed of the status of the operation.  If it appears that the Automatic Aid equipment  


 


will be needed at the incident scene for an extended period of time, the officer in  


 


command of the forces of both the responding and receiving jurisdictions shall so advise  


 


his or her dispatcher. 


 


ARTICLE 12- MOVE UP OF EQUIPMENT 
 


 Paragraph 12.0  Each party agrees and acknowledges that it will be the  


 


responsibility of each party to provide the back up coverage necessary for the operations  


 


of its own department. 


 


 Paragraph 12.1  In the event that a jurisdiction determines that it has deployed a  


 


substantial portion of its fire suppression or specialized equipment on a single incident,  


 


then the jurisdiction may request Mutual Aid to cover vacant areas.  Such Mutual Aid  


 


would be rendered at the discretion of the jurisdiction requested to render assistance by  


 


moving up Mutual Aid units into the vacant areas of the jurisdiction requesting Mutual  


 


Aid. 







 8 


ARTICLE 13- ADMINISTRATION 
 


 Paragraph 13.0  The Fayette County Fire Chief and the Peachtree City Fire Chief  


 


agree to cooperate and be jointly responsible for the proper administration of this  


 


Agreement. 


ARTICLE 14- ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 


 Paragraph 14.0  This Agreement and the attached addenda shall constitute the  


 


entire agreement between the parties and no modification thereof shall be binding unless  


 


evidenced by a subsequent written agreement signed by the Fayette County Fire Chief  


 


and the Peachtree City Fire Chief. 


 


Paragraph 14.1  This Agreement shall be the instrument which controls the  


 


provision of any emergency Automatic Aid between the parties. 


 


ARTICLE 15- TERMINATION 
 


 Paragraph 15.0  Either party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement by  


 


giving not less than ten (10) days advance notice to the other party. 


 


ARTICLE 16- SEVERABILITY OF TERMS 
 


 Paragraph 16.0  In the event any part or provision of this Agreement is held to  


 


be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall  


 


continue in full force and effect. 


 


ARTICLE 17- NOTICES 
 


 Paragraph 17.0  All notices or other communications required or permitted to be  


 


given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly  


 


delivered to the party intended to receive said notice or communication when delivered  


 


personally, in hand, or when mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt  


 







 9 


requested with proper postage prepaid and addressed to the appropriate party at the  


 


appropriate address. 


 


ARTICLE 18- GOVERNING LAW 
 


 Paragraph 18.0  This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of  


 


the State of Georgia.  Should any litigation arise under the provisions of this Agreement  


 


or related to this Agreement, proper venue shall lie in court of competent jurisdiction in  


 


Fayette County. 


 


SO RESOLVED this _______ day of _________________________ 2012. 


 


 


________________________________  ______________________________ 


Mayor, City of Peachtree City   Fire Chief, City of Peachtree City 


 


 


________________________________ 


City Clerk, City of Peachtree City 


 


 


 


 


  


 


SO RESOLVED this _______ day of ___________________________ 2012. 


 


 


_________________________________  ______________________________ 


Chairman,       Fire Chief, Fayette County 


Fayette County Board Of Commissioners   


 


_________________________________ 


County Clerk, 


Fayette County 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 10 


AGREEMENT OF TEMPORARY 


AUTOMATIC AID 


FOR FIRE & EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY / PEACHTREE CITY 


 


Addendum A 


 


Streets within the Response District: 


 


ASHBOROUGH PK 


BEL AIRE LOOP 


BERNHARD RD 


BIRKDALE DR 


BRIAR MEADOW CT 


BRISBANE CT 


BROADMOOR DR 


BROWNS CROSSING DR 


BURBURY CLOSE 


CADENCIA CT 


CARNOUSTIE WAY 


CARROLLS WAY 


CHERRY HILLS DR 


CHESHIRE CHASE 


COLONY PT 


CONSERVATORY PT 


COTTONMILL CT 


COUNTY DOWN 


COVENTRY CT 


DARREN DR 


DORAL CT 


DRESDEN PL 


FARMS RD 


GLEN GROVE 


GLENFARE TRC 


GLENWOOD CHASE 


GREENBROOK WAY 







 11 


HEMLOCK CT 


HIGHGROVE DR 


INVERNESS SHORES DR 


ISLEWORTH WAY 


JEFFERSON WOODS DR 


KAPALUA PT 


KILLARNEY DR 


LONGMEAD DR 


MEETING HOUSE RD 


MOCKINGBIRD TR 


MONARCH DR 


NEWHAVEN DR 


OAK SHADOW WAY 


OLD IVY 


OLD VALLEY PT 


PEBBLE BEACH DR 


PLEASANT HL 


QUARTERS RD 


REDWINE RD 


RIVIERA CT 


S PEACHTREE PKW 


SENECA PL 


SHOAL CREEK RD 


SILVERMERE 


SOUTHGATE DR 


SPRING MIST DR 


ST ANDREWS DR 


ST CHARLES PL 


STONEBRIAR LN 


STONEHAVEN DR 


STREAMVIEW CT 


STRICKLAND CT 


SUFFOLK PL 


SWILCAN CT 


TALL TIMBER CT 


TARRAGON DR 







 12 


TRALEE DR 


TROON DR 


TROTTERS RDG 


TURNBERRY CIR 


WEST CREEK CT 


WELLBORN CHASE 


WENTWORTH CT 


WHITEGATE DR 


WINGED FOOT TRL 


WOODBERRY PL 


WOODCREEK LN 


WOODLEIGH DR 


WOODMERE LN 


 


Map to accompany: 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 13 


 


AGREEMENT OF TEMPORARY 


AUTOMATIC AID 


FOR FIRE & EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY / PEACHTREE CITY 


 


Addendum B 


 


Mutual Aid Level of Response 


 


Fayette County requests the following type unit as a first response: 


 


Fire (Any Type):  One (1) Engine 


 


Medical (Any Type):  One (1) Medic Unit 


 


Fayette County will respond a standard response to all calls in the outlined area. Unless 


PTC encounters a critical patient requiring immediate transport only first response is 


requested under this agreement. Fayette County will handle all patient transports.  


 


 


________________________________  ______________________________ 


Fire Chief, City of Peachtree City   Fire Chief, Fayette County 


 


__________________    __________________   


Date       Date  


 


 







R
ED


W
IN


E 
R


D


S
 H


IG
H


W
A


Y
 8


5


BERNHARD RD


Q
U


A
R


T
E


R
S


 R
D


BUSBIN RD


D
A


R
R


E
N


 D
R


STO
NEHAVEN DR


OLD IVY


BIRKDALE DR


OLD H
IG


HW
AY 8


5


C
A


R
R


O
L L


S
 W


A
Y


W
O


O
D


C
R


E
E


K
 LN


HARRIS RD


NEWHAVEN DR


T
R


A
LE


E
 D


R


PANTHER PATH


SWAINS DR


IN
V


E
R


N
E


S
S


 S
H


O
R


E
S


 D
R


S HIGHWAY 74


S PEACHTREE PKW


LA
U


R
A


 L
N


LEGACY LN
LO


N
G


M
E


A
D


 D
R


GROOMS RD


T
R


O
T


T
E


R
S


 R
D


G


P
O


S
T


W
O


O
D


 D
R


T
U


R
N


B
E


R
R


Y
 C


IR


B
E


L  
A


IR
E


 L
O


O
P


TA
R


R
A


G
O


N
 D


R


DANA DR


KIM
MER R


D


TROON DR


HIGHGROVE DR


BROWNS CROSSING DR


MONARCH DR


W
HIT


EGATE D
R


PORTER RD


PEBBLE BEACH DR


S
H


O
A


L 
C


R
E


E
K


 R
D


NESM
IT


H C
T


FA
R


M
S


 R
D


JE
F


F
E


R
S


O
N


 W
O


O
D


S
 D


R


W
E


LLB
O


R
N


 C
H


A
S


E


SENECA PL


COLONY PT


ID
LE


W
O


O
D


 L
N


P
R


E
S


E
R


V
E


 P
L


ST A
NDREW


S D
R


PL
EA


SA
N


T 
H


L


C
O


T
T


O
N


M
IL


L 
C


T


C
H


E
S


H
IR


E
 C


H
A


S
E


W
ENTW


ORTH C
T


E
LL


E
N


W
O


O
D


 C
T


C
O


V
E


N
T


R
Y


 C
T


S
O


U
T


H
G


A
T


E
 D


R





		Fire and EMS- Temporary Automatic Aid Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and EMS- Temporary Automatic Aid Backup

		Fire & EMS - temporary agreement PTC-County automatic aid - Backup2

		Fire & EMS - temporary agreement PTC-County automatic aid - Backup1.pdf








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Information Systems Russell Prince


Consideration of staff's recommendation to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. to prepare a bid package with the necessary specifications 


and technical drawings, to solicit bids, and to provide project management services for the Strategic Technology Plan's Fiber Optic 


Cabling Project at an estimated cost of $16,250.


As part of the the County's Strategic Technology Plan, a Fiber Optic Cabling Project was developed in order to connect the McDonough 


Road sites to the County's core network via high speed fiber optic cabling.  Since this project will require running fiber optic cabling in 


road right-of-ways adjacent to other utilities, extensive coordination with proper agencies and utility company will be required.  This type 


of work is performed by the Fayette County Water System on a regular basis, so the expertise of Water System's staff and Mallett 


Consulting, Inc. will be used to assure an efficient and successful project.   


 


Mallett Consulting, Inc. will prepare the bid package with the necessary specifications and technical drawings, will solicit bids, and will 


provide the required engineering documents to the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) in order to acquire the necessary DOT 


permits, and provide project management services for the project. 


 


Mallett Consulting has performed similar work satisfactorily for the County in the past.


Approval of staff's recommendation to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. to prepare a bid package with the necessary specifications and 


technical drawings, to solicit bids, and to provide project management services for the Strategic Technology Plan's Fiber Optic Cabling 


Project at an estimated cost of $16,250.


Funding is available in the Strategic Technology Plan Fiber Optic Cabling Project budget, project 2535E.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 12, 2012







Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


  
 
To:  Jack Krakeel, County Administrator 
 
From:  Russell Prince, Chief Information Officer 
 
Date:  March 27, 2012 
 
Subject: Engineering Work for the STP Fiber Optic Cabling Project 
 
The Information Systems Department has begun work on the Fiber Optic Cabling Project that is 
part of the County's Strategic Technology Plan. The project was developed to connect the 
McDonough Road sites to the County's core network via high speed fiber optic cabling. This will 
require running fiber optic cable in road right of ways adjacent to other utilities, therefore 
extensive coordination with the proper agencies and utilities will be required. Per our discussion, 
the IS Department met with key staff from the Water System and David Jaeger of Mallet 
Consulting to discuss the project. Since planning and coordinating the installation of utilities 
along road right of ways is their area of expertise, we will be using their knowledge in these 
areas to assure that the project gets completed smoothly, efficiently, and with out issue.  
 
The Water System staff will assist with the project and help us coordinate with the other 
associated utility companies. Mallet Consulting, Inc. will prepare the bid package (with the 
necessary specifications and technical drawings), solicit bids, provide the required engineering 
documents to the Department of Transportation to acquire the necessary DOT permits, and 
provide project management services for the project. Mallet Consulting has previously 
performed this type of work for the County when we had fiber optic cabling installed from the 
Stonewall Ave Complex to the Johnson Rd sites and to the Library. They will be using some of 
the same specifications they developed for those projects in this current project.  
 
 













		Information Systems- Fiber Optic Project Agenda Request File.pdf

		Information Systems- Fiber Optic Project Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #814 by rescinding the award of six sizes of solid-sleeve fittings and re-


awarding them to other vendors, and authorization for the Chairman to sign any contracts or related documentation contingent upon the 


County Attorney's review.


The Fayette County Water System orders replacement parts as needed each year to keep the distribution system working properly.  


Invitation to Bid #814 was issued to establish prices for 225 items for calendar year 2012.  On February 9, 2012, the Fayette County 


Board of Commissioners approved Bid #814 that awarded contracts to eight vendors in order to supply the various parts to the Fayette 


County Water System.  One vendor, MSC Waterworks, was awarded nine of the 225 items. 


 


After the award, MSC Waterworks contacted Fayette County's Finance Department reporting that they had made an error in developing 


their bids on six of the nine fittings awarded to them.   


 


In the case of a good-faith error, the county may rescind the award of the items in question and re-award them to the next lowest bidder.  


Staff is recommending that the Board rescind the award for those six fittings and re-award them to the next lowest bidders.  This 


modification would result in an increase to the total cost of water distribution parts for they year by an estimated $736.02. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to modify the awarding of Bid #814 by rescinding the award of six sizes of solid-sleeve fitting and re-


awarding them to other vendors, and authorization for the Chairman to sign any contract or related documentation contingent upon the 


County Attorney's review.


Funding for these purchases is included in the Water System's annual budget.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  March 27, 2012 
 
Subject: Bid #814 Award Adjustment – Water Distribution Parts 
 
The Water System orders replacement parts as needed each year to keep the 
distribution system working properly.  Invitation to Bid #814 was issued to establish 
prices for 225 items for calendar year 2012. 
 
Eight vendors responded to the invitation to bid.  At the Board meeting of February 9, all 
eight vendors were awarded contracts to supply various parts.  In each case, the vendor 
was chosen who provided the lowest price quote. 
 
MSC Waterworks was awarded nine of the items, including three backflow preventors 
and six solid-sleeve fittings.  After the award, MSC contacted the Finance Department to 
report that they had made an error in developing their bids on the six fittings.  In the case 
of a good-faith error, the county may rescind the award of the items in question, and re-
award them to the next lowest bidder. 
 
I recommend award of the solid-sleeve fittings as follows: 


   3” fitting – Vellano Brothers 
   4” fitting – Consolidated Pipe Supply 
   6” fitting – HD Supply Waterworks 
   8” fitting – Vellano Brothers 
 10” fitting – Consolidated Pipe Supply 
 12” fitting – Consolidated Pipe Supply 


 
This action would increase the total cost of water distribution parts for the year by an 
estimated $736.02, to a new total for all 225 items of #304,068.91 (0.2% increase).  The 
attached spread sheet displays the six items in question, and the recommended vendor 
for each item. 
 
Attachment 







ITEM DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS
Est
Qty


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


A. BACKFLOW PREVENTOR:


2 8"  DDCII
Double DetectorCheck Valve 


Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves 20 $2,905.00 $58,100.00 $2,812.50 $56,250.00 $2,900.00 $58,000.00 $2,900.11 $58,002.20


3 4" Backflow Preventor
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 2 $1,020.00 $2,040.00 $988.00 $1,976.00 $1,055.00 $2,110.00 $1,009.66 $2,019.32


4 6" Backflow Preventer
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 1 $1,505.00 $1,505.00 $1,348.96 $1,348.96 $1,522.00 $1,522.00 $1,390.98 $1,390.98


TOTAL $61,645.00 TOTAL $59,574.96 TOTAL $61,632.00 TOTAL $61,412.50


K. FITTINGS:


129 3"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $65.80 $394.80 $0.00 $0.00 $68.00 $408.00


130 4"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $72.45 $434.70 $0.00 $0.00 $80.24 $481.44


131 6"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10 $107.90 $1,079.00 $0.00 $0.00 $111.52 $1,115.20


132 8"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10 $135.05 $1,350.50 $0.00 $0.00 $139.40 $1,394.00


133 10"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $193.15 $1,158.90 $0.00 $0.00 $204.68 $1,228.08


134 12"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $246.80 $1,480.80 $0.00 $0.00 $259.08 $1,554.48


Total for 6 Change Items $3,074.40


Six Item Total - New Recommended Vendors $5,862.52
Less: Six Item Total - MSC Waterworks -$5,126.50
Net Increase in contracts awarded $736.02


Relevant Portions of Bid #814
Water Distribution Parts


DELTA MUNICIPAL 
SUPPLY CO., INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


FERGUSON 
WATERWORKS


CONSOLIDATED PIPE 
& SUPPLY CO., INC.


3/27/2012 P:\Ted B\Water Sys\#814 Dist Parts Tally.xls  Re-Bid







ITEM DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS
Est
Qty


A. BACKFLOW PREVENTOR:


2 8"  DDCII
Double DetectorCheck Valve 


Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves 20


3 4" Backflow Preventor
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 2


4 6" Backflow Preventer
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 1


K. FITTINGS:


129 3"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6


130 4"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6


131 6"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10


132 8"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10


133 10"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6


134 12"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6


Total for 6 Change Items


Six Item Total - New Recommended Vendors
Less: Six Item Total - MSC Waterworks
Net Increase in contracts awarded


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


Unit
Price


Total
Price


$2,835.00 $56,700.00 $3,055.56 $61,111.20 $2,790.00 $55,800.00 $2,876.57 $57,531.40


$980.00 $1,960.00 $1,044.44 $2,088.88 $960.00 $1,920.00 $995.00 $1,990.00


$1,350.00 $1,350.00 $1,438.89 $1,438.89 $1,310.00 $1,310.00 $1,368.92 $1,368.92


TOTAL $60,010.00 TOTAL $64,638.97 TOTAL $59,030.00 TOTAL $60,890.32


$66.70 $400.20 $66.32 $397.92 $59.05 $354.30 $65.17 $391.02


$78.65 $471.90 $78.26 $469.56 $65.45 $392.70 $76.90 $461.40


$109.30 $1,093.00 $106.11 $1,061.10 $94.58 $945.80 $106.88 $1,068.80


$136.65 $1,366.50 $135.96 $1,359.60 $120.20 $1,202.00 $133.60 $1,336.00


$200.00 $1,200.00 $199.63 $1,197.78 $177.10 $1,062.60 $196.17 $1,177.02


$251.50 $1,509.00 $252.68 $1,516.08 $194.85 $1,169.10 $248.31 $1,489.86


$1,061.10 $5,126.50 $1,727.02


MSC WATERWORKS VELLANO BROS., INC.
HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, 


INC.
HD SUPPLY 


WATERWORKS


3/27/2012 P:\Ted B\Water Sys\#814 Dist Parts Tally.xls  Re-Bid





		Purchasing- Award Modification Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Award Modification Backup

		Purchasing - Bid 814 Change Backup 1.pdf

		Purchasing - Bid 814 Change Backup 2

		Re-Bid










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to issue a request for proposals for a telecommunications consultant, and for the Chairman to sign 


and execute three-year contracts for AT&T internet, Centrex, and MegaLink services, as well as contracts for AT&T Metro Ethernet and 


Data Voice, Inc. support services, pending review by the County Attorney.


The county uses 15 vendors for a variety of communications and data-transfer services.  The services have been acquired over time, as 


the technologies evolved and became viable tools for service provision.  It is recommended that the county release a request for 


proposals for a consultant to perform an analysis of the current communication system, and recommend ways to meet future needs at the 


lowest cost. 


 


In addition, due to rapidly rising charges, it is recommended that the county enter into contracts for certain services as follows: 


     - A three-year contract for AT&T internet services. 


     - A three-year contract for AT&T Centrex services. 


     - A three-year contract for AT&T MegaLink services. 


     - A one-year contract for AT&T Metro Ethernet services. 


     - A contract ending June 30, 2014 for Data Voice maintenance and support services. 


 


Note: The agenda includes a request from the Information Systems Department to install a fiber optic cable from the core network to the 


McDonough Road sites.  If approved, the county will no longer need the Metro Ethernet services after installation is complete.


Approval of staff's recommendation to issue a request for proposals for a telecommunications consultant, and for the Chairman to sign 


and execute three-year contracts for AT&T internet, Centrex, and MegaLink services, as well as contracts for AT&T Metro Ethernet and 


Data Voice, Inc. support services, pending review by the County Attorney.


Funds to pay telecommunications funds are included in the annual budget.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  March 30, 2012 
 
Subject: Communications and Data Services 
 
 
County services require the use of various types of communications and data-transfer 
technology.  Examples include, but are not limited to: 
 


 Phone, internet, and data transfer for all operations. 
 Wireless communications for ambulances. 
 Geographic and fixed-list emergency phone notification system for weather alerts 


and other communications. 
 Security alarm monitoring for various locations. 
 Cell phones and other wireless communications for law enforcement. 
 Land-line phone lines to control traffic signals. 
 Redundant methods for E-911 and others to communicate in event of a disaster or 


other emergency. 
 
The county has acquired these technologies over time as they evolved and became 
viable tools for service provision. 
 
At present, 15 vendors provide land-line and voice over internet protocol (VoIP) phone 
services, long-distance, voice mail, wireless communications, internet, maintenance and 
support of county-owned equipment, wide-area network and virtual private network, 
security monitoring, and similar services.  Payments to these vendors in fiscal year 2011 
totaled $488,302. 
 
The need for various types of services, the technologies involved, and the number of 
providers make this an inherently complex set of processes to administer.  Staff have 







considered how to structure the most cost-effective communications and data system 
that meets the current and long-term needs of the various departments.  The system 
must provide the speed and flexibility of communication needed by first responders and 
other personnel in emergency situations, and redundancies to assure that these needs 
will be met.  
 
Because of the complexities involved, it is recommended that the county release a 
request for proposals for a consultant to perform an analysis of the county’s 
communications needs.  The consultant would analyze current and future needs, and 
compare to current capacity.  Deliverables would include recommendations to help 
assure the county pays for only the services and equipment it needs, at the lowest 
available prices, and is in a position to meet future data and telecommunication needs. 
 
A related issue concerns containment of escalating prices. Four contracts for existing 
services are available for renewal, and the previous contracts have expired.  Three of the 
contracts are with AT&T, and the fourth contract is with Data Voice, Inc. (please see the 
attachment for a simplified diagram of the AT&T services).  The contracts involve the 
following: 
 


1. AT&T Internet Service Contract 
This contract provides internet service to county government.  Internet service 
enables the various departments to use the Munis system, facilitates e-mail 
correspondence with non-county entities, permits the fire stations to operate the 
FirePoint data system, allows the Elections Department to connect to the Secretary of 
State’s computers via a secured data link, and makes it possible to use various other 
applications.  


 
2. AT&T Centrex & Metro Ethernet Services Contract 


a. AT&T Centrex provides telephone service for some of the operations 
located in the Stonewall Avenue Administrative Complex, as well as the 
majority of county operations outside the Complex.  It provides telephone 
services to non-county programs, such as Fayette Factor (reimbursed by 
them) and Babies Can’t Wait (paid by the Health Department). 


 
The contract also provides communication lines for security (cameras, gate 
access, intercom, and alarms); for modems that control computer-aided 
dispatch, call location, and emergency backup for E-911; and for two traffic 
signals.  It includes a communications line for alarms at Parks and 
Recreation. 


 
b. AT&T Metro Ethernet supplies connections for internet services to county 


operations located on McDonough Road and Volunteer Way.  Through the 
contract, the county pays for cables that connect a server located at the jail 
with one located at the Water System.  Public Works, Building and Grounds 
Maintenance, and the E-911 Center are in turn connected to the internet 
through equipment located at the Water System. 


 
Internet service at these locations permits the various water plants to share 
data files with Water System administration, and allows secure data 







transfer between E-911 and the Georgia Crime Information Center.  The 
connection enables use of internet-based applications such as Munis, e-
mail, Tyler Content Management, and file-sharing at these locations. 


 
3. AT&T MegaLink Circuit Contract 
The MegaLink Circuit contract provides phone service and network connectivity to the 
Parks and Recreation office on Redwine Road.  AT&T provides this service through 
use of a T1 line they own which runs from Parks and Recreation to a county-owned 
router and server. 


 
The MegaLink Circuit provides internet service to Parks and Recreation, and enables 
them to use county shared enterprise applications such as Munis, e-mail, Kronos, GIS 
voice mail, and other applications. 


 
4. Data Voice, Inc. Contract 
Data Voice, Inc. provides support for equipment and certain software that are needed 
for phone service, voice mail, and e-mail based facsimile capability.  Under this 
agreement, the company replaces defective or worn-out equipment, performs 
preventive maintenance, and re-programs software as needed by county programs. 


 
The county pays AT&T approximately $24,000 to $25,000 per month for internet, Centrex, 
Metro Ethernet, MegaLink, and other services.  With a number of the contracts expired, 
AT&T has been increasing charges for some of the services over the last several months, 
and indicating that other charges may increase as well. 
 
A three-year contract for AT&T internet service, which provided for a charge of $2,731.50 
per month, expired in October 2010.  The county had been purchasing internet service 
on a month-to-month basis since that time.  However, AT&T increased the rate to 
$3,550.95 per month in August 2011, then again to $4,616.25 in February 2012.  AT&T is 
offering a three-year contract at the price of $2,713.35 per month, or a one-year contract 
at $3,572.35 per month. 
 
The AT&T Centrex contract was executed in 2005, and expired in September 2010.  
Charges for this service are $2,214.49 per month.  The rates that make up this cost have 
not changed up to now.  AT&T has offered a three-year contract at the rate of $1,524.49 
per month, or a one-year contract at $3,056.52 per month. 
 
The AT&T Metro Ethernet circuits have historically been made available on a month-to-
month basis.  In November, 2011 the monthly rate was increased from $1,242.00 to 
$1,880.00.  AT&T has offered a three-year contract rate of $1,702.00 per month, or a 
one-year contract at $2,362.00 per month. 
 
The previous AT&T MegaLink contract price was $190.00 per month.  The charge was 
increased to $306.00 in August 2011, to $661.80 in October 2011, and to $863.50 in 
March 2012.  AT&T has proposed a three-year contract price of $238.00 per month for 
this service, or a one-year contract at $438.00 per month. 
 
The Data Voice contract expired on June 30, 2011.  Historical payments have been 
$3,333.00 per month.  Data Voice, Inc. has offered a new contract at the same rates.







The offered Data Voice contract would expire on June 30, 2014, or could be terminated 
by either party with 30 days’ written notice. 
 
Recommendations: 
 


1. It is recommended that the county seek a qualified consultant, through the 
Request for Proposals process, to analyze the county’s current capacity as well as 
current and future needs.  The consultant would work with service providers to 
obtain the lowest available rates for current savings, and would recommend 
systems and services to meet future needs. 


 
2. For immediate cost containment, it is recommended that the county enter into 


contracts for the above-discussed telecommunication services that are provided 
by AT&T and Data Voice. 


 
The April 12, 2012 Board meeting agenda includes a request from the Information 
Systems Department to construct a fiber optic cable from the county’s core 
network to McDonough Road sites.  If this request is approved, the county will no 
longer need the AT&T Metro Ethernet services discussed above.  Since the fiber 
optic installation is expected to take less than a year, it is recommended that the 
county enter into a one-year contract with AT&T for this service.  It is 
recommended that the county enter into three-year contracts for internet, Centrex, 
and MegaLink services, because of the substantial price differential involved. 
 
It is further recommend that the county enter into a contract with Data Voice which 
would expire on June 30, 2014 in order to stabilize the price during that time. 
 
Attachment 









		Purchasing- Telecomm Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Telecomm Backup

		Purchasing - Telecomm Backup 1.pdf

		Purchasing - Telecomm Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #821 for the purchase, rental, and cleaning of uniforms to Aramark Uniform Services, 


with a contract renewable annually for a maximum of three years, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and any related 


documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Purchasing Department issued an invitation to bid for a one-year contract for uniforms, but received only two bids.  Discussions with 


non-responding vendors led to the understanding that they cannot recoup their investment in the uniforms in that length of time. 


 


A new invitation to bid- Bid #821-  was released, with the stipulation that the contract could be renewed each year, upon the agreement of 


both parties, for a total of three years.  With this adjustment, four vendors responded with bids, allowing for a more competitive process.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #821 for the purchase, rental, and cleaning of uniforms to Aramark Uniform Services, 


with a contract renewable annually for a maximum of three years, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and any related 


documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding is budgeted each year for this purpose.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  January 20, 2012 
 
Subject: Bid #821 – Uniform Rental and Purchase 
 
A number of county employees wear uniforms on the job.  This includes employees of 
Building and Grounds Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance, the Road Department, the Water 
System, and Solid Waste.  While some uniform items are purchased, most are rented.  
The county contracts with vendors to supply the uniforms, and to clean them each week. 
 
On October 12, 2011 the Purchasing Department released an Invitation to Bid for 
calendar year 2012.  Invitations were direct-mailed to 18 vendors, in addition to the 
customary notifications via internet and newspaper.  Two vendors submitted bids.  Staff 
contacted six vendors at random to determine why there were so few responses.  All six 
said that they cannot make uniforms, and then recoup the cost by renting and cleaning 
them in just one year.  They said they would consider a 3-5 year contract, but not a one-
year contract. 
 
In response, the Purchasing Department rescinded the Invitation to Bid.  A new one – Bid 
#821 – was developed for a contract that is renewable annually for a total of three years.  
It was direct-mailed to 19 vendors, as well as being announced on the internet and in the 
newspaper.  Four responsive bids were received for uniform purchases and uniform 
rentals (please see attachment). 
 
The low bid was from Unifirst, which is the county’s current vendor.  There have been a 
considerable number of issues with that vendor, including inaccurate billing, lost uniforms, 
customer service, and other issues.  Most of the using Departments feel that another 
vendor should be selected. 
 
The second lowest bid was received from Aramark Uniform Services.  The consensus of 
the involved Departments is that the second-lowest bid should be accepted. 
 
Attachment 







DESCRIPTION EST
QTY


NUWEAR BY 
KJOEB


UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 


PRICE UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 


PRICE* UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 


PRICE UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 


PRICE UNIT PRICE


SHORT SLEEVE COTTON T-SHIRTS; COLOR: 
GRAY WITH BLACK SILK SCREEN OF 
FAYETTE COUNTY LOGO INCLULDED. 
(SIZES: MEDIUM THROUGH 3XL) 150 $6.99 $1,048.50


$5.49          
2XL UP $7.99 $1,011.00 $6.45 $967.50 $11.99 $1,798.50 Non Responsive


SHORT SLEEVE COTTON T-SHIRTS; COLOR: 
FLORRISSANT GREEN WITH BLACK SILK 
SCREEN OF FAYETTE COUNTY LOGO 
INCLULDED. (SIZES: MEDIUM THROUGH 
3XL) 170 $6.99 $1,188.30


$5.49          
2XL UP $7.99 $1,145.80 $10.95 $1,861.50 $11.99 $2,038.30


INSULATED COVERALLS; COLOR: BROWN 
(CANVAS COLOR) 10 $64.99 $649.90


$79.99         
2XL UP $84.99 $824.90 $67.15 $671.50 $67.19 $671.90


PULLOVER HOODED SWEAT SHIRTS WITH 
FAYETTE COUNTY SILK SCREEN LOGO 
INCLUDED ON LEFT BREAST. COLOR: 
NAVY; 50% COTTON / 50% POLYESTER 12 $26.99 $323.88


$20.99         
2XL UP $25.00 $276.00 $27.75 $333.00 $21.19 $254.28


FRONT ZIP-UP HOODED SWEAT SHIRTS 
WITH FAYETTE COUNTY SILK SCREEN 
LOGO INCLUDED ON LEFT BREAST. 
COLOR: NAVY; 50% COTTON / 50% 
POLYESTER 15 $29.99 $449.85


$27.99         
2XL UP $31.99 $449.85 $30.25 $453.75 $25.19 $377.85


Total Estimated Costs $3,660.43 $3,707.55 $4,287.25 $5,140.83


ONE TIME SCREEN SET-UP CHARGE (IF 
ANY)


*G&K Services' extended price assumes half of purchases are size 2XL or larger, and the other half are smaller sizes.


Bid #821 - Uniforms
Purchases


UNIFIRST


$25.00


ARAMARK UNIFORM 
SERVICES G & K SERVICES J.W. OUTFITTERS


NO CHARGE $0.00 $40.00







DESCRIPTION
NUWEAR BY 


KJOEB


No. of
Employees


PRICE PER 
WEEK


REPLACE-
MENT COST


PRICE PER 
WEEK


REPLACE-
MENT COST


PRICE PER 
WEEK


REPLACE-
MENT COST


PRICE PER 
WEEK


REPLACE-
MENT COST


1.   Industrial Work Shirt Short Sleeve 34 $52.70 $17.50 $74.80 $20.85 $59.50 $12.00 $27.20 $13.99


2.   Industrial Work Shirt Long Sleeve 5 $7.75 $17.50 $11.00 $20.85 $8.75 $12.00 $4.25 $15.99 Non-Responsive


3.  Cotton  Industrial Work Shirt Short Sleeve 21 $44.10 $21.50 $64.68 $28.51 $52.50 $16.00 $22.05 $20.99


4.   Cotton Industrial Work Shirt Long Sleeve 9 $18.90 $21.50 $27.72 $28.51 $22.50 $16.00 $9.90 $21.99


5.   Industrial Pants 34 $59.50 $19.50 $69.19 $21.95 $81.60 $16.00 $34.00 $22.99


6.   Shirt 65/35 Long Sleeve 8 $12.40 $17.50 $17.60 $20.85 $14.00 $12.00 $8.40 $20.99


7.   Shirt 65/35 Short Sleeve 23 $35.65 $17.50 $50.60 $20.85 $40.25 $12.00 $21.85 $19.99


8.   Oxford Shirt Short Sleeve 4 $7.00 $18.00 $66.00 $23.10 $10.00 $16.00 $3.80 $18.99


9.   Oxford Shirt Long Sleeve 1 $1.75 $18.00 $16.50 $23.10 $2.60 $16.00 $1.00 $20.99


10. Oxford Executive Shirts Short Sleeve 3 $5.25 $18.00 $9.90 $23.10 $7.50 $16.00 $2.85 $20.99


11.  Executive Twill Pleat Pants 15 $31.50 $22.00 $40.43 $30.03 $42.00 $18.00 $18.00 $24.99


12.  Polo 50/50 Short Sleeve 33 $66.00 $23.50 $108.90 $23.10 $33.00 $14.00 $29.70 $21.99


       Cooler Polo Shirt Short Sleeve for Summer Wear 33 $66.00 $23.50 $108.90 $23.10 $39.60 $16.00 $29.70 $21.99


13.  Shorts 65/35 13 $21.45 $16.00 $26.46 $20.83 $31.20 $14.00 $11.70 $17.99


14.  Pants 65/35 57 $99.75 $19.50 $116.00 $21.95 $136.80 $16.00 $57.00 $22.99


15.  Jacket Lined With Pockets 43 $19.35 $33.00 $12.90 $40.43 $10.75 $25.00 $15.05 $39.99


16.  Hip Style Jacket With Pockets  28 $12.60 $33.00 $8.40 $41.75 $7.00 $25.00 $10.36 $42.99


17. Hip Style Jacket Lined With Pockets 35 $15.75 $33.00 $10.50 $41.75 $8.75 $25.00 $12.95 $42.99


18. Smock  ¾ Sleeve 1 $1.55 $14.00 $4.40 $24.26 $2.00 $16.00 $1.00 $23.99


19. 65/35 Coveralls 5 $7.70 $35.00 $10.40 $36.29 $7.50 $28.00 $3.00 $32.99


20. Jump Suits SS  1 $2.31 $35.00 $3.12 $36.29 $2.25 $28.00 $0.84 $38.99


21. Industrial Work Pants for Women 3 $6.00 $19.50 $6.11 $23.25 $7.50 $16.00 $3.00 $24.99


22. Mat 3 X 5 Scraper  N/A $11.96 $65.00 $20.54 $62.01 $19.50 $28.00 $13.00 $68.99


23. Mat 4 X 6 Visiting G N/A $38.08 $85.00 $49.12 $65.95 $49.92 $35.00 $40.00 $81.99


24. Mat 3 X 10 Visiting G N/A $9.36 $110.00 $11.28 $87.95 $11.70 $42.00 $9.00 $106.99


25. Mat 3 X 5 Visiting G  N/A $1.24 $45.00 $2.04 $36.05 $1.95 $28.00 $2.00 $53.99


26. Mop Handles One-Time $12.50 $10.00 $9.99


27. 36” Dry Mops  N/A $1.68 $10.50 $1.68 $15.99 $2.40 $6.00 $2.40 $15.99


28. 18 X 18 Washable Shop Rags N/A $2.00 $0.40 $4.00 $0.50 $4.00 $0.40 $4.00 $1.99


TOTAL WEEKLY CHARGE $659.28 $953.15 $717.02 $398.00


EXCEPTIONS TO SPECIFICATIONS / PAYMENT TERMS


STATE PRICE ADJUSTMENT DURING THE CONTRACT 
PERIOD, WHICH SHALL ONLY BE MADE ON JANUARY 1, 
2013 AND/OR JANUARY 1, 2014.


Bid #821 - Uniforms
Rentals


ARAMARK UNIFORM 
SERVICES G & K SERVICES JW OUTFITTERS UNIFIRST


2% 4% ANNUAL PRICE INCREASE. 


1 WEEK FREE SERVICE


5% INCREASE ON 
CONTRACT ANNIVERSARY





		Purchasing- Uniform Rental Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Uniform Rental Backup

		Purchasing - 821 Uniform Rental - Backup 1.pdf

		Purchasing - 821 Uniform Rental - Backup 2

		FOR AGENDA - PURCHASE



		Purchasing - 821 Uniform Rental - Backup 3

		FOR AGENDA - RENTAL










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff- Jail Major Charles Cowart


Consideration of a request from the Sheriff's Department Jail Division to award a bid for Jail mold remediation and repairs in the inmate 


shower areas to MC's Painting, to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. as the project manager, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any 


contracts or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


In December 2010, Major Cowart approached the Board of Commissioners about the problem of mold growing in the Jail's inmate 


showers area.  This issue was then analyzed in order to determine the most efficient way to remove the mold permanently.  During 


October 2011, the Board of Commissioners authorized the utilization of $77,837 from Project 0326A and further authorized the utilization 


of $11,163 from the General Fund's fund balance in order to fund the Sheriff's request. 


 


Current recommendations for this work are that the floors and walls of the showers be coated with urethane / epoxy material in order to 


make the impervious to mold.  Furthermore, the grills, vents, and partitions will need to be replaced with stainless steel models. 


 


Mallett Consulting has put this project out for bid and has reviewed the referenced provided by the low bidder, MC's Painting.  Mallett 


Consulting assures that the low bidder is qualified and competent to complete the work as bid.  The low bidder also stands behind their 


price, despite thee significant difference in the amounts bid by his company and the second bidder.  Mallett Consulting has also 


confirmed that the Jail's design architect, Mr. Jim Ingram of IPG, Inc. has recommended awarding the work to the low bidder. 


 


The estimated aggregate cost for this request is $80,100.  


Approval of a request from the Sheriff's Department Jail Division to award a bid for Jail mold remediation and repairs in the inmate 


shower areas to MC's Painting, to authorize Mallett Consulting, Inc. as the project manager, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any 


contracts or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


During October 2011, the Board of Commissioners authorized the utilization of $77,837 from Project 0326A and further authorized the 


utilization of $11,163 from the General Fund's fund balance in order to fund the Sheriff's request. 


Yes Thursday, October 27, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 12, 2012







From Email of David Jaeger on 03-19-2012: 


 


Major Cowart: 


  


We have completed our review of the references provided by the Low Bidder.  Based on this review, we 


feel that the Contractor is qualified and competent to complete the project as bid.   


  


I have also confirmed that the low bidder is comfortable with his bid price, despite the large gap between 


his price and the second place bidder.   


  


Lastly I have discussed the bid results with the design Architect, Mr. Jim Ingram of IPG.  Mr. Ingram 


concurs with a recommendation to award the bid to the low bidder, Mc's Painting, in the amount of 


$69,100.00. 


  


Please feel free to contact me should you wish to discuss this further. 


  


Sincerely, 


David Jaeger 


Mallett Consulting, Inc. 


 







MODIFICATION TO THE INMATE SHOWERS 


FOR FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL


BID TABULATION


BID DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2012


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


1 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom E, Shower Rm 513 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,900.00$          L.S. 17,685.93$         L.S. L.S.


2 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom E, Shower Rm 523 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,000.00$          L.S. 13,348.19$         L.S. L.S.


3 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom F, Shower Rm 532 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,900.00$          L.S. 17,488.69$         L.S. L.S.


4 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom F, Shower Rm 538 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,000.00$          L.S. 20,682.79$         L.S. L.S.


5 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom G, Shower Rm 581 L.S. L.S. L.S. 6,000.00$          L.S. 21,445.83$         L.S. L.S.


6 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom H, Shower Rm 543 L.S. L.S. L.S. 6,000.00$          L.S. 21,445.83$         L.S. L.S.


7 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom D, Shower Rm 483 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,900.00$          L.S. 7,551.49$          L.S. L.S.


8 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom D, Shower Rm 489 L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,000.00$          L.S. 14,531.19$         L.S. L.S.


9 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom J, Shower Rm 432 L.S. L.S. L.S. 4,800.00$          L.S. 17,160.59$         L.S. L.S.


10 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Dayroom K, Shower Rm 413 L.S. L.S. L.S. 3,300.00$          L.S. 13,341.59$         L.S. L.S.


11 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 187 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,300.00$          L.S. 6,523.03$          L.S. L.S.


12 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 188 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,300.00$          L.S. 6,523.03$          L.S. L.S.


13 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 193 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,300.00$          L.S. 6,523.03$          L.S. L.S.


14 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 194 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,300.00$          L.S. 6,523.03$          L.S. L.S.


15 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 199 L.S. L.S. L.S. 2,000.00$          L.S. 8,692.63$          L.S. L.S.


16 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 201 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,100.00$          L.S. 7,942.63$          L.S. L.S.


17 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 228 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,700.00$          L.S. 7,351.13$          L.S. L.S.


18 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 229 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,900.00$          L.S. 7,351.13$          L.S. L.S.


19 Restoration to Inmate Showers, Isolation Shower Room 230 L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,900.00$          L.S. 7,351.13$          L.S. L.S.


20 Allowance Per Special Conditions L.S. L.S. L.S. 2,500.00$          L.S. 2,500.00$          L.S. L.S.


TOTAL OF BASE BID 69,100.00$         231,962.89$       DID NOT BID DID NOT BID


MC'S PAINTING MARATHON ENGINEERINGTRAMMEL-HORTON NORTHERN INDUST. FLOORING



















Inspection Repor[ 


FCW, LLC 
Mold Solutions 


3950 Newnan Rd, Griffin GA 30223 
Phone: 770-4682349 Fax: 770-227 5307 Email: hanclsllc((lIbellsOLllh.nel 


Customer: Fayetteville Jail 


Address ofProperty inspected: 


Date of Inspection: 8-11-10 


Observations: 


( II I I 


Observed collections of mold staining on the walls of the showers as well as 
organic stains on the ceiling of these showers. There also appears to be a dip in the 
tloor of the shower that is not allowing the residual shower water to exit to the 
drain. The grout of the the shower floors have minor voids that allow the water to 
escape to the lower level. The shower partitions have mold growth on the bottom 
sides as well as loose hardware attachment to the floor.(Possible mold growth area) 
The paint on the shower walls has begun peeling and mold has grown behind the 
peeling paint. Bulk samples were taken and submitted for lab testing. (ResuJts 
attached). 


Section G. and H. 


Almost identical situation as E. Buildup of substance around the dividers was 
particularly bad. Instant mold tests were taken behind the shower plate fixtures 
and tested positive for mold in all locations. Cameras were used to look behind the 
shower wall and significant amounts ofmold substance were visible. Capt. Henkel 
was able to confirm these locations on our cameras. Thennal cameras were also 
utilized in this inspection and enabled us to locate several areas in the shower walls 
that had moisture buildup. These areas that trap and retain moisture allow mold to 
grow. 







Section K. Infirmary. 


Plumbing issues were observed specifically in the shower area drain. There was 
minor organic staining on the ceiling and walls. The bathtub was installed 
incorrectly not allowing the tile to overlap the tub. Reinstallation is recommended. 


*Causes and growing conditions: Molds are found everywhere inside and 
outside, and can grow on almost any substance when moisture is present. Molds 
reproduce by spores, which can be carried by air currents. When these spores land 
on a moist surface that is suitable for life, they begin to grow. For significant mold 
growth to occur, there must be a source of water or humidity, a source of food and 
a substrate capable of sustaining growth. After a singl incident of water damage 
occurs in a building, molds grow inside walls and then become dormant until a 
subsequent incident of high humidity. The right conditions reactivate mold and 
studies show that mycotoxin levels are perceptibly higher in buildings that have 
once had a water incident. 


Many fungi produce toxic metabolites called mycotoxins. Dramatic and 
carcinogenic effects have been recorded for humans and animals exposed to high 
levels ofmycotoxins. ymptoms of exposure may include cold and flu-like 
symptoms, headache, nosebleeds, dermatitis and immune suppression. Many 
mycotoxins are h.ighly disease causing. Exposure to high levels of mycotoxins can 
lead to neurological problems and in some cases death. Prolonged exposure, e.g. 
daily workplace exposure, can be particularly harmfuL 







Francis Construction & Woodworking 
Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich 
3950 Newnan Rd. 
Griffin, GA 30223 USA 
(770) 468-2349 


. - ~~'-;-~- .11 .. 
• I 


." . - " , I : • 'i-~'I- [' , I'dREP 0" 'R-·-"I-- fM 


IU l , Hl II • ".'[I ·M,,0 .. ..' ' - " ;:_J 
EMLab P & K 


www MoldR(PDRT com
 


,nfo@MoldREPDRlcom
 


This report is generated by EMl.ab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EM Lab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report,
 
~ 2002 - 20 I0 F.MLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Envjronmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc, EMLab ro: 689969, Page 1 of 14 







CUent: Francis Construction & Woodworking
C ntact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich 


MoidREPORT 
EMLabP&K 


Project: Fayetteville 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-20 I0 


6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Fl. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
(800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 


Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Table ofe s 


Thank you for choosing MoldREPORFM from EMLab P&K. Our mission is to provide industry 
leadership for the assessment of mold in the home indoor environment. 


Your MoldREPORTTM is designed and intended for use by professional inspectors in office and residenlial home 
inspections to help in the assessment of mold growth in the Jiving areas sampled by professional inspectors. Our 
laboratory analysis is based on the samples submitted to EMLab P&K. Please read the entire report to fully 
understand the complete MoldREPORTTM process. The following is a summary of the report sections: 


1. Detailed Results of Sample Analysis - Laboratory re ults from the samples collected at the site. 


2. Understanding Your Sample Analysis Results - Detailed summary of how to understand the analytical results 
from the air amplcs and/or surface samples including interpretive guidelines. 


3. Important Information, Ter s and Conditions - General infonnation to help you understand and interpret your 
MoldREPORTTM, including important terms, conditions and applicable legal provision relating to this report. 


4. Scope and Limitations - Important information regarding the scope oftbe MoldREPORTTM system, and 
limitations 
of mold inspection, air sampling, and surface sampling. 


5. Glossary - Definitions and descriptions of frequently used terms and commonly fouod mold. 


6. References and Resources - Literature, websites, and other materials that can provide more in-depth information 
about mold and indoor air quality. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EM Lab P&K client named in this report. Jmpo~t terms,. conditions,
 
and limilations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers Oftllis report are adVIsed to completely read the mformatlon, !ems, condItions and Il1rulallons of
 
th is report.
 
/[) 2002 - 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ID: 689969. Page 2 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich 


MoldREPORT 
EMLabP&K 


Project: Fayetteville 
Datc of Sampling: 08-06-2010 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-2010 


6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
(800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 


Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Summ r 


Do not take any action based on the results of this report until you have read the entire report. 


Surface Sample Summary:
 


The surface sample results f 1, 2,3 indicated mold growth on the surface(s) sampled at the time of sampling.
 


Please see the sections titled "Detailed Results of the Surface Sample Analysis", "Understanding Your Surface Sample 
Analysis Results", "Important Information, Tenus and Conditions" and "Scope and Limitations" for additional information. 


Location Mold Growth Dominant Types 


l: Swab/Shower Stall E 
• see p. 4 for details 


2: Swab/Shower Stall G 
* see p. 5 for details 


3: Flaking Paint Stall E 
* see p. 6 for details 


Aspergillus species IMold Gwwtb 
Cladosporium pccies 


Fusarium species IMold Gwwtb 
Aspergillus species 


Ic....M_o_ld_Gr_o_wt_h 11 Cladosporium species 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EM Lab P&K client and aJi readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 2010 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMT .ab ID: 689969, Page 3 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLabP&K 
Project: Fayetteville 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, F'L. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of ampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-20 to 
Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Detailed Results of Surface sis 


I: Swab/Shower Stall E 
Swab sam Iee: 


No growth 
found 


Low High 


MisceUaneous spores present: Very few 
Indicative of normal conditions** 


IBackground debris: IModerate 


IOther comments: 


* Quantities of molds seen growing are graded Low to High with High denoting the highest numbers. 


** Indicative of normal conditions, i.e. seen on surface everywhere. Includes basidiospores (mushroom spores), myxomycetes, plant pathogens 
such as ascospores, rusts and smuts, and a mix of saprophytic genera with no particular spore type predominating. Distribution of spore types 
seen mirrors that usually seen outdoors. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. lmportant (enns, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The MLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the infonnation. terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ID: 689969, Page 4 of 14 







c: 


Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLab P & K 
Project: ayettevillc 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850. Ft. Lauderdale. FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-2010 
Date ofRcporl: 08-13-20lO 


Detailed Results of Surface Sam 


2: Swab/Shower Stall G 


Swab sam le 


No growth Low High 
found 


Miscellaneou: spores present: Few 
lndicative of normal conilitions** 


I_B_a_C_k_gr_O_Ull_d_d_e_b_r_is_: I_M_O_de_ra_te _ 


I_O_t_h_er_co_rnme_ll_ts_: ___ I_N_o_n_c 


* Quantities of molds seen growing are graded Low to High with High denoting the highest numbers. 


** indicative of normal conditions, i.e. seen on surfaces everywhere. Includes basidiospores (mushroom spores), myxomycetes, plant pathogens 
such as ascospores, rusts and smuts, and a mix of saprophytic genera with no partieu lar spore type predominating. Distribution of spore types 
seen mirrors that usual.ly seen outdoors. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this repDft. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmeriea Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab 10: 689969, Page 5 of 14 







----------------------


Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
ontact: Mr. NichoIas TvnJeich EMLabP&K 


Project: Fayetteville 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-2010 
Date of Report: 08-13-20 I0 


sis 


3: Flakin Paint Stall E 


Mold growth prcsent*: No growth Low High 
Low=smaU amounts of mold growth present found 
Higb=large amounts of mold growth present 


I Acremoruum species 
Alternaria snccies -_.-._.-


AsoerlJiUus snecies 
Aurcobasidium soecies -----
Chaclomium soccies 
Cladosoorium soccics 
Penicilliwn soecies 
Stachvbotrvs sgecies 
Trichodcmla snecies 
Ulocladium snecies 


Detailed Results of urface Sam 


e: Bulksam Ie 


Miscellaneous spores present: Very few 
Indicative of normal conditions** 


IBackground debris: IN/A 


l_o_th_e_r_c_o_rnmen_t_s_: ___ I_N_o_ll_e 


* Quantities of molds seen growing are graded Low to High with High denoting the highest numbers. 


** Indicative ofnonnal conditions, i.e. seen on surfaces everywhere. Includes basidiospores (mushroom spores), myxomycetes, plant pathogens 
such as ascospores, rusts and smuts, and a mix of saprophytic genera with no particular spore type predominating. Distribution of spore types 
seen mirrors that usually seen outdoors. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the ex.clusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 2010 EM ab P&K
 
TcstArnerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab TO: 689969, Page 6 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich 


MoldREPORT 
EMLab P& K 


Project: Fayetteville 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 
Date ofReccipl: 08-11-20lO 


6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, FI. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
(800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 


Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Understandin Your Surface 


Analysis by direct microscopic examination 
Each surface sample was analyzed by direct microscopic examination. This method of analysis is an effective means 
of determining whether or not mold is growing on the surface sampled, and if 0, what kinds of molds are present. A 
direct microscopic examination, in the ab ence of evidence of growth on the surface sampled, may also occasionally 
pick up indications of mold growth in the vicinity based upon the mix of spore type prescnt in the sample. Most 
surfaces collect a mix of spores that are normally present in the environment. At times it is possible to note a skewing 
of the normal distribution of spore types, and also to note marker genera that may indicate indoor mold growth. Note 
that locating an area of mold growth indoors using surface samples does not provide information regarding airborne 
spore levels. 


Mold growth present 
Samples arc examined for the presence of mold growth, as indicated by groups, clumps, and/or chains of single spore 
types, usually accompanied by intact mycelial and/or sporulating structures. These areas of growth are then identified 
to genus name, if possible. Quantities are estimated and are graded on a scale from "Low" to "High," with "High" 
denoting the highest amount. 


Ifmold growth is found, regardless of the magnitude of the growth, it is re ommended that thc growth be physically 
removed using appropriate controls and precautions. If mold has been located and removed, it is also important to 
identify and correct the source of moisture or dampness that allowed the mold to grow. If the affected area becomes 
moist again, mold growth will occur again. We recommend that you c nsult a professional if you arc not familiar with 
how to locate and safely remove mold growth or how to identify and correct moisture problems that may exist. 


MisceUaneous spores present 
This is a measure of the mix of spores tbat arc present and are indicative of normal conditions, in other words, seen 
normally on surfaces almost everywhere. This includes basidiosporcs (mushr am spores), myxomycetes ("slime 
molds"), plant pathogens such as rusts and smuts, and a mix of saprobic mold with no particular pore type 
predominating. The distribution of these spore types resembles that seen outdoors. 


Background debris 
Background debris is an indication of the amounts of non-biological particulate matter present. This background 
material is graded and described as light, medium, heavy, or very heavy. Very heavy background debris may obscure 
visibility for the analyst. Bulk: samples are not graded in this category. 


Otber comments 
Additional relevant information is provided, such as the presence of marker genera or the abnormal distribution of 
spore types. Bacteria may be noted, as well as significant numbers of other biological particles such as algae, lichen, 
dust mites, etc. In addition, when deemed to be helpful, non-biological particles are also described. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions, 
and limitations apply. The EM ab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, terms, conditions and limitations of 
this report. 


2002 - 2010 EMLab P&K 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ill: 689969, Page 7 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLabP&K 
Project: Fayetteville 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date fReccipt: 08-11-2010 
Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Background Debris - Material(s) found on the air sample other than mold spore(s) or mycelia. Examples include skin 
cells insect parts, and fibers. 


False Positive - A test result that incorrectly indicates mold growth, when in reaJity there is none. For example, an air 
sample test result indicating indoor mold growth, when no mold growth is actually present is a "False Positive." 


False Negative - A test result that shows no mold growth, when in reality mold growth is pre ent. For example, an air 
sample t st result indicating no indoor mold growth, when mold growth is actually present. 


Fungi - A kingdom that includes yeasts, molds, smuts, and mushrooms. Fungi are not animals, plants or bacteria, but 
their own kingdom. 


HVAC - Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems are possible reservoirs for mold growth. 


LAQ - Indoor Air Quality (tAQ) is the main focus ofEMLab P&K and the majority of its customers. 


Industrial Hygienist - A professional who monitors exposure t environmental factors that can affect human health.
 
Examples of environmental factors include chemicals, heat, asbestos, noise, radiation, and biological hazards.
 


Marker Spores - Spore types, such as Chaetomium and Stachybotrys, that when found indoors, even in moderate
 
numbers are an indication of indoor mold growth.
 


Not : This glo sary is intended to provid general information about commonly occurring molds, and is not intended
 
to be a complete source.
 


Alternaria:
 
Distribution: Alternaria is one of the most common molds and is abundant worldwide. This genus contains around
 
40 to 50 di fferent species, only a few of which are commonly found indoors.
 
How it is spread: Alternaria spores are easily dispersed through the air by wind.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Alternaria is common outdoors in soil, dead organic.debris, foodstuffs, and textiles. It is
 
also a plant pathogen and is frequ nlly found on dead or weakened plants.
 
Where it is found indoors: Alternaria can grow on a variety of substrates indoors when moisture is presenL
 


Acremonium:
 
Distribution: Acremonium is a common mold, includjng about 80 to 90 different species.
 
How it is spread: Acremonium produces wet slimy spores and is normally dispersed through water flow or droplets,
 
or by insects. Old dry Acremonium spores can sometimes be dispersed through the air by wind.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Acremonium is found in soil, 00 dead organic material and debris, hay, and foodstuffs.
 
Where it is found indoors: Acremonium can be found anywhere indoors, but requires very wet condjtions in order to
 
proliferate. The spores probably require active disturbance for release.
 


Aspergillus: (see Penicillium/Aspergillus) 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the xclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the infonnation, teons, conditions and limitation,' of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 2010 EM ab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ID: 689969, Page 10 of 14 







Ctient: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLab P & K 
Project FayetteviJle 630 I NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-20 10
 
Date of Report: 08-13-2010
 


1m ortant Information Terms and Condifons Relatin our MoldREPORT"M 


The study and understanding of molds is a progressing science. Because djfferent methods of sampling, collection and analysis 
exist within the indoor air quality industry, different inspectors or analysts may not always agree on the mold concentrations 
present in a given environment. Additionally, the airborne levels of mold change frequently and by large amounts due to many 
factors including activity levels, weather, air exchange rates (indoors), and disturbance of growth sites. It is possible for report 
interpretations and rangcs of accuracy to vary since comprehensive, generally accepted industry standards do not currently exist 
for indoor air quality inspections of mold in residential indoor environments. MoldREPORTIM is intended to provid an analysis 
based upon samples taken at the site at the time of the inspection. Mold levcls can and do change rapidly, espccially if home 
building materials r contents remain wet for more than 24 bours, or if they are wet frequently. MoldREPORTIM is not intended 
to provide medi al or healthcare advice. All allergy or medical-related questions and concerns, including health concerns 
relating to possible mold exposure, should be directed to a qualified physician. If this report indicates scores that are higher than 
in typical indoor Ijving spaces relativc to the outdoor environment, or indjcates any finilings that are of concern to you, further 
evaluation by a trained mold professional or a Certified Industrial Hygienist (Cni) may be advisable. 


Warranties, legal disclaimers and limitations 
MoldREPORf™ is designed and intended for use only in residential home inspections to help in the assessment of mold growth 
in the living areas sampled. Our laboratory analysis and report are based on the samples submitted to EMLab P&K. The 
inspection(s) and sampling should be performed only by a licensed and professi nal home inspector, environmental mold 
specialist, industrial hygienist or residential appraiser trained and qualified to conduct mold inspections in residential buildings. 
Client agrees to th se conditions for the on-site project inspection. 


This MoldREPORTTM is generated by EMLab P&K at the request of, and for the exclusive use of, the EMLab P&K client named 
on this report. The analysis of thc test samples is performed by EMLab P&K. EMLab P&K's policy is that reports and test results 
will not be released to any third party without prior written consent from EMLab P&K's client. Thi report applies only to the 
samples taken at the time, place and location referenced in the report and received by EMLab P&K, and to the property and 
weather conilitions existing at that time only. Please be aware, however, that property onditions, inspection fmdings and 
labomtory results can and do change over time relative to the original sampling due to changing conditions, the normal 
fluctuation of ai.rborne mold, and many other factors. lient and reader are advised that EMLab P&K does not furnish, and has 
no responsibility for, the inspector or inspection service that performs the inspection or collccts the test samples. It is the 
responsibility of the end-user of this report to select a properly trained professional to conduct the inspection and collect 
appropriate samples for analysis and interpretation by MoldREPOR'fTM. None of EMLab P&K, EMLab P&K or their affiLiates, 
subsidiaries, suppliers, employees, agents, contractors and attorn ys (each an "EMLab P&K-related party") are able to make 
and do not make any determinations as to the safety or health conilition of a property in tills report. The client and client's 
customer are solely responsible for the use of, and any determinations made from, this report, and no EMLab P&K-re1ated pa.rty 
shall have any liability with respect to decisions or recommendations made or actions taken by cithcr the client or the client's 
customer based on the report. 


Except as expressly provided for hcreunder, each EMLab P&K-related party hereby expressly disclaims any and all 
representations and warranties of any kind Or nature, whether express, implied or statutory, rclated to the testing services or this 
report. Additionally, neither this report nor any EMLab P&K-rclated party make any expr ss or implied warrdJlty or guarantee 
regarding the inspection or sampling donc by the inspector, the qualifications training or sampling methodology used by the 
inspector performing the sampling and inspection rcported herein, or the accuracy of any information provided to any EMLab 
P&K-rclatcd p8Ity serving as a basis for this report. EMLab P&K reserves the right to change its scoring method at any time 
without notice. EMLab P&K reserves the right to dispose of samples two weeks after analysis unless otherwise specified by the 
client. lfthe client chooses to have EMLab P&K continue to retain the samples after this two week period, the client must provide 
written notification to EMLab P&K of this request. EMLab P&K reserves the right to charge for the additional sample storage. 


In no event will any EMLab P&K-reLatcd party be liable for any special, indirect, incidental, punjtive, or consequential damages 
of any kind regardless of the form of action whether in contract, tort (including negligence), strict product liability or otherwise, 
arising from or related to the testing services or this report. The aggrcgate liability ofthc EMLab P&K-related partie related to 
or arising fTOm this report, whether under conlIact law, tort law, warranty or otherwise, shall bc limited to direct damages not to 
exceed the fees actually receivcd by EMLab P&K from the client for the report. 


The invalidity or un nforceability, in whole or in part, of any provision, term or condition herein shall not invalidate or otherwise 
affcct the en(orceability of the remainder of these provisions, terms and conditions. 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMlab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this I\.1X)rt are advised to completely read the infonnation, tenns, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 2010 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmcrica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ID: 689969, Page 8 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLabP& K 
Project: Fayetteville 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-1) -20 I 0 
Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


________-=c=O=F'e"'-""a=n=d'-"L=llD=O=itations of Re ort and Anal sis 


The scope of the MoldREPORTTM system is limited to EMLab P&K's proprictary MoldSCORETM analysis of the air and surface 
sampl s taken at the time of the inspection. EMLab P&K cannot be liable, in any form of action, for any items that are not 
included within the scope of the MoldREPORTTM system. 


MoldREPOR'fTM Inspection Limitations 
MoldREPORTTM r suits are based upon mold air and surface samples. Mold surface samples are useful for confirming and 
identifying mold growth while air samples measure airborne mold levels. 


This report provided by EMLab P&K is based upon the assumption that the information provided by the inspector is true and 
correct, that a sufficient number of mold and air samples were collected at all th appropriate locations following proper 
inspection and sampling protocols, and that the mold samples collected represent nonnal conditions at the site sampled. EMLab 
P&K is not able to, and cannot, guarantee the skill level or experience of the inspect r perfomling tbe MoldREPORTTM 
inspection, nor can it guarantee that the samples have been properly collected at the site r are representative of normal 
conditions since many factors outside ofEMLab P&K's (and the inspector's) control can and do sub tantiallyaffec mold levels. 
Consequently, EMLab P&K cannot guarantee the a curacy of the interpretation provided herein. It i the responsibility of the 
inspector to insure that the mold samples were collected properly. MoldREPORTTM relies on non-invasive and non-destructive 
tests, so it cannot guarantee that hidden mold problems will be detected and reported. MoldREPORTTM results apply only to the 
rooms sampled, not to the entire building or any other rooms. It is the responsibility of the property owner, potential purchaser or 
other end-user of this report to select a properly trained and qualified inspector. 


About Ai.. Sample Sampling and Analysis 
EMLab P&K requires at least one outdoor air sample and one indoor air sample in order to make indoor/outdoor comparisons 
and assessments of airborne mold levels, which are an integral part oflbe EMLab P&K MoldREPORTTM system. TIle indoor air 
samples taken can be representative of the airborne mold present in the area sampled. The analysis and interpretation of these air 
samples is proprietary and is based upon: relative levels of sp res present, quantities and concentration ofPenicillium/ 
Aspergillus type spores, quantity and concentration of Cladosporium spores, quantity and concentration ofbasidiospores, 
quantity and concentration of "marker" spore types, quantity and concentration of "other" spore types, and the distribution of 
mold spore types. Spore identification is performed visually by trained analysts according to industry norms. Using visual 
identification, most mold spores lack sufficient distinguishing characteristics to allow for species identification, so the 
MoldREPORTTM analysis is generally performed at the genus level. Currently there are no generally-accepted protocols or 
regulations regarding air sampling for molds, in large part due to the inability of any single technique to provide a complete 
analysis of all mold spores and mold growth in an area. Air sampling for MoldREPORTTM can be performed using any standard 
"spore trap" method, which are also called "non-viable air sampling methods" because spore traps do not require the 
germination and growth of the spores before identification. Commonly used spore trap equipment for performing air sampling for 
mold includes Zefon Air-O-Cell™ Cassettes, Burkard™ samplers, and Allergeneo™ samplers. 


About Surface Sampling and Analysis 
Surface sampling can be useful for differentiating between mold growth and stains, for identifying the type of mold growth 
present (if present), and, in some cases, identifying signs of mold growth in the vicinity. Although not required, surface sampling 
can improve the accuracy of the result and interpretation of the inspected environment if sampled correctly. EMLab P&K 
accepts surface samples in the form of swabs, tapes, or bulks in order to perform a direct examination of a specific location. The 
MoldREPORTTM analysis ·ystern uses the direct examination data in addition to the MoldREPORTTM air sample analysis. 


This report is generated by EM Lab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive usc. of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the infonnation, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
© 2002 - 2010 FMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmen131 Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab rD: 689969, Page 9 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich 


MoldREPORT 
EMLab P & K 


Project: Fayetteville 
Date of Sampling: 0&-06-2010 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-2010 


6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
(800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax. (858) 292-2722 


Date of R.eport: 08-13-2010 


Glossar continued 


Basidiospores: 
Distribution: Basidiospores are produced by a very large and diverse group of fungi called basidiomycetes, which
 
contains over 1000 different genera. This group includes many well-known macrofungi, such as mushrooms.
 
l3asidiospores are often abundant in outdoor air and sometimes in indoor air.
 
How they are spread: Many types of basidiospore' are actively released into the air during periods of high humidity
 
or rain. Once the spores are ex.pelled into the air, they are dispersed easily by wind.
 
Where they are found outdoors: Basidiomycetes are very common outdoors and can bc fi und in gardens, forests,
 
grasslands, and anywhere there is a substantial amount of dead organic material. They are also found on or near
 
plants and some are known to be plant pathogens.
 
Where tbey are found indoors: Basidiospores found ind ors typically come from outdoor sources and are carried
 
inside by airflow or on clothing. Certain kinds of basidiomycetes can grow indoors, such as those that cause "dry
 
rot" which can cause structural damage to wood. Occasionally, other basidiomycetes such as mushrooms can be
 
found indoors, but this is not common. Gen raJly, ba iodiomycetes require wet conditions for prolonged p riod in
 
order to grow indoors.
 


Bipolaris I.Dresch/era:
 
Distribution: Bipolaris and Dreschlera arc two separate genera ofmolds that are so visually simi lar that they are
 
commonly discussed together as a group. Both genera include around 30 - 40 different species.
 
How they are spread: Bipolaris / Dreschlera spores are easily dispersed through the air by wind.
 
Where they are found outdoors: Bipolaris / Dreschlera type spores are most abundant in tropical or subtropical
 
climates. They can grow in soils, on plant debris and grasses, and are known to be plant pathogens.
 
Where they are found indoors: Bipolaris / Dreschlera can grow on a variety of indoor substrates when moisture is
 
present.
 


Ceratocystis I Ophiostoma:
 
Distributioo: Ceratocystis /Ophiostoma are two separate genera of molds that are a visually similar that they are
 
commonly discussed together as a group. These genera contain around 50 to 60 different species,
 
How they are spread: Ceratocystis / Ophiostoma produce wet slimy spores and are Donnally dispersed through
 
water flow, droplets, or by insects. These spores are rarely identified in air samples.
 
Where tbey are found outdoors: Ceratocystis / Ophiostoma are very common in commercial lumberyards and
 
fore ts.
 
Wbere tbey are found indoors Ceratocystis / Ophiostoma are abundant on wood framing material in the home,
 
although the spores are rarely found in air samples. This mold is sometimes called "lumber mold".
 


Chaetomium:
 
Distribution: Chaetomium is a common mold worldwide. This genus contains around 80 - 90 different species.
 
How it is spread: Chaetomium spores are formed inside fruiting bodies. The spores are released by being forced out
 
through a small opening in the fruiting body. The spores are then dispersed by wind, water drops, or insects.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Chaetomium can be found in soil, on various seeds, cellulose substrates, dung, woody
 
materials and straw.
 
Where it is found iodoors: Chaetomium can grow in a variety of areas indoors, but is usually found on cellulose

based or woody materials in the home. 1t is very common on sheetrock paper that is or has been wet.
 


This report is generated by EM Lab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the information, tenns, conditions and limitations of
 
th is report.
 
© 2002 - 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, fnc. EMLab ID: 689969, Page 11 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrd ich 


MoldREPORT 
EMLab P & K 


Project: Fayetteville 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-2010 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-20 I0 


630 I NW 5th Way, Suite 2850. Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
(800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 


Date of Report: 08-13-2010 


Glossa continued 


Cladosporium: 
Distribution: Cladosporium is an abundant mold worldwide and is normalJy one of the most abundant spore types
 
present in both indoor or outdo r air samples. This g nus contains around 20 - 30 different species.
 
How it is spread: Cladosporium produces dry spores that are formed in branching chains. Spores are relea ed by
 
twisting of the spor -bearing hyphae as they dry. Thus, the spores are most abundant in dry weather.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Cladosporium is found in a wide variety of soils, in plant Jitter, and on old and decayjng
 
plants and leaves. Some spe ies are plant pathogens
 
Where it is found indoors: Cladosporium can be found anywhere L'1doors, including textiles, bathroom tiles, wood,
 
moist windowsills, and any wet areas in a borne. Some species of Cladosporium grow at temperatures near or below
 
O(C) / 32(F) and can often be found on refrigerated fo dstuffs and even frozen meal
 


Curvularia:
 
Distribution: Curvularia is a cosmopoutan fungus and includes approximately 30 different species.
 
How it is spread: Curvularia produces dry spores that are formed in fragile chains and is very easily dispersed
 
through the air by wind.
 
Wbere it is found outdoors: Curvularia is most common in tropical or subtropical regions. It is found in soil and on
 
debris of tropical plants.
 
Wbere it is found indoors: Curvularia can be found growing on a variety of substrates indoors.
 


Epicoccum:
 
Distribution: Epicoccum is a cosmopolitan mold that includes only two species.
 
How it is spread: Epicoccum produccs large dry spores that are ea<;ily dispersed through thc air by wind.
 
Wbere it is found outdoors: Epicoccum can b found in soils or on plant debris.
 
Where it is found indoors: Epicoccum is commonly found on many different substrates indoors including paper,
 
textiles, and insects.
 


Memnoniella:
 
Distribution: Memnoniella is a cosmopolitan mold genus that includes approximately five species. )t is frequently
 
found in conjunction with Slachybotrys species due to its similar ecologi al preferences.
 
How it is spread: Memnoniella produces dry spores that are easily dispersed through tbe air by wind.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Memnoniella can be found outdoors in soil, in plant debris or litter, and as pathogens
 
on some typ s of living plants.
 
Where it is found indoors: Memnoniella can grow on a variety of substrates indoors, but mainly can be found on
 
wet cellulose-bas d materials, such as wallboard, jute, wicker, straw baskets, paper and other wood by-products.
 


Paecilomyces:
 
Distribution: Paecilomyces is ubiquitous in nature and includes between 9 and 30 different species, depending on the
 
taxonomic system used. Its spores are visually sirnilar to Penicillium / Aspergillus types of spores.
 
How it is spread: Paecilomyces produce dry spores iliat are easily dispersed through th air by wind.
 
Wbere it is found outdoors: Paecilomyces i found outd ors in soils and decaying plant matter composting
 
processes, I gumes and cottonseeds. Some species parasitize insects.
 
Where it is found indoors: Paecilomyces can be found on a number of materials indoors. It bas been isolated from
 
jute fibers, papers, PVC, timber, optical lenses, leather, photographic paper, cigar tobacco, harve ted grapes, bottled
 
fruit, and fruit juice undergoing pasteurization.
 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important tenns, conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K client and all readers of this report are advised to completely read the infolTIlation, terms, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.

«:J 2002 - 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Envirorunental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab TO: 689969, Page 12 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrd ich EMLab P & K 
Project: Fayetteville 630 I NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Dale of Sampling: 08-06-2010 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Rec 'ipt: 08-11-2010
 
Date of Report: 08-13-2010
 


Glossary (continued) 


Penicillium / Aspergillus:
 
Distribution: Penicillium / Aspergillus are two separate genera of molds that are so visually similar that they arc
 
commonly discussed together as a group. Together, there are approximately 400 different species of Penicillium /
 
Aspergillus.
 
How it is spread: Penicillium / Aspergillus produce dry spore types that are easily dispersed through the air by wind.
 
These fungi serve as a food source for mites, and therefore can be dispersed by miles and various insects as well.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Penicillium / Aspergillus are found in soils, decaying plant debris, compost piles, fruit
 
rot and some petroleum-based fuels.
 
Where it is found indoors: Penicillium / Aspergillus are found throughout the home. They are common in house
 
dust, growing on wallpaper, wallpaper glue, decaying fabrics, wallboard, moist chipboards, and behind paint. They
 
have also been isolated from blue rot in apples, dried foodstuffs, cheeses, fresh herbs, spices, dry cereals, nuts,
 
onions, and oranges.
 


Stachybotrys:
 
Distribution: Stachybotrys is ubiquitous in nature. This genus contains about 15 species.
 
Bow it is spread: Stachybotrys produces wet slimy spores and is commonly di persed through water flow, droplets,
 
or insect transport less commonly througb the air.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Stachybotrys i found in soil', decaying plant debris decomposing cellulose, leaf litter
 
and seeds.
 
Where it is found indoors: Stachybotrys is common indoors on wet materials containing cellulose such as
 
wallboard, jute, wicker, straw baskets, and other paper materials.
 


Torula:
 
Distribution: Torula is a cosmopolitan microfungus and includes approximately eight different species
 
How it is spread: Torula produces dry spores that are easily dispersed through the air by wind.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Torula is most common in temperate regions and bas been isolat d from oils, dead
 
herbaceous stems, sugar beet roots, groundnuts, and oats.
 
Where it i.s found indoors: Torula is common indoors on wet materials containing cellulose, such as wallboard, jute,
 
wicker, straw baskets, and other paper materials.
 


Ulocladium:
 
Distribution: Ulocladium is ubiquitous in nature and includes approximately nine different species.
 
How it is spread: Ulocladium produces dry spores that are easily dispersed through the air by wind.
 
Where it is found outdoors: Vlocladium is common outdoors in soils, dung, paint, grasses, wood, paper, and
 
textiles.
 
Where it is round indoors: Vlocladium is ommon indoors on very wet materials containing cellulose such as
 
wallboard, jute, wicker, straw baskets, and other paper materials. Vlocladium requires a significant amount of water
 
to flouri h.
 


This report is generated by EMLab P&K allbe request, and for the exclusive use, of Ibe EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important terms, condilions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab P&K clieat aod all readers of this report are advised 10 completely read the infonnalion, tenns, conditions and limitations of
 
Ihis report.
 
© 2002 . 20 I0 EMLab P&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, Inc. EMLab ID: 689969, Page 13 of 14 







Client: Francis Construction & Woodworking MoldREPORT 
Contact: Mr. Nicholas Tvrdeich EMLabP& K 
Project: Fayetteville 6301 NW 5th Way, Suite 2850, FI. Lauderdale, FL 33309 
Date of Sampling: 08-06-20 I0 (800) 224-1527 (858) 292-2721 Fax (858) 292-2722 
Date of Receipt: 08-11-2010
 
Date of Report: 08-13-20 I0
 


References and Reso rce 


References: 


Airborne Allergens, William Solomon, Guest Editor. Immunology & Allergy Clinic' of North America, V lume 9, Number 2, 
August 1989. W.B. Saunders Company, Publishers, The Curtis Center. Independence Square West, Philadelphia, PA 19106-3399. 
This book may be out of print. 


Bioaerosols: Assessment and Control, Janet Macher, Sc.D., M.P.H., Editor. 1999. ACGIH, 1330 Kemper Meadow Drive, 
Cincinnati, OH 45240-1634. 


Bioaerosols, Harriet Burge, Ph.D. 1995. Lewis Publishers, 2000 Corporate Blvd., N.W., Boca Raton, FL 33431-9868. 


Biological Contaminants in Indoor Environments, Morey, Feeley, Otten, Ed itors. 1990. ASTM, 1916 Race Street, PhiladcJphia, 
PA 19103. STP 1071. 


Fungi and Bacteria in Indoor Air Environments: Health Effects, Detection and Remediation, Proceedings from the International 
Conference, Saratoga Springs, NY October 6-7, 1994. 


Health Implications ofFungi in Indoor Environments, Edited by R.A. Samson. 1994. Elsevier Science, P.O. Box 945, Madison 
Square Station New York, NY 10159-0945. 


Indoor Air and Human Health, Gammage & Kaye. 1985. Lewis Pub Ii hers. 


Microfungi, S.G. Gravcsen, J.c. Frisvad, & R.A. Samson, published by Munksgaard. 


Useful Wcbsites: 


www.acgih.org
 
American Conferenc ofGovernmental Industrial Hygienists - information on IAQ and useful links.
 


www.aiha.org
 
American Industrial Hygiene Association - general lAQ information
 


\vww.ealcpa.ca.gov
 
C liforoia Environmental Protection Agency - California lAQ reSOllfces
 


www.emlab.com
 
EMLabP&K
 


www.epa.gov
 
Environmental Protection Agency - information regarding prevention and remediation of mold
 


www.health.state.ny.us
 
N w York Stale Department of Health - New York state recommendations for IAQ, indo r mold inspections, remediation, and
 
prevention
 


www.moldreporl.com
 
MoldR POR'fTM - online store, and other inforrnati n about MoldREPOR'fTM
 


\vww.nih.gov
 
National Institutes of Health - information regarding environmental health issues, including lAQ
 


www.niehs.nih.gov
 
National Institute ofEnvironmeotal Health Sciences - information on mold
 


This report is generated by EM Lab P&K at the request, and for the exclusive use, of the EMLab P&K client named in this report. Important term. conditions,
 
and limitations apply. The EMLab ?&K client and all readers of this report are ad\~sed to completely read the information, tenns, conditions and limitations of
 
this report.
 
<1)2002 - 2010 EMLab I'&K
 
TestAmerica Environmental Microbiology Laboratory. Inc. EMLab In: 689969, Page 14 of 14 









		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Backup

		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Backup 3

		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Backup 2

		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Backup 1.pdf

		Mold Repair Cost Revised 092711

		Mallett Mold Job Mgmt

		Mold Report



		Sheriff- Jail Mold Repair Backup 4








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $6,634.60 for 
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives  monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations 
Division by $6,634.60 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal agencies.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel Benton


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #827 to low bidder, Manatron Inc. & Diversified Printing, in the amount of $23,459, for preparing 


and mailing Personal Property Return Forms and Assessment Notices, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and 


related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Historically, each year,  almost all of the employee's in the Tax Assessor's Office spend several weeks at a time printing, folding, stuffing, 


placing postage on, and mailing all Personal Property Return Forms and Assessment Notices.   


 


By outsourcing this work, staff will be able to continue appraising, and to continue auditing and researching property values without 


having to virtually stop the normal work process in order to generate and mail the Returns and Notices.  Outsourcing the work will also 


save Fayette County money when the following factors are considered:  the salaries of up to ten full-time employees for no less than 80 


hours, the cost of supplies such as ink, paper, and envelopes, the wear and tear on County property such as printers, copiers, the 


postage machine, the folding / stuffing machine, and other overhead expenses. 


 


Invitations to bid were extended to 19 vendors, and were further extended through the local newspaper, the county's website, , Georgia 


Local Government Access Marketplace, and television Channel 23.  Six vendors responded to the invitation.  Two of the vendors met the 


County's requirements.  Manatron was the low bidder.


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #827 to low bidder, Manatron Inc. & Diversified Printing, in the amount of $23,459, for the 


purpose of preparing and mailing Personal Property Return Forms and Assessment Notices, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding has been budgeted and approved for this purpose in the Fiscal Year 2012 (FY2012) budget.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  April 5, 2012 
 
Subject: Bid #827 – Tax Bill Printing and Mailing 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #827 to acquire printing and mailing services 
for tax bills.  Invitations were direct-mailed to 19 vendors.  In addition, invitations were extended 
via a local newspaper, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and television Channel 23 in the usual manner. 
 
The invitation to bid specified that bids should include printing and mailing costs, and bidders 
should supply samples.  Six vendors responded to the invitation to bid (please see attached tally 
sheet).  Of the six bidders, three did not include postage, which is a very significant part of the 
price.  The three were Axis, Inc; PBD Worldwide; and The Master’s Touch, LLC. 
 
The fourth bidder – Design, Print & Display Group Services – did not provide samples.  In 
addition, this bidder requested payment for postage prior to mailing the forms, which would be 
counter to established practices. 
 
Of the remaining two bidders, Manatron, Inc. submitted the lowest bid.  The Tax Assessor’s 
Office recommends awarding the contract to Manatron.  The Purchasing Department supports 
their recommendation. 
 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





Manatron, Inc. & N. Harris The Master's
Product Axis, Inc. Diversifed Printing Computer Corp PBD Worldwide Services Postage Touch, LLC


Assessment Notice
(Real Property) 6,779.68$              19,800.00$            20,640.00$            6,106.00$              3,117.50$              15,480.00$            4,994.00$              


Assessment Notice
Conservation) 136.05                   274.00                   288.00                   85.00                     43.50                     216.00                   54.00                     


Assessment Notice
(Personal Property) 193.43                   456.00                   480.00                   142.00                   72.50                     36.00                     87.00                     


Property Tax
(Form PT-50P) 2,840.23                2,520.00                2,880.00                5,778.00                1,342.80                1,620.00                1,487.00                


Properety Tax
(Form PT-50M) 491.90                   196.00                   224.00                   451.00                   104.44                   126.00                   432.00                   


Property Tax
(Form PT-50A) 443.73                   168.00                   192.00                   377.00                   89.52                     108.00                   432.00                   


Freeport Exemption
(Form PT-50PFO 285.22                   45.00                     51.20                     61.00                     17.98                     28.80                     67.00                     


     Total Bid 11,170.24$            23,459.00$            24,755.20$            13,000.00$            4,788.24$              17,614.80$            7,553.00$              


Exceptions: Postage not 
included.


Exceptions noted. Postage not 
included.  Est. 1st 
class postage is 
$19,932.


Postage not 
included.


The Design, Print & Display Group


Bid #827 - Tax Bill Printing & Mailing Service
Opening Date Tuesday, April 3, 2010 at 3:00 pm


Request a check for postage, payable 
to "U.S. Postmaster" prior to mail being 
delivered to the post office.





		Tax Assessors- Printing Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessors- Printing Backup

		Tax Bill Printing - Purchasing Backup 1.pdf

		Tax Bill Printing - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the alternate bid to low bidder East Electrical Company, for electrical 


modifications to one raw water pump and one finished water pump at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, in the amount of $36,600, and 


to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The Crosstown Water Plant has two water pumps that are used to deliver water from the water plant to the Crabapple Water Tank.  One 


of the pumps require repair, however, due to technological changes, one of the pumps requires certain modifications as part of the repair. 


 


The first pump requiring repair is a 600 horse-power (hp) finished water pump (#7).  It's modification will require the installation of a Small 


Motor Controller (SMC) Flex Reduced Voltage Starter.  The approved manufacturer for this part is Allen-Bradley, however, there is an 


approved and recommended alternative manufactured by Square D. 


 


The second pump requiring repair is a 200 hp raw water pump.  Its modification requires an "AC Drivers" (sic) complete with two dual 


channel signal isolators (part #SVX200A).  The approved manufacturer for this part is Eaton Culter Hammer, however, Square D is also 


an approved and recommended alternative manufacturer for this part. 


 


East Electrical Company is the low bidder for this modification work.  The Water Committee and staff recommend that East Electrical 


Company be awarded the bid, in the "additive alternate amount" of $36,600; pending confirmation that there is not a delay in delivery of 


equipment that will negatively impact completing the project.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award the alternate bid to low bidder East Electrical Company, for electrical 


modifications to two raw and finished water pumps at Crosstown Water Treatment Plant in the amount of $36,600, contingent upon 


confirmation that there is not a delay in delivery of equipment that will negatively impact completing the project, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign a contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding is available in the Water System's Renewal and Extension Fund.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Approval of this request should be contingent upon pending confirmation that there is not a delay in delivery of equipment that will 


negatively impact completing the project.


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012









		Water- Electrical Modifications Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water- Electrical Modifications Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award a bid for the Lake McIntosh Park Water Line Extension to the low bidder, 


Strack Inc., in the amount of $39,778, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the 


County Attorney's review.


On March 8, 2012, the Board of Commissioners approved the Water Committee's recommendation to award the bid for the Lake 


McIntosh Park and Boat Ramp to the low bidder, Headley Construction, in the amount of $894,980.   


 


As part of staff's request, it was noted that approved cost did not include expenditures for "paving of the road outside of the park, 


landscaping, or the water line extension" that would provide water to the park; however, Water System Director Tony Parrott informed the 


Board that, due to the proximity to the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, water lines would be recommended to extend to the park from 


the treatment plant.   


 


To that end, the Water Committee has recommended that the Board award a bid that would provide water to Lake McIntosh's park.  Six 


contractors bid on this work, and the Water Committee and staff recommend that the low bidder, Strack, Inc., be awarded the bid in the 


amount of $39,778.  Once completed, a 2" waterline will extend from Crosstown Water Treatment Plant to the park. 


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award a bid for the Lake McIntosh Water Line Extension to the low bidder, Strack 


Inc., in the amount of $39,778, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County 


Attorney's review.


Funds are available in the Water System's Lake McIntosh Project fund.


Yes Thursday, March 8, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 12, 2012









		Water- Lake McIntosh Water Li...nsion Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water- Lake McIntosh Water Line Extension Backup



